
February 13, 2020
Page |  1

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
(5-minute maximum per person - for items not on the agenda)

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR

IVA. Newberg Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
PC Meeting Monutes 2020-0109 Draft.docx

V. QUASI-JUDICIAL PUBLIC HEARING
(complete registration form to give testimony - 5-minute maximum per person except for
principals, unless otherwise set by majority motion of the Planning Commission).  

VA. PUD19-0002 River lands Planned Unit Development
PUD19-0002 Riverlands Staff Report with Attachments.pdf

VI. LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARINGS 
(complete a registration form to give testimony - 5-minute maximum per person except for
principals, unless otherwise set by majority motion of the Planning Commission).

VIA.
MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENT
ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT PARKING REQUIREMENTS
DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC w ATT 02-13-20.pdf

VIB. Development Code Amendment of Residential  Use Restr ictions on the First Floor
of Bui ldings on E/W Second Street 
DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - Staff
Report - 20200213 - PC Final.pdf

VII. ITEMS FROM STAFF

1

City of Newberg Public Safety Building  
February 13, 2020 - 7:00 PM

  Planning Commission Meeting     

401 East Third Street

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/523486/PC_Meeting_Monutes_2020-0109_Draft.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/524883/PUD19-0002_Riverlands_Staff_Report_with_Attachments.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/523490/DCA19-0009_Staff_Report_to_PC_w_ATT_02-13-20.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/523804/DCA19-0003_Residential_Use_Limitations-Commercial_Use_Requirement_on_Second_St_-_Staff_Report_-_20200213_-_PC_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/523804/DCA19-0003_Residential_Use_Limitations-Commercial_Use_Requirement_on_Second_St_-_Staff_Report_-_20200213_-_PC_Final.pdf


February 13, 2020
Page |  2

VIIA. OGEC Letter  to City Manager, City Counci l , Municipal  Judge, Planning Commission
and Histor ic Planning Commission
OGEC letter to Council 2020-0203 SEI first reminder.pdf

VIIA. Anticipated Schedule of Planning Commission Activities
Memo Planning Commission Activities 2020.doc

VIII. ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS

IX. ADJOURNMENT

ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS:
In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the Community
Development Department Office Assistant II of any special physical or language
accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible as and no later
than 48 business hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact
the Office Assistant at (503) 537-1240. For TTY services please dial 711.

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/524861/OGEC_letter_to_Council_2020-0203_SEI_first_reminder.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/523494/Memo_Planning_Commission_Activities_2020.pdf


Agenda Item No:IVA.

Planning Commission Agenda Item Report
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020
Submitted by: Bobbie Morgan
Submitting Department: Community Development  
Item Type: MEETING MINUTES
Agenda Section: 

Subject:
Newberg Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

Suggested Action:
Approval of Planning Commission Meeting Minutes for January 9, 2020

Attachments:
PC Meeting Monutes 2020-0109 Draft.docx

3

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/523486/PC_Meeting_Monutes_2020-0109_Draft.pdf


Newberg Planning Commission Meeting Minutes January 9, 2020

NEWBERG PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES
January 9, 2020

Newberg Public Safety Building
401 E Third Street

Chair Edwards called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm.

ROLL CALL
Members Present: Allyn Edwards
                                  Kriss Wright  
                                  Jason Dale

Jeffrey Musall
                                  John Wuitschick
                                  Robert Ficker
                                  Sharon Capri

Colin Bolek, Student Planner

Staff Present: Doug Rux, Community Development Director
Keith Leonard, Associate Planner

PUBLIC COMMENTS:

None

CONSENT CALENDAR:

1. Approval of the December 12, 2019 Planning Commission meeting minutes

MOTION: PC Wuitschick/PC Wright moved to approve the December 12, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting
Minutes. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No).  

NEW BUSINESS

1. Election of Planning Commission Chair and Vice Chair

Community Development Director Rux explained the process for electing the Chair and Vice Chair.

MOTION: PC Edwards/PC Ficker moved to nominate PC Dale as Planning Commission Chair for 2020. Motion 
carried (7 Yes/0 No).

Chair Dale continued as the new Chair and asked for nominations for Vice Chair.

MOTION: PC Wright/PC Ficker moved to nominate PC Musall as Planning Commission Vice Chair for 2020. Motion 
carried (7 Yes/0 No).

Workshop

1. Workshop to gather input from the Planning Commission regarding suggested Comprehensive Plan and 
Development Code amendments suggested in the 2018 Yamhill County Transit Area Transit Development Plan.

Associate Planner Leonard presented the suggested Comprehensive Plan and Development Code amendments suggested 
in the 2018 Yamhill County Transit Development Plan. In February 2019, the Council directed staff to initiate these 
amendments. He discussed the Comprehensive Goals and Policies for transportation. Staff recommended deleting number 
5 which was a previous policy and adding number 8 with a policy that was from the Transit Development Plan. It would 
state, “The City will facilitate transit services for its community members with special attention to the needs of members 

4



Newberg Planning Commission Meeting Minutes January 9, 2020

who may be classified as transit dependent due to factors such as age, income, and/or disabilities.” He asked if the 
Commission was comfortable with these changes.

PC Capri thought the change only added more factors and made it more complete. AP Leonard responded it did provide 
more depth to the policy.

PC Edwards asked about the impact of Tri-Met’s fees on businesses. CDD Rux responded Tri-Met had its own service 
area that did not include Yamhill County. The policy was for Yamhill County and Tri-Met to work together to get people 
from Yamhill County to the Portland area. There was a new statewide transit tax. There had been no discussions about 
Tri-Met moving into Yamhill County.

PC Capri asked if there were plans to add a rail system. CDD Rux responded there had been discussions for decades about 
a commuter rail line that might run from Portland to McMinnville, but it had never moved forward.

PC Wright clarified the commuter bus only ran at peak times in the morning and night.

PC Wright asked about the dial a ride service. CDD Rux responded that was run by the transit district. He explained how 
there were plans for more transit coverage and a transit center in downtown in the future.

Student PC Bolek asked about the deletion of number 5. CDD Rux responded that was an old policy about establishing a 
transit district, which had already been done.

PC Capri asked where people could pick up transit maps. CDD Rux said most of them were online.

There was consensus to make the changes as staff recommended.

AP Leonard continued by saying that new Goal 13 stated they would utilize the Transit Development Plan as a guidance 
document and below were the recommended policies. He asked if they were comfortable with that goal.

PC Edwards thought there should be a transit hub across from City Hall in the capital improvement plan.

There was consensus to keep the goal language as staff recommended.

AP Leonard continued through the policies under Goal 13. Policy A stated the Transit Development Plan provided the 
policy and implementation direction for the City transit planning which included route development, financing, and 
physical improvements necessary to maintain and improve public transit services for the City, residents, businesses, and 
visitors. 

Policy B stated transit improvements within the City should be guided by the findings and recommendations in the Transit 
Development Plan. 

Policy C stated the City will seek to implement, through capital improvement projects and private development 
requirements, improvements that encourage increased transit use and are consistent with and supportive of the Transit 
Development Plan recommendations.

PC Musall asked how the City would implement the Plan. CDD Rux responded if the City was doing a capital 
improvement project, such as widening a roadway, and the Transit Plan called for a stop and pull out for a bus, they would 
work to incorporate that into the project. If a developer was building a project on a transit line, staff would work with 
them to get a transit sign out front and pedestrian walkways. They also wanted to put in more shelters and signs.

Policy D stated the City will support higher density and mixed use land use around transit stops and in transit corridors to 
make transit service more feasible and effective. 

Policy E stated in lower density areas, the City will support park and ride/rideshare facilities, demand responsive and 
flexible transit services, and other facilities and services that are appropriate where it is less feasible to serve the area with 
fixed route transit. 

PC Capri asked if this policy meant they would have a parking lot. CDD Rux said they could have a park and ride parking 
lot or flexible transit routes, such as dial a ride.

5



Newberg Planning Commission Meeting Minutes January 9, 2020

The Commission was good with all of these policies.

AP Leonard continued with new Goal 14 which was to coordinate with Yamhill County Transit Area. He reviewed the 
policies under this goal.

Policy A stated the City will invite transit service providers to participate in long-range and comprehensive land use 
planning projects in order to optimally coordinate land use and transit service.

Policy B stated the City will invite transit service providers to participate in the review of land use applications that may 
have implications for transit service or impacts to transit facilities. 

Policy C stated in planning for and implementing capital projects, the City will coordinate with Yamhill County Transit 
Area, Oregon Department of Transportation, and other road authorities if applicable to preserve or improve existing and 
planned transit stop amenities and connections. 

Policy D stated the City will work with Yamhill County Transit Area to site and implement needed transit stops and park 
and ride lots within the City in support of the district-wide public transit system, with an emphasis on sites that are safe 
and convenient for riders.

Policy E stated the City will participate in Yamhill County Transit Area’s efforts to promote and implement rideshare and 
other transportation demand management programs for reducing motor vehicle travel demand on state highways.

PC Capri asked if there were any plans for a park and ride by Second Street. CDD Rux responded they did not know 
where the locations would be for those yet. Second Street was identified to be a mixed use residential street and transit did 
go up and down that street.

The Commission was good with this goal and policies.

AP Leonard continued with new Goal 15 which was to implement transit-supportive improvements.

Policy A stated the City will prioritize the improvement of pedestrian and bicycle network gaps and substandard facilities 
along and adjacent to transit corridors in its long-range transportation planning and capital improvement programming.

Chair Dale asked if they already did that with new development, such as putting in new sidewalks. CDD Rux explained it 
was not a big change as there were already obligations for new development, such as putting in sidewalks. What was 
missing were shelters and signs. It would depend on the frequency of the service for where those shelters and signs should 
go. This policy furthered the obligations that the state and city already had.

Policy B stated the City will support improvements such as pedestrian and bicycle connections, shelters, easements for 
shelters and/or landing pads, and lighting to complement transit service and encourage increased transit use. Transit stop 
improvements shall be coordinated with the transit service provider.

CDD Rux commented that they already had requirements for bike lanes, but this would integrate the whole multi-modal 
system together and connect them to transit, such as adding bike shelters.

PC Edwards suggested adding verbiage to Policy B regarding handicap regulations. CDD Rux said they could add 
verbiage about ADA accessibility.

Chair Dale asked who paid for the shelters and signs. CDD Rux responded the transit agency would install them. The City 
would make sure the public sidewalk was in place.

PC Wright asked about ODOT and the road diet for 99W. CDD Rux clarified the road diet would remove one travel lane 
on First Street and one travel lane on Hancock. He explained what the proposed lane changes would be in the areas
coming in and going out of that road diet.

PC Wright asked if the Special Transportation Area applied to the Riverfront Master Plan area. CDD Rux said no, it 
would only apply to the downtown. It was a special designation in the downtown that gave them alternative mobility 
standards. 6



Newberg Planning Commission Meeting Minutes January 9, 2020

Policy C stated the City will work to improve safety for transit riders through the local planning and development review 
process, helping to ensure safe locations of transit stops and safe connections to transit stops, including roadway 
crossings.

Policy D stated the City will prioritize improvements to the City’s pedestrian environment that increase safe and attractive 
access to transit, including lighting, landscaping, public art, marked and protected crossings, and curb ramps.

PC Wuitschick asked if the City would make this a priority. CDD Rux commented they had a lot of priorities and there 
was always a balancing of the priorities. Transit might not always be the top priority.

PC Wright asked if studies were taken into consideration to know what improvements should be done. CDD Rux 
responded they took all of the master plans into consideration when they created the capital improvement projects. They 
also had to look at the funding and possible grants. If they were doing a capital project and the Transit Plan identified it 
was on a transit route and there should be a transit stop, then putting in a shelter would be incorporated into the project.
This would help the City be proactive and responsive to transit.

Policy E stated the City will establish and implement development requirements that provide preferential parking for 
ridesharing and allow parking areas to be used for park and ride.

The Commission was good with this goal and policy.

AP Leonard continued with the proposed changes to the Development Code regulations.

1. The first change was regarding a pre-application meeting. AP Leonard said the Transit Authority would be added to 
the list of agencies to be contacted to make comments on applications. CDD Rux commented that the City did not 
have a required pre-application conference provision for land use applications. He had been moving towards that, but 
they were not there yet. He suggested revisiting the idea in the future, but he did not want to make it mandatory now.

2. The second was the application review. Currently they mailed out notices to governmental agencies and staff 
recommended leaving the code as it was for this one.

3. The third change was regarding hearing notices. Staff recommended leaving the code as it was for this one as well.

CDD Rux commented that if a development was going in on a transit street, they would add the transit agency onto 
the distribution list for hearing notices. This would be standard operating procedure.

4. The fourth was regarding access between the site and the street. Staff recommended leaving the code as it was for this 
one.

5. The fifth was regarding the access to the transit stop and supportive improvements, which staff recommended leaving 
the code as it was.

6. The sixth was regarding off-site access to transit stops. AP Leonard suggested adding a third point under 
15.505.020(O) dealing with pedestrian and bicycle access ways.

CDD Rux commented that instead of specifying the “Planning Commission” in the text, because some applications 
came to them and some did not, that it state “The approval authority.” 

7.   The seventh was regarding transit-related uses/facilities in parking areas which staff recommended leaving as it was.

8.  The eighth was regarding carpool/vanpool parking which staff recommended leaving the code as it was.

9. The ninth was regarding maximum parking requirements. AP Leonard said some zoning districts were left out of this 
one, C-1 and C-2. They would add under letter A language similar to number 3 regarding the number of parking 
spaces. A letter F would need to be added to 15.440.010 to include provisions for C-2. 7



Newberg Planning Commission Meeting Minutes January 9, 2020

PC Edwards asked if this took into consideration the parking requirements for residential. CDD Rux responded ADUs 
did not require parking anymore which had recently been passed by the state legislature.

CDD Rux clarified there was a minimum number of parking spaces required, and letter E would be instituting a 
maximum number of parking spaces. The maximum would be based on one of three variables.

Chair Dale asked what impact that would have on applications. CDD Rux responded they would have to meet the 
minimum number, but there would also be a cap on the maximum number. This would support transit by encouraging 
people to use transit to get where they were going and to get back home. It was nudging towards using alternative 
modes of transportation.

10. The tenth was regarding reduced parking requirements which staff recommended leaving the code as it was.

11. The eleventh was regarding parking area landscaping which staff recommended leaving the code as it was.

CDD Rux said the proposal in the Transit Plan would reduce the amount of landscaping within a parking lot, and he 
thought the current regulations did a good job of providing landscaping on the interior and on the perimeter of lots.
Instead of making a wholesale change that he did not know what it would look like, he recommended leaving the 
code as it was. 

12. The twelfth was regarding the minimum bicycle parking requirements. AP Leonard stated this addressed short and 
long term bicycle parking. They would be striking out “Transit Transfer Stations” which were not in the Code and 
replacing that with “Transit Centers and park and ride lots”. The minimum number of bicycle parking spaces for 
those would be 4 spaces or 1 per 10 vehicle spaces, whichever was greater. It would increase the number of spaces 
required. They also defined short and long term bicycle parking.

PC Edwards asked about motorcycles spaces. CDD Rux responded they would be parking in the parking lot like a 
car.

13. The last was regarding maximum building setbacks. This pertained to East Portland Road or Highway 99W as well 
as C-1 and C-2 zoning districts. It would bring up the buildings and add flexibility for the pedestrian amenities so if 
there was a transit stop there could be a change of the maximum setbacks.

CDD Rux added Portland Road was 99W, but they would write Portland Road and in parenthesis Highway 99W.

ITEMS FROM STAFF:

CDD Rux announced a new City Manager had been hired and would begin work in February. He discussed the
anticipated schedule of Planning Commission agenda items.

PC Capri had question about an email on the Governance 101 class in Salem, CDD Rux responded.

CDD Rux added that it was PC Wuitschick’s last day as a Planning Commissioner.

ITEMS FROM COMMISSIONERS:

The next Planning Commission meeting is scheduled for February 13, 2020.

ADJOURNMENT:

Chair Dale adjourned the meeting at 8:19 pm.

Approved by the Newberg Planning Commission this February 13, 2020.

_______________________________________ ________________________________

Jason Dale, Planning Commission Chair                    Bobbie Morgan, Office Assistant II 8



Agenda Item No:VA.

Planning Commission Agenda Item Report
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020
Submitted by: Doug Rux
Submitting Department: Community Development  
Item Type: Planning Commission Hearings
Agenda Section: 

Subject:
PUD19-0002 Riverlands Planned Unit Development

Suggested Action:
Move to adopt Planning Commission Order 2020-01, which approves the requested Planned Unit Development,
tentative plat with the attached conditions. 

Attachments:
PUD19-0002 Riverlands Staff Report with Attachments.pdf

9

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/attachment/524883/PUD19-0002_Riverlands_Staff_Report_with_Attachments.pdf


 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

 Community Development Department 
P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
RIVERLANDS PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 

  
HEARING DATE: February 13, 2020 
 
FILE NO:  PUD19-0002 
 
REQUEST: To develop a 18 lot PUD single-family residential subdivision with 

associated improvements 
 
LOCATION: 1303 S River Street 
 
TAX LOTS: Yamhill County tax lot R3229 02500 
 
PROPERTY SIZE: 1.56 acres 
 
APPLICANT: Del Boca Vista LLC 
 
OWNER: Riverlands Subdivision LLC 
 
ZONE: R-2/RD Medium Density Residential/Riverfront District 
 
PLAN DISTRICT: MDR (Medium Density Residential)  
 
OVERLAY: Airport Inner Horizontal Surface, Riverfront District Overlay 
                                                                                                                                                     
Attachments: 
Order 2020-01 with 

Exhibit “A”:  Findings 
Exhibit “B”:  Conditions 

Attachments 
1. Application Material  
2. Supplemental Application Material 
3. Preliminary Plat  
4. Agency Comments  
5. Public Comments 

10



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

 
 

Location Map 

 
A. DESCRIPTION OF APPLICATION:   

The applicant is proposing to construct a 18 lot PUD single family residential 
development located at 1303 S River Street (Tax Map 3229 02500) at a density of 
11.5 dwelling units per acre. The housing will include fifteen 3 bedroom dwellings and 
three 2-bedroom dwellings. 

Attachment 1 contains the applicants’ narrative, plans and supporting documents. 
Attachment 2 illustrates the preliminary plat submitted with the application. The 
proposed PUD meets the City of Newberg’s Development Code (NDC) except for 
one requirement that the applicant is proposing to adjust through the PUD process. 
The requirement is the following: 

1. 15.405.010 Lot area – Lot areas per dwelling unit under the provision of 
15.405.020 Lot area exceptions. 

The proposed development is also in the Riverfront Subdistrict and is required to 
comply with NDC Chapter 15.352 which will be addressed later in this report. 

SITE INFORMATION: 
 

1. Location:  1303 S River Street 

2. Size: 1.56 Acres 

3. Topography: Topography slopes east to west at less than 1% 

4. Current Land Uses: single family residential 

11



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

5. Natural Features: None 

    

Aerial Photo 

6. Adjacent Land Uses: 

a. North: single family residential and Newberg-Dundee Bypass  

b. East: industrial (WestRock Mill Site) 

c. South: undeveloped and rail line spur (WestRock Mill Site) 

7. West: Newberg-Dundee Bypass Zoning: 

a. North: Medium Density Residential/Riverfront District (R-2/RD) 

b. East: AF-10 Agriculture/Forestry Small Holding District (Yamhill County) 

c. South: AF-10 Agriculture/Forestry Small Holding District (Yamhill 
County) 

d. West: HI Heavy Industrial District (Yamhill County) 

  

 

12



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

  

Zoning 

8. Access and Transportation: The applicant is proposing a 18-lot PUD of 
single family homes. Access to these lots will occur from a residential street 
that accesses S River Street, which is classified as a major collector. 

9. Utilities: 

a. Wastewater: The City’s GIS system shows the nearest wastewater line 
is located at the intersection of S River Street/E Thirteenth Street. There 
is an 8-inch wastewater line that runs along S River Street that 
terminates at E Thirteenth Street near the City limits. 

b. Water: The City’s GIS system shows there is a 6-inch ductile iron water 
line along S River Street.  

c. Stormwater: The City’s GIS system shows there is an existing 15-inch 
stormwater line along S River Street. 

d. Overhead lines: There are existing overhead lines running along the 
property frontage. All new or modified service lines are required to be 
undergrounded. 

B. PROCESS:  The planned unit development request is a Type III application and 
follows the procedures in Newberg Development Code 15.100.050.  The Planning 
Commission will hold a quasi-judicial hearing on the application.  The Commission is 
to make a decision on the application based on the criteria listed in the attached 
findings.  The Planning Commission’s decision is final unless appealed.  Important 
dates related to this application are as follows: 

1. 11/21/19: The Community Development Director deemed the 
application complete. 13



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

2. 1/13/20: The applicant mailed notice to the property owners within 
500 feet of the site. 

3. 1/13/20: The applicant posted notice on the subject property. 

4. 1/22/20: The Newberg Graphic newspaper published notice of the 
Planning Commission hearing for the February 13, 2020 
meeting. 

5. 1/22/20: City staff posted notice of the Planning Commission 
hearing in 4 public places. 

6. 02/13/20 After proper notice the Planning Commission held a public 
hearing, took public testimony and deliberated on the 
proposal. 

C. AGENCY COMMENTS:  The application was routed to several public agencies for 
review and comment.  Comments and recommendations from city departments have 
been incorporated into the findings and conditions.  As of the writing of this report, the 
city received the following external agency comments (Attachment 2):   

1. Yamhill County – Reviewed, no conflict with a note “The house most likely has a 
septic system. Decommission info will need to be sent to County Sanitarian.” 

2. Frontier Communications – Reviewed, not conflict 

3. Newberg Finance 0 Reviewed, no conflict. 

4. Newberg Public Works – Reviewed, no conflict with note “All utility plans to be 

reviewed and approved by Engineering Department prior to construction.” 

5. TVF&R – Reviewed, no conflict, comments have been worked into Exhibit “A” 

Findings and Exhibit “B” Conditions of Approval 

6. Oregon Department of Transportation – Rail Division provided comments that are 

integrated into the Public Improvements Standards section of the report regarding a 

crossing order, sidewalks and fencing. 

D. PUBLIC COMMENTS: At the time of writing this staff report no public comments 
have been received.  

E. ANALYSIS:  

1. Description: The applicant is proposing an 18-lot PUD residential 

subdivision on property that is zoned R-2/RD. The applicant is proposing a 

limited residential street with a 26-foot wide public street and 5-foot wide 

sidewalk. A 6-foot wide curb tight sidewalk is proposed in the cul-de-sac. 

The applicant is proposing 47-feet of public right-of-way. The applicant is 

requesting one modification of Newberg Development Code requirements, 

which is allowed through the PUD process. The following modification is 

being requested: 

 

a. 15.405.010 Lot area – Lot areas per dwelling unit under the provision of 

15.405.020 Lot area exceptions. 
14



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

 

 

F. PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  At this time staff recommends the 
following motion: 

Move to adopt Planning Commission Order 2020-01, which approves the requested 
Planned Unit Development, tentative plat with the attached conditions.  

15



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

PLANNING COMMISSION ORDER 2020-01 

 

 An ORDER APPROVING PUD19-0002 FOR THE RIVERLANDS PUD AT 1303 S 

RIVER STREET, YAMHILL COUNTY TAX LOT NUMBER 3229 02500  

RECITALS 

1. Del Boca Vista LLC submitted an application for preliminary plan approval of a 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) for eighteen (18) lots of residential use and one (1) 
tract on Medium Density R-2/Riverfront District residentially zoned property at 1303 S 
River Street with the Yamhill County Tax Lot number of 3229-02500. 

2. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on February 
13, 2020 to consider the application, take public testimony and deliberated.   

3. The Newberg Planning Commission finds that the application meets the applicable 
criteria as shown in the findings in Exhibit “A”. 

The Newberg Planning Commission orders as follows: 

1. The PUD preliminary plan application PUD19-0002 is hereby approved, subject to the 
conditions contained in Exhibit “B”.  Exhibit "B" is hereby adopted and by this 
reference incorporated. 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “A” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted 
and by this reference incorporated. 

3. This Order shall be effective February 27, 2020 unless appealed prior to that date. 

4. This Order shall expire one year after the effective date above if the applicant does 
not apply for final plan approval by that time, unless an extension is granted per 
Newberg Development Code 15.240.020. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 13th day of February, 2020. 

        ATTEST: 

 
Planning Commission Chair Planning Commission Secretary 

List of Exhibits: 
 Exhibit “A”: Findings  
 Exhibit “B”: Conditions 
 

16



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Order 2020-01 
Findings –File PUD19-0002 

Riverlands PUD 

I. Chapter 15.240 PD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 

15.240.020 General provisions. 

A. Ownership. Except as provided herein, the area included in a proposed planned 

unit development must be in single ownership or under the development control of a 

joint application of owners or option holders of the property involved. 

Finding: The subject property is under ownership by Riverlands Subdivision LLC. 

This criterion is met because the subject property is under single ownership. 

B. Processing Steps – Type III. Prior to issuance of a building permit, planned unit 

development applications must be approved through a Type III procedure and using 

the following steps: 

1. Step One – Preliminary Plans. Consideration of applications in terms of on-site 

and off-site factors to assure the flexibility afforded by planned unit development 

regulations is used to preserve natural amenities; create an attractive, safe, 

efficient, and stable environment; and assure reasonable compatibility with the 

surrounding area. Preliminary review necessarily involves consideration of the 

off-site impact of the proposed design, including building height and location. 

 

Finding: This application is being processed by a Type III procedure. The applicant has 

acknowledged that their application is in the first step of the PUD review process. There are 

no natural amenities on the site. There is a single family home to the north in the R-2/RD 

zoning designation which is the same land use proposed by the applicant. To the east is 

the closed WestRock mill site outside of the city limits. Under the current Newberg 

Comprehensive Plan designation the WestRock area would be given an industrial 

designation at the time the property is annexed. 

To the south is undeveloped land and a rail road spur owned by WestRock. Under the 

current Newberg Comprehensive Plan the area would be given a commercial designation 

at the time the property is annexed. To the northwest is the Newberg-Dundee Bypass.  

The PUD is in the area of the 2019 Riverfront Master Plan that has been adopted by the 

City Council. As the Riverfront Master Plan is implemented the property to the east of S 

River Street is identified be a mixed employment area and the property to the south of the 

proposed PUD to be commercial and high density residential. 

17

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=53


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

The proposed PUD for single family residential will provide an attractive, safe, efficient and 

stable environment for its residents as well as surrounding property owners. The applicant 

is proposing three story homes, which are not unlike the homes constructed north of the 

Newberg-Dundee Bypass. 

This criterion is met because the applicant has made an effort to preserve natural 

amenities, create an attractive, safe, efficient, stable environment that is compatible with 

surrounding uses or planned land use. 

2. Step Two – Final Plans. Consideration of detailed plans to assure substantial 

conformance with preliminary plans as approved or conditionally approved. Final 

plans need not include detailed construction drawings as subsequently required 

for a building permit. 

Finding: Not applicable for the first step in the PUD review process. The applicant has 

acknowledged that there is a two-step process in the PUD review process. 

This criterion will be reviewed during step two of the PUD review process with the submittal 

of the final PUD plans and associated material being provided by the applicant. 

C. Phasing. If approved at the time of preliminary plan consideration, final plan 

applications may be submitted in phases. If preliminary plans encompassing only a 

portion of a site under single ownership are submitted, they must be accompanied 

by a statement and be sufficiently detailed to prove that the entire area can be 

developed and used in accordance with city standards, policies, plans and 

ordinances. 

 

Finding: This criterion is not applicable because the applicant is not requesting a phased 

PUD and has stated in their narrative that they will develop the project in one phase. 

D. Lapse of Approval. If the applicant fails to submit material required for 

consideration at the next step in accordance with the schedule approved at the 

previous step or, in the absence of a specified schedule, within one year of such 

approval, the application as approved at the previous step expires. If the applicant 

fails to obtain a building permit for construction in accordance with the schedule as 

previously approved, or in the absence of a specified schedule, within three years of 

a preliminary plan approval, preliminary and final plan approvals expire. Prior to 

expiration of plan approval at any step, the hearing authority responsible for 

approval may, if requested, extend or modify the schedule, providing it is not 

detrimental to the public interest or contrary to the findings and provisions specified 

herein for planned unit developments. Unless the preliminary plan hearing authority 

provides to the contrary, expiration of final plan approval of any phase automatically 

18

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

renders all phases void that are not yet finally approved or upon which construction 

has not begun. 

 

Finding: The applicants’ narrative acknowledges the requirement of this section of the 

NDC. 

 

E. Resubmittal Following Expiration. Upon expiration of preliminary or final plan 

approval, a new application and fee must be submitted prior to reconsideration. 

Reconsideration shall be subject to the same procedures as an original application. 

 

Finding: The applicants’ narrative acknowledges the requirement of this section of the 

NDC. 

 

F. Density. Except as provided in NMC 15.302.040 relating to subdistricts, dwelling 

unit density provisions for residential planned unit developments shall be as follows: 

1. Maximum Density. 

a. Except as provided in adopted refinement plans, the maximum allowable 

density for any project shall be as follows: 

 

District Density Points 

R-1 175 density points per gross 

acre, as calculated in 

subsection (F)(1)(b) of this 

section 

R-2 310 density points per gross 

acre, as calculated in 

subsection (F)(1)(b) of this 

section 

R-3 640 density points per gross 

acre, as calculated in 

subsection (F)(1)(b) of this 

section 

RP 310 density points per gross 

acre, as calculated in 

subsection (F)(1)(b) of this 

section 

C-1 As per required findings 

C-2 As per required findings 

19

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15302.html#15.302.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=106
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=106
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=89
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=89
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=89
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=89
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=89
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=89
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=89
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=89


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

District Density Points 

C-3 As per required findings 

 

b. Density point calculations in the following table are correlated to dwellings 

based on the number of bedrooms, which for these purposes is defined as an 

enclosed room which is commonly used or capable of conversion to use as 

sleeping quarters. Accordingly, family rooms, dens, libraries, studies, studios, 

and other similar rooms shall be considered bedrooms if they meet the above 

definitions, are separated by walls or doors from other areas of the dwelling 

and are accessible to a bathroom without passing through another bedroom. 

Density points may be reduced at the applicant’s discretion by 25 percent for 

deed-restricted affordable dwelling units as follows: 

 

Density Point Table  

Dwelling Type 

Density Points: 

Standard Dwelling 

Density 

Points: 

Income 

Restricted 

Affordable 

Dwelling 

Unit  

Studio and 

efficiency 

12 9 

One-bedroom 14 11 

Two-bedroom 21 16 

Three-bedroom 28 21 

Four or more 

bedrooms 

35 26 

 

The density points in the right-hand column are applicable to income-restricted 

affordable dwelling units, provided the dwelling units meet the affordability criteria 

under NMC 15.242.030 regarding affordable housing requirements for developments 

using the flexible development standards. 
20

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=101
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=123
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=101
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=106
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=101
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=101
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=106
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=106
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15242.html#15.242.030


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

2. Approved Density. The number of dwelling units allowable shall be determined 

by the hearing authority in accordance with the standards set forth in these 

regulations. The hearing authority may change density subsequent to preliminary 

plan approval only if the reduction is necessary to comply with required findings 

for preliminary plan approval or if conditions of preliminary plan approval cannot 

otherwise be satisfied. 

3. Easement Calculations. Density calculations may include areas in easements if 

the applicant clearly demonstrates that such areas will benefit residents of the 

proposed planned unit development. 

4. Dedications. Density calculations may include areas dedicated to the public for 

recreation or open space. 

5. Cumulative Density. When approved in phases, cumulative density shall not 

exceed the overall density per acre established at the time of preliminary plan 

approval. 

 

Finding: The applicants’ narrative indicates that the property is zoned R-2/RD and is 

allowed 310 density points per gross acre. Maximum density is calculated as follows, 310 

points per acre x 1.56 acres = 483.6 density points. The applicant is proposing to construct 

15 new three-bedroom and 3 new two-bedroom single family homes. Therefore, the 

proposed number of density points is 28 (three bedroom) x 15 dwelling units + 21 (two 

bedroom) x 3 dwelling units = 483 density points. Therefore, the proposed development is 

less dense than what is allowed in the code. Easements are included in the density 

calculation for utilities that are a benefit to the residents of the PUD. No dedication of land 

for recreation or open space is proposed in the PUD. The applicant has indicated the PUD 

will not be phased. City staff concurs with the applicants’ findings. 

This criterion is met because the applicant has not exceeded the total allowed density 

provided for in the NDC. 

G. Buildings and Uses Permitted. Buildings and uses in planned unit developments 

are permitted as follows: 

1. R-1, R-2, R-3 and RP Zones. 

a. Buildings and uses permitted outright or conditionally in the use district in 

which the proposed planned unit development is located. 

b. Accessory buildings and uses. 

c. Duplexes. 

d. Dwellings, single, manufactured, and multifamily. 

e. Convenience commercial services which the applicant proves will be 

patronized mainly by the residents of the proposed planned unit development. 

 

Finding: The applicant is proposing single family home development for their project, which 

is a permitted use under this section of the NDC. 
21

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=106
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=211.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=3
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=105
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=101
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=76.5
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

This criterion is met because the applicant is proposing single family home development 

which is a permitted use for PUDs. 

H. Professional Coordinator and Design Team. Professional coordinators and design 

teams shall comply with the following: 

1. Services. A professional coordinator, licensed in the State of Oregon to 

practice architecture, landscape architecture or engineering, shall ensure that the 

required plans are prepared. Plans and services provided for the city and between 

the applicant and the coordinator shall include: 

a. Preliminary design; 

b. Design development; 

c. Construction documents, except for single-family detached dwellings and 

duplexes in subdivisions; and 

d. Administration of the construction contract, including, but not limited to, 

inspection and verification of compliance with approved plans. 

2. Address and Attendance. The coordinator or the coordinator’s professional 

representative shall maintain an Oregon address, unless this requirement is 

waived by the director. The coordinator or other member of the design team shall 

attend all public meetings at which the proposed planned unit development is 

discussed. 

3. Design Team Designation. Except as provided herein, a design team, which 

includes an architect, a landscape architect, engineer, and land surveyor, shall be 

designated by the professional coordinator to prepare appropriate plans. Each 

team member must be licensed to practice the team member’s profession in the 

State of Oregon. 

4. Design Team Participation and Waiver. Unless waived by the director upon 

proof by the coordinator that the scope of the proposal does not require the 

services of all members at one or more steps, the full design team shall 

participate in the preparation of plans at all three steps. 

5. Design Team Change. Written notice of any change in design team personnel 

must be submitted to the director within three working days of the change. 

6. Plan Certification. Certification of the services of the professionals responsible 

for particular drawings shall appear on drawings submitted for consideration and 

shall be signed and stamped with the registration seal issued by the State of 

Oregon for each professional so involved. To assure comprehensive review by 

the design team of all plans for compliance with these regulations, the dated 

cover sheet shall contain a statement of review endorsed with the signatures of 

all designated members of the design team. 

 

Finding: The applicants’ narrative states that the property owner is utilizing David Evans & 

Associates for civil engineering and surveying. Brady Berry is an Oregon licensed engineer 

(#14919PE) and is the professional coordinator for the project. Suntel Design, Inc. has 
22

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=170
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

submitted the architectural plans for the proposed houses. The landscape plan was 

designed by Otten Landscape Architects. The applicant has acknowledged the requirement 

to notify the City in writing of any design team changes. The applicants’ narrative states that 

all PUD plans are signed and stamped by the following: Brady Berry, PE (Civil), Janet Otten 

(Landscape) Jim Mei (Architect), Stephen Williams (Surveyor). 

This criterion is met because the property owner is utilizing a licensed civil engineer, Brady 

Berry, P.E., to design the proposed Riverlands PUD. 

I. Modification of Certain Regulations. Except as otherwise stated in these 

regulations, fence and wall provisions, general provisions pertaining to height, 

yards, area, lot width, frontage, depth and coverage, number of off-street parking 

spaces required, and regulations pertaining to setbacks specified in this code may 

be modified by the hearing authority, provided the proposed development will be in 

accordance with the purposes of this code and those regulations. Departures from 

the hearing authority upon a finding by the engineering director that the departures 

will not create hazardous conditions for vehicular or pedestrian traffic. Nothing 

contained in this subsection shall be interpreted as providing flexibility to 

regulations other than those specifically encompassed in this code. 

Finding: ODOT rail has indicated that fencing along the south property line will need to 

meet their requirements consisting of chain link or wrought iron picket. The applicant’s 

material notes that building height for the three house designs is 29’ 11 3/8’ which meets 

the 30 foot maximum. Yards meet the requirement for space on the same lot with a 

building, unoccupied and unobstructed from a point 30 inches above grade upward. Lot 

width and frontage meets the 25 foot requirement. Lot depth requirements are met and lot 

is conditioned as noted later in this report. The number of off-street parking spaces are 

conditioned as noted later in this report. Front yard setbacks will be 15 feet, setback of 20 

feet to the garage, and 5 feet setback for interior yards.  

The applicant is proposing the following modification under the allowances of this section of 

the NDC.  

The applicant is proposing to adjust the following code requirements: 

 

1. Lot area requirements under NDC 15.405 to reduce the minimum lot size 

so that the development would be more compatible with the target density 

of the Medium Density Residential Comprehensive Plan designation. The 

required base R-2 lot size is 3,000 square feet. The proposed lot sizes 

range from 1,823 to 3,637 square feet. There will be additional 

modifications to this lot size range for Lots 9 and 10 based on discussions 

with the applicant that the lot perimeters need to expand to the west to the 

cul-de-sac bulb pinch point with the sites perimeter boundary. This 23

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=303
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

modification reduces the size of Tract A where the water quality facility will 

be located. The applicant shall modify the proposed lot area (size) for Lots 

9 and 10 so that the lots are to the cul-de-sac bulb pinch point with the sites 

perimeter boundary. 

 

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to because 

the requested flexibility to development code requirements are allowed under the NDC 

PUD regulations and it has been determined by City Staff that no hazardous conditions 

have been created by allowing the aforementioned requested flexibility. 

 

J. Lot Coverage. Maximum permitted lot and parking area coverage as provided in 

this code shall not be exceeded unless specifically permitted by the hearing 

authority in accordance with these regulations. 

Finding: The subject property is zoned R-2. The applicant has stated that the proposal 

meets the required lot and parking coverage standards. Under Section 15.405.030(B)(1)(b) 

the maximum lot coverage is 50% and under 15.405.030(B)(2) maximum parking coverage 

is 30%. The maximum combined lot and parking coverage allowed under Section 

15.405.030(b)(3) is 60%. 

A lot coverage table was submitted to determine if the requirements have been met. The 

coverage for Lots 9 and 10 are under question based on where the actual property 

boundaries are located in relation to Tract A. as noted in section I. Modification of Certain 

Regulations above. The applicant has also noted that the respective proposed units may 

shift on the lots based on what units may get constructed. Because of the modifications to 

the lot area for Lots 9 and 10 and no drawings on lot coverage were provided the applicant 

shall provide lot coverage calculation for buildings, parking and combined building and 

parking at the tie of submittal of building plans and shall meet the requirements of 

15.405.030(B)(1)(b), 15.405.030(B)(2), and 15.405.030(b)(3). 

K. Height. Unless determined by the hearing authority that intrusion of structures 

into the sun exposure plane will not adversely affect the occupants or potential 

occupants of adjacent properties, all buildings and structures shall be constructed 

within the area contained between lines illustrating the sun exposure plane (see 

Appendix A, Figure 8 and the definition of “sun exposure plane” in NMC 15.05.030). 

The hearing authority may further modify heights to: 

1. Protect lines of sight and scenic vistas from greater encroachment than would 

occur as a result of conventional development. 

2. Protect lines of sight and scenic vistas. 

3. Enable the project to satisfy required findings for approval. 

 

24

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=179
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=279
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=279
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=279
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg1505.html#15.05.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Finding: The applicant indicates that Lot 1 – Lot 5 should apply to the sun exposure plane 

requirements and Lot 6 through Lot 18 should be exempt. It is further noted that Lots 1 – 5 

meet the sun exposure requirements and requires buildings on these lots to have a 

maximum height of 39.93 feet.  

Exhibit K of the applicants’ narrative illustrates the sun exposure plane associated with the 

proposed homes on Lots 1 - 5. The applicants’ narrative states “As depicted by the 

Architectural Plans provided as Exhibit H through Exhibit J, the future dwellings proposed 

on Lot 1 through Lot 5 satisfy all applicable requirements of the sun exposure plane. The 

Applicant has included a 3-bedroom and 2-bedroom “solar design option” with the 

Application.” After reviewing the applicants’ diagrams it does not appear that either the 

future occupants of the Riverlands PUD or occupants of adjacent properties will be 

negatively impacted by building heights.  

The criterion is met because neither the residents of the Riverlands PUD or occupants of 

adjacent property to the north will be negatively impacted by the proposed building heights. 

L. Dedication, Improvement and Maintenance of Public Thoroughfares. Public 

thoroughfares shall be dedicated, improved and maintained as follows: 

1. Streets and Walkways. Including, but not limited to, those necessary for proper 

development of adjacent properties. Construction standards that minimize 

maintenance and protect the public health and safety, and setbacks as specified 

in NMC 15.410.050, pertaining to special setback requirements to planned rights-

of-way, shall be required. 

 

Finding: The applicant is proposing a limited residential street with a 26-foot wide public 

street and 5-foot wide sidewalk. A 6-foot wide curb tight sidewalk is proposed in the cul-de-

sac. The applicant is proposing 47-feet of public right-of-way. The proposed roadway (E 

River Court) will connect to the west side of S River Street and terminate in a cul-de-sac.  

 

This criteria is met because the public streets and walkways will be constructed to City of 

Newberg specifications, dedicated to the City and there will be no negative impact to public 

health and safety. 

 

2. Notwithstanding subsection (L)(1) of this section, a private street may be 

approved if the following standards are satisfied. 

a. An application for approval of a PUD with at least 50 dwelling units may 

include a private street and the request for a private street shall be supported 

by the evidence required by this section. The planning commission may 

approve a private street if it finds the applicant has demonstrated that the 

purpose statements in NMC15.240.010(A) through (D) are satisfied by the 

evidence in subsections (L)(2)(a)(i) through (v) of this section. 

25

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15410.html#15.410.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=106
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=229
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15240.html#15.240.010


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

i. A plan for managing on-street parking, maintenance and financing of 

maintenance of the private street, including a draft reserve study showing 

that the future homeowners association can financially maintain the private 

street; 

ii. A plan demonstrating that on- and off-street parking shall be sufficient 

for the expected parking needs and applicable codes; 

iii. Proposed conditions, covenants and restrictions that include a 

requirement that the homeowners association shall be established in 

perpetuity and shall continually employ a community management 

association whose duties shall include assisting the homeowners 

association with the private street parking management and maintenance, 

including the enforcement of parking restrictions; 

iv. Evidence that the private street is of sufficient width and construction to 

satisfy requirements of the fire marshal and city engineer; and 

v. The PUD shall be a Class I planned community as defined in ORS 

Chapter 94. 

b. If the PUD is established, the homeowners association shall provide an 

annual written report on the anniversary date of the final approval of the PUD 

approval to the community development director that includes the following: 

i. The most recent reserve study. 

ii. The name and contact information for the retained community 

management association. 

iii. A report on the condition of the private street and any plans for 

maintenance of the private street. 

 

Finding: The applicant is not proposing a private street. These criteria do not apply. 

3. Easements. As are necessary for the orderly extension of public utilities and 

bicycle and pedestrian access. 

Finding: The applicant is proposing to dedicate right-of-way to provide for the public street, 

public utilities, and sidewalks. The applicant has indicated that they are providing a 10-foot 

public utility easement along all proposed lot frontages, except around the exterior of the 

cul-de-sac bulb since no single-family homes take access from the cul-de-sac. Additionally 

the existing railroad to the south of the development and the ODOT right-of-way for the 

future Newberg-Dundee Bypass alignment to the west of the development reduces the 

need to provide a 10-foot public utility easement in the cul-de-sac bulb for franchise utilities. 

Because it is unclear if franchise utilities who typically utilize the public utility easement are 

agreeable to the exclusion of a 10-foot public utility easement adjacent to the cul-de-sac 

bulb, the applicant is required to coordinate with franchise utilities and provide a public 

utility easement width meeting the requirements of the franchise utilities with a maximum 

public utility easement of 10-feet along all property frontages as coordinated with franchise 
26

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=94
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

utility providers. The City of Newberg must be provided with documentation of the ultimate 

public utility easement locations as coordinated with and approved by the necessary 

franchise utilities prior to the approval of the final plat.  

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.  

M. Underground Utilities. Unless waived by the hearing authority, the developer shall 

locate all on-site utilities serving the proposed planned unit development 

underground in accordance with the policies, practices and rules of the serving 

utilities and the Public Utilities Commission. 

Finding: The applicant is proposing that all on-site utilities are located underground. This 

criterion is met. 

N. Usable Outdoor Living Area. All dwelling units shall be served by outdoor living 

areas as defined in this code. Unless waived by the hearing authority, the outdoor 

living area must equal at least 10 percent of the gross floor area of each unit. So long 

as outdoor living area is available to each dwelling unit, other outdoor living space 

may be offered for dedication to the city, in fee or easement, to be incorporated in a 

city-approved recreational facility. A portion or all of a dedicated area may be 

included in calculating density if permitted under these regulations. 

Finding: The applicants’ narrative states “as depicted in Exhibit H through Exhibit J, the 

future gross floor area to be sited on lots with the Planned Unit Development is 720 SF. As 

such, Section 15.240.020.N. requires each lot to provide a minimum of 72.0 SF (10% of 

720 SF) of outdoor living area. In satisfaction of this requirement, the smallest backyard 

areas in the proposed Planned Unit Development, being that of Lot 11 through 17, is 178 

SF (5.67-ft by 31.5 ft.” 

The applicant’s architectural plans indicate that the proposed homes will be three story 
units but no stated gross square footage for the units is indicated that encompasses the 
three floors. The applicant has not asked for a waiver. Based on staff review the gross floor 
area of the proposed units cannot be determined but appears that the first floor is a 
maximum of 720 square feet. The area for Lots 9 and 10 are also in questions as to where 
the actual property line will be located that impacts the outdoor living area calculation. 
 
The applicant submitted supplemental information on January 20, 2020 addressing the 
Usable Outdoor Living Area requirement. The table indicates that the 3-bdroom units have 
a livable square footage of 1,910 and required Outdoor Living Area of 191 square feet. For 
the 3-bedroom solar units livable square footage is 1,847 and outdoor living area required 
is 185 square feet. Finally, for the 2-bedroom solar units livable square footage is 1,847 and 
outdoor living area required is 185 square feet. 
 

This criterion is met because each dwelling unit will have more than the required 10 percent 

of the gross floor area of each unit dedicated as usable outdoor living area. 27

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=213
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=106
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=213
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=213
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=148
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=213
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=213
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=143
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=213
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=106
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

O. Site Modification. Unless otherwise provided in preliminary plan approval, 

vegetation, topography and other natural features of parcels proposed for 

development shall remain substantially unaltered pending final plan approval. 

Finding: The applicants’ narrative states “… unless otherwise provided in Preliminary Plan 
approval, natural features of the subject property will remain substantially unaltered 
pending Final Plan approval.” As noted in the applicant’s narrative there are several trees 
on the site that will be removed as part of the development. The removal of the trees are 
approved and there are no additional vegetation, topography and natural features 
remaining on the site.  
This criterion is met. 

P. Completion of Required Landscaping. If required landscaping cannot be 

completed prior to occupancy, or as otherwise required by a condition of approval, 

the director may require the applicant to post a performance bond of a sufficient 

amount and time to assure timely completion. 

Finding: This criterion is met because the applicants’ narrative acknowledges the 

requirement to complete the landscaping prior to occupancy, or as conditioned and that the 

director may require the applicant to post a performance bond of a sufficient amount and 

time to assure timely completion of the landscaping. 

Q. Design Standards. The proposed development shall meet the design requirements 

for multifamily residential projects identified in NMC 15.220.060. A minimum of 40 

percent of the required points shall be obtained in each of the design categories.  

Finding: The applicant provided analysis on compliance with NMC 15.220.060. Staff 

believes this criterion does not apply to the proposed PUD as no multifamily dwellings are 

proposed and because the project is within the Riverfront District it has a separate set of 

design standards. 

15.240.030 Preliminary plan consideration – Step one. 

B. Application. An application, with the required fee, for preliminary plan approval 

shall be made by the owner of the affected property, or the owner’s authorized agent, 

on a form prescribed by and submitted to the director. Applications, accompanied by 

such additional copies as requested by the director for purposes of referral, shall 

contain or have attached sufficient information as prescribed by the director to allow 

processing and review in accordance with these regulations. As part of the 

application, the property owner requesting the planned development shall file a 

waiver stating that the owner will not file any demand against the city under Ballot 

Measure 49, approved November 6, 2007, that amended ORS Chapters 195 and 197 

based on the city’s decision on the planned development. 

28

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15220.html#15.220.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=214
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=195
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=197
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Finding: The applicant has paid the required fee for a PUD review and the application was 

made by the property owner. Application material with sufficient information and a sufficient 

number of copies were provided to the city for referral reviews by other agencies and 

departments. The applicant has provided a Measure 49 waiver. 

This criterion is met because the applicant has paid the required fee, submitted the required 

material for review of the project and a signed Measure 49 waiver. 

C. Type III Review and Decision Criteria. Preliminary plan consideration shall be 

reviewed through the Type III procedure. Decisions shall include review and 

recognition of the potential impact of the entire development, and preliminary 

approval shall include written affirmative findings that: 

1. The proposed development is consistent with standards, plans, policies and 

ordinances adopted by the city; and 

 

Finding: The applicant has provided a Type III review application. As this report details, the 

proposed development is consistent with standards, plans, policies and ordinances adopted 

by the City of Newberg. In some cases conditions of approval are noted in order to address 

any deficiencies. 

This criterion is met because the proposed development is consistent with standards, 

plans, policies and ordinances adopted by the city or is conditioned in order to be 

consistent with such requirements. 

2. The proposed development’s general design and character, including but not 

limited to anticipated building locations, bulk and height, location and distribution 

of recreation space, parking, roads, access and other uses, will be reasonably 

compatible with appropriate development of abutting properties and the 

surrounding neighborhood; and 

Finding: No information was provided on the house footprints in the proposed PUD beyond 

narrative statements on compliance with applicable code requirements. Architectural 

drawings have been provided. There is a single family home to the north, industrial 

development to the east, a vacant parcel with a railroad line to the south and the Newberg-

Dundee Bypass to the west and northwest. Staff in prior sections of this report has raised 

questions about lot and parking coverage, and street trees in the cul-de-sac and suggested 

conditions of approval. The anticipated location of the buildings, bulk and height, parking 

and access will be reasonably compatible with abutting properties and the surrounding 

neighborhood. 

This criterion is met by way of the design of the PUD and its compatibility with existing 

surrounding land use as conditioned. 

29

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

3. Public services and facilities are available to serve the proposed development. 

If such public services and facilities are not at present available, an affirmative 

finding may be made under this criterion if the evidence indicates that the public 

services and facilities will be available prior to need by reason of: 

a. Public facility planning by the appropriate agencies; or 

b. A commitment by the applicant to provide private services and facilities 

adequate to accommodate the projected demands of the project; or 

c. Commitment by the applicant to provide for offsetting all added public costs 

or early commitment of public funds made necessary by the development; and 

 

Finding: City Staff have evaluated the Riverlands PUD and have found that adequate 

public services and facilities are available to serve the development. Referrals were sent 

out for review by outside agencies as well as internal City of Newberg departments, no 

issues were noted by any of the reviewers that could not be addressed with conditions of 

approval. Comments from referral reviewers have been incorporated into this report. As 

demonstrated throughout these findings, the provisions and conditions of this code have 

been met. 

These criteria are met as demonstrated through the applicants’ submittal and the evaluation 

by City Staff of the applicants’ submittal. 

4. The provisions and conditions of this code have been met; and 

Finding: As demonstrated throughout these findings and conditions, the provisions and 

conditions of this code have been met. 

This criterion is met as demonstrated through the applicants’ submittal and the evaluation 

by City Staff of the applicants’ submittal. 

5. Proposed buildings, roads, and other uses are designed and sited to ensure 

preservation of features, and other unique or worthwhile natural features and to 

prevent soil erosion or flood hazard; and 

Finding: There are no natural features or flood hazard designation on the site. The 

buildings, roads and water quality facility are located to address the sites features and will 

address soil erosion.  

This criterion is met because the design of the PUD and placement of houses will soil 

erosion. 

6. There will be adequate on-site provisions for utility services, emergency 

vehicular access, and, where appropriate, public transportation facilities; and 

30

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=129
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Finding: The PUD provides utility services, and allows for emergency vehicular access on 

the local limited residential cul-de-sac street and S River Street. There currently is no public 

transit facilities in the area. TVF&R has noted that the curb to curb width is 26 feet and 

does not allow parking on either side of the roadway to ensure emergency vehicle access. 

This criterion is met because the proposed development has been reviewed by various 

agencies and internal City of Newberg Departments, which have determined that there are 

adequate on-site provisions for utilities and emergency vehicle access. 

7. Sufficient usable recreation facilities, outdoor living area, open space, and 

parking areas will be conveniently and safely accessible for use by residents of 

the proposed development; and 

Finding: The proposed 18 lot PUD does not provide recreational opportunities within the 

PUD. Recreation space is available at Rogers Landing south of the site approximately 0.07 

miles and at Scott Levitt Park is 0.3 miles northeast of the site on E Eleventh Street and 

Ewing Yong Park 0.8 miles west of the site. Outdoor living space is provided for each lot in 

the front and back yards that meets requirements. Parking will not be allowed on the local 

residential street due to its 26 foot width, but parking will be allowed in the cul-de-sac 

portion of the local residential street. Parking is accessible by residents of the development. 

This criterion is met because the applicant has demonstrated that there will be sufficient 

usable recreation facilities, outdoor living area, open space and parking areas. 

8. Proposed buildings, structures, and uses will be arranged, designed, and 

constructed so as to take into consideration the surrounding area in terms of 

access, building scale, bulk, design, setbacks, heights, coverage, landscaping 

and screening, and to assure reasonable privacy for residents of the development 

and surrounding properties. 

Finding: No information was provided on the house footprints in the proposed PUD beyond 

narrative statements on compliance with applicable code requirements. Architectural 

drawings have been provided. There is a single family home to the north, industrial 

development to the east, a vacant parcel with a railroad line to the south and the Newberg-

Dundee Bypass to the west and northwest. Staff in prior sections of this report has raised 

questions about lot and parking coverage, and street trees in the cul-de-sac and suggested 

conditions of approval. The anticipated location of the buildings, bulk and height, parking 

and access will be reasonably compatible with abutting properties and the surrounding 

neighborhood. 

This criterion is met by way of the design of the PUD and its compatibility with existing 

surrounding land uses as conditioned. 

31

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=213
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=211.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=273
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

D. Conditions. Applications may be approved subject to conditions necessary to 

fulfill the purpose and provisions of these regulations.  

Finding: Exhibit “B”, Conditions of Approval, can be found in the next section of this report. 

With the implementation of the conditions the proposed PUD will fulfill the purpose and 

provisions of these regulations, therefore, this criterion is met. 

15.220.030 Site design review requirements. 
14. Traffic Study. A traffic study shall be submitted for any project that generates 
in excess of 40 trips per p.m. peak hour. This requirement may be waived by the 
director when a determination is made that a previous traffic study adequately 
addresses the proposal and/or when off-site and frontage improvements have 
already been completed which adequately mitigate any traffic impacts and/or the 
proposed use is not in a location which is adjacent to an intersection which is 
functioning at a poor level of service. A traffic study may be required by the 
director for projects below 40 trips per p.m. peak hour where the use is located 
immediately adjacent to an intersection functioning at a poor level of service. The 
traffic study shall be conducted according to the City of Newberg design 
standards. [Ord. 2619, 5-16-05; Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. Code 2001 § 151.192.] 
 

Finding:  The applicant is proposing a 18-lot single family residential development. The ITE 

Trip Code for Single-Family Detached Housing is No. 210. The weekday PM Peak Hour 

average trip rate for Single-Family Detached Housing is 1.0. The applicant’s development is 

anticipated to create 18 PM Peak Hour trips which is below the 40-trips per PM Peak Hour 

threshold which would require a traffic study. Therefore a traffic study is not required.  

 

This criterion does not apply because the proposed project does not meet the threshold of 

over 40 trips per p.m. peak hour. 

 
15.305.020 Zoning use table – Use districts. 

Finding: The subject property is zoned R-2/RD Medium Density Residential/Riverfront 
District. Table 15.305.020 lists single family residential as a use permitted by right. 

This criterion is met because Table 15.305.020 lists single family residential as a use by 
right in the R-2/RD Zoning District. 
 

15.440.010 Required off-street parking. 

A. Off-street parking shall be provided on the development site for all R-1, C-1, M-1, 

M-2 and M-3 zones. In all other zones, the required parking shall be on the 

development site or within 400 feet of the development site which the parking is 

required to serve. All required parking must be under the same ownership as the 

development site served except through special covenant agreements as approved 

by the city attorney, which bind the parking to the development site. 

 32

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2619.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2451.pdf
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=94
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=94
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=94
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=94
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=94


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Finding: No information has been provided on the location of parking other than a 

statement that parking is provided and meets the requirement. Supplemental material 

submitted on January 20, 2020 notes that one garage space and one surface space in front 

of the garage will be provided for each house. Because no drawings have been provided to 

show compliance with 15.440.010 the applicant shall provide drawings at the time of 

building permit submittal to show compliance with parking requirements of 15.440.010. 

 

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

 

15.440.030 Parking spaces required. 

Use Minimum Parking Spaces Required 

Residential Types 

Dwelling, single-family or two-

family 

2 for each dwelling unit on a single 

lot  

Notes: 

*    “1-E” refers to fraternities, sororities, cooperatives and dormitories that require one parking space 

for each three occupants for whom sleeping facilities are provided. 

**    “3.-G(1)” refers to establishments or enterprises of a recreational or an entertainment nature 

(spectator type, e.g., auditoriums, assembly halls, theaters, stadiums, places of public assembly) that 

require one parking space for each four seats. 

 

Finding: The applicant is proposing single-family dwelling units, which will require 2 

parking spots for each dwelling unit on a single lot. The applicant has stated parking will be 

provided. Supplemental material submitted on January 20, 2020 notes that one garage 

space and one surface space in front of the garage will be provided for each house. 

Because no drawings have been provided to show compliance with 15.440.030 the 

applicant shall provide drawings at the time of building permit submittal to show compliance 

with parking requirements of 15.440.030. 

 

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

 

If parking is proposed in part to be within a garage the garage has interior wall dimension 

requirements of a single-car garage shall have a minimum inside width of 10 feet by 20 

feet. A two-car garage shall have a minimum inside width of 20 feet by 20 feet. 

Supplemental material submitted on January 20, 2020 notes that single car garages are 

proposed and meet the 10 feet by 20 feet requirement. The requirement is met. 

 

Chapter 15.352.030 The riverfront plan general provisions. 

 

A. Report Adopted. The Newberg Riverfront Master Plan Final Report, dated June 29, 

2001, is adopted by reference. The development standards listed in this chapter shall 33

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=104
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=106
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=60
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=60
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=60
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

take precedence over those listed in the report. If ambiguity exists, this code shall 

govern. 

 

Finding: The Riverfront Master Plan has been considered by the applicant and addressed 

by this report. 

 

B. Permitted Uses and Conditional Uses. The permitted and conditional uses allowed 

under the RF overlay subdistrict shall be the same as those uses permitted in the 

base zoning districts. 

 

Finding: Single family residential development is permitted in the R-2/RD overlay and 

meets the requirement. 

 

C. Street, Bike Path, and Pedestrian Walkway Standards. All development 

improvements shall comply with standards contained in the circulation and 

transportation element of the Newberg riverfront master plan. 

 

Finding: The 2002 Riverfront Master Plan identifies a concept circulation plan with the 

following element identified adjacent to the subject property, “River Street from Eleventh 

south to Fourteenth: Widen street to 42-foot width, including curbs, two 14-foot shared 

bike/traffic lanes, two 7-foot parking lanes. Add pedestrian connections (sidewalks or 

pathways) on east and west sides. Construction cost: $450,000”. This project from the 2002 

Riverfront Master Plan was not incorporated into the City’s Transportation System Plan 

(TSP) when it was updated in 2016, therefore, the cross-section for S River Street shall 

match the 2016 TSP not the cross-section noted above from the 2002 Riverfront Master 

Plan. The applicant has indicated constructing the S River Street cross-section to a major 

collector street standard as described in the response to NMC 15.505.030(E)(2) in this 

document. This criteria is met. 

 

D. View Corridors. Designated key views shall be protected. Key views include the 

view from the top of the bluff on parcel 12 as noted in Figure 2 of the riverfront 

master plan, the view from the top of the bluff south of Fourteenth Street generally 

between College and River Streets, and the view from the riverbank near the barge 

tie-up facility. These key views shall be protected as follows: 

1. Any development on parcel 12 as noted in Figure 2 of the riverfront master 

plan shall provide a public viewing area accessible from Fourteenth Street that 

allows views from the top of the bluff to the river. Any viewing area at this 

location may be connected to the public esplanade or the Fourteenth Street 

public sidewalk. 

 

Finding: Not applicable as the proposed PUD is not located along E Fourteenth Street. 

 34



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

2. Development along the bluff on parcels 14, 15, and 16 as noted in Figure 2 

of the riverfront master plan shall protect views of the river by providing a 

public esplanade with a public walkway easement. Standards for the 

esplanade are identified in the circulation and transportation element. 

 

Finding: Not applicable as the proposed PUD is not located along E Fourteenth Street or 

at the top of the bluff. 

 

3. Development in the vicinity of the barge tie-up facility shall protect views of 

the river by providing a public viewing area near the bank of the river. A public 

viewing area in this location may be combined with the Willamette Greenway 

Trail that will run through this location. 

 

Finding: Not applicable as the proposed PUD is not located along E Fourteenth Street or 

the barge tie-up area. 

 

4. Additional important views may be identified through the land use approval 

process. Additional views identified through the land use process may be 

protected through conditions of approval. 

 

Finding: Not applicable as no additional view corridors are identified in the Riverfront 

Master Plan or in staff’s review of the application. 

 

E. Significant Tree Grove. The area containing the significant tree grove located 

north of Fourteenth Street and between College and River Streets shall be preserved. 

 

Finding: Not applicable as the proposed development is not located on the site where the 

significant tree grove is identified in the Riverfront Master Plan. 

 

F. Visual/Noise Buffer. A visual/noise buffer shall be developed along River Street in 

such a manner as to: 

1. Promote the protection of SP Newsprint, or current owner of paper mill, 

from uses that may complain against or otherwise hinder the operation of this 

important industrial facility due to visual and noise impacts; and 

2. Enhance the vitality and qualities of the land uses within the Newberg 

riverfront; 

3. Hardscape designs such as sound walls and similar barriers should only be 

located on the east side of River Street. Buffers located on the west side of 

River Street shall be designed in such a manner as to serve as a gateway to 

invite and attract people into the riverfront area. 

 

35



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Finding: The applicant is proposing to plant arborvitae along the eastern boundary of the 

PUD along S River Street to provide a buffer to the industrial designated land to the east of 

S River Street. The criteria are met. 

 

G. Separate Rail Traffic from Other Modes. Major transportation improvements shall 

be designed with considerations intended to separate rail traffic from other modes of 

transportation. 

 
Finding: The applicant’s proposed frontage improvements are adjacent to the existing 
railroad line. The frontage improvements and roadway widening are part of a larger 
transportation improvement project within the City of Newberg to develop the Riverside 
Master Plan. Through discussions with the Oregon Department of Transportation Rail 
Division in a rail diagnostic meeting that occurred on January 14, 2019, it was determined 
that eventually the rail crossing adjacent to this project site would require rail crossing arms 
and a fully signalized rail crossing. It’s anticipated that the footprint of these future 
improvements could impact Lot 18. Because these future improvements to separate rail 
traffic from other modes of transportation could impact Lot 18, the applicant will be required 
to develop a concept plan of the future rail crossing improvements as discussed in the rail 
diagnostic meeting  on January 14, 2019, to determine the potential future site impacts to 
Lot 18 to avoid constructing a permanent structure that would inhibit the future separation 
of rail traffic from other modes of transportation i.e. motor vehicle traffic, pedestrians, and 
people on bikes.  

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.  

 

H. Esplanade Development. Prior to the development of the riverfront esplanade, a 

slope stability and flood study shall be performed.  

 

Finding: Not applicable to the PUD application as the site is not located adjacent to the 

location of the esplanade. 

 

15.352.050 Residential Design Standards. 

 

A. Single-Family Dwellings. 

1. For single-family dwellings, including manufactured homes on individual lots, at 

least two of the following design features must be provided on the street-facing 

facade: 

a. Covered front porch at least six feet in width and length. 

b. Eaves (minimum 12-inch overhang). 

c. Bay or bow windows. 

d. Dormers. 

e. Window shutters. 

f. Cupolas. 
36



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

g. Horizontal lap siding. 

 

Finding: The application material notes that Eaves (minimum 12-inch overhang and 

horizontal lap siding are provided on the homes two meet the minimum of two design 

features. The criterion is met. 

 

2. T1-11 and all other wood-based “full sheet” or panel-type siding is 

prohibited on elevations visible from public rights-of-way. 

 

Finding: The application material notes that T1-11 and all other wood-based “full sheet” or 

panel-type siding is not proposed on elevations visible from public rights-of-way and meet 

the criterion. 

 

B. Attached and Multifamily Dwellings. The intent of the standards is to provide for 

multifamily development of a smaller-scale character that is compatible with the 

vision contained in the riverfront master plan. The standards are intended to require 

larger developments to be compatible with single-family detached housing by 

requiring the building to have a massing and appearance that are consistent with a 

single-family house or townhouse. 

1. For multifamily or attached housing, each dwelling unit shall be emphasized 

by providing a unique element on the street-facing elevation. Examples of 

such elements include roof dormers, roof gables, bay windows, porches, and 

balconies. 

 

Finding: This criterion does not apply as the proposed development is for detached single 

family homes and not attached or multifamily dwellings. 

 

2. Each dwelling unit with windows facing the street frontage shall also have an 

exterior entrance on the street-facing elevation. Dwelling units on the corner of an 

intersection shall only be required to meet this standard on one street-facing 

elevation. 

 
Finding: This criterion does not apply as the proposed development is for detached single 
family homes and not attached or multifamily dwellings. 

3. Individual units shall be articulated either with a change in roof line or in 

building plane at an interval of no more than 40 feet. Roof line offsets shall be 

a minimum four-foot variation vertically as measured from the gutter line. 

Gable ends facing the street shall be considered to provide a roof line offset. 

Building plane offsets shall be a minimum of three feet. 

 
Finding: This criterion does not apply as the proposed development is for detached single 

37



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

family homes and not attached or multifamily dwellings. 

4. For multifamily dwellings and all nonresidential structures in residential 

districts, at least two of the following design features must be provided: 

a. Covered front porch at least six feet in width and length for each 

individual unit that faces a public street. If a covered front porch is 

provided to serve two or more units, the porch must provide not less 

than 30 square feet of area for each unit served within a single building 

and have a minimum width of six feet. 

b. Eaves (minimum 12-inch overhang). 

c. Bay or bow windows. 

d. Dormers. 

e. Window shutters. 

f. Cupolas. 

g. Horizontal lap siding. 

 
Finding: This criterion does not apply as the proposed development is for detached single 
family homes and not attached or multifamily dwellings. 

5. T1-11 and all other wood-based “full sheet” or panel-type siding is prohibited on 

elevations visible from public rights-of-way. 

 
Finding: This criterion does not apply as the proposed development is for detached single 
family homes and not attached or multifamily dwellings. 

C. Standards for Garage Doors and Parking in Residential Zones. 

1. Garage Location. All residential structures shall have a pedestrian entrance 

facing the street. When parking is provided in a garage attached to the primary 

structure, and garage doors face a street, the following standards must be 

met: 

a. The garage must not be more than 40 percent of the length of the 

street-facing facade or 12 feet wide, whichever is greater. 

 

Finding: Submitted Architectural drawings represent a pedestrian entrance facing the 

street (E River Court) for all three house designs. The garages are 9 feet in width. The front 

facade is 21 feet for all three house designs. 40% of he faced would be 8.4 feet. The 9 feet 

garage door width is less than 12 feet and meets the criterion. 

 

b. The front of the garage can be no closer to the front lot line than the 

front facade of the house. 

 

38



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Finding: Submitted Architectural drawings for all three house designs indicate that that the 

garage is no closer to the front line than the front façade of the house and meet the 

criterion. 

 

c. Individual garage doors may be no more than 90 square feet in area. 

 

Finding: Submitted Architectural drawings and the written narrative indicate that the 

garage doors for the three house designs is 72 square feet each and meets the criterion. 

 

d. There may be no more than two individual garage doors located side 

by side without being separated by a space not less than 20 feet. 

 

Finding: Submitted Architectural drawings and the written narrative indicate the three 

house designs have single car garages and not side by side garages and meets the 

criterion. 

 

2. Surface parking areas shall be located behind or to the side of residential 

structures. 

 

Finding: No surface parking beyond the driveway to access the garage is proposed by the 

three houses designs and meets the criterion. 

 

3. If carports are provided on surface lots, they must be of an architectural 

design that is compatible with the dwelling structure, and be constructed of 

similar materials.  

 

Finding: This criterion does not apply as the proposed development is not proposing 

carports. 

Chapter 15.505 PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS STANDARDS  

15.505.010 Purpose. 
This chapter provides standards for public infrastructure and utilities installed with 
new development, consistent with the policies of the City of Newberg comprehensive 
plan and adopted city master plans. The standards are intended to minimize 
disturbance to natural features, promote energy conservation and efficiency, 
minimize and maintain development impacts on surrounding properties and 
neighborhoods, and ensure timely completion of adequate public facilities to serve 
new development.  

15.505.020 Applicability. 

The provision and utilization of public facilities and services within the City of 

Newberg shall apply to all land developments in accordance with this chapter. No 
39

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=79
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

development shall be approved unless the following improvements are provided for 

prior to occupancy or operation, unless future provision is assured in accordance 

with NMC 15.505.030(E). 

A. Public Works Design and Construction Standards. The design and construction of 

all improvements within existing and proposed rights-of-way and easements, all 

improvements to be maintained by the city, and all improvements for which city 

approval is required shall comply with the requirements of the most recently adopted 

Newberg public works design and construction standards. 

 

Finding: The preliminary plans show the installation of a new public limited residential 

street. Other improvements not limited to water, wastewater, and stormwater infrastructure 

are also included in the applicant’s plans. These improvements requiring City approval shall 

comply with the City’s Public Works Design and Construction Standards. Some 

improvements may require approval from other agencies.  

 

The City of Newberg received comments on the land-use application from the ODOT Rail 

Division on January 8, 2019. ODOT Rail indicated that the applicant would need to submit a 

rail crossing application and obtain appropriate permitting for modifications to the area of 

influence within the public right-of-way proximate to the existing rail crossing 1505.  

 

Because permitting was not discussed in detail in the applicant’s narrative, public utility 

infrastructure improvements not limited to street improvements, water, wastewater, and 

stormwater will require completed permits from partner agencies to authorize different work 

tasks. Issuance of required permits for roadway work and work associated with the ODOT 

rail crossing adjacent to the development, etc. not limited to the agencies of Yamhill 

County, the State of Oregon, and the Federal Government will be required prior to the City 

of Newberg issuing a Public Improvement Permit. 

 

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.  

 

B. Street Improvements. All projects subject to a Type II design review, partition, or 

subdivision approval must construct street improvements necessary to serve the 

development. 

 
Finding: The preliminary plans and narrative indicate the applicant will be installing a 
limited residential street with 47-feet of right-of-way, 26-foot curb-to-curb, 5-foot wide 
sidewalks along E River Court, and 6-foot wide curb tight sidewalks along the cul-de-sac 
bulb.  

This criterion will be met if all improvements necessary to serve the development are 
completed, see conditions in Section 15.505.030. 

40

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15505.html#15.505.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

C. Water. All developments, lots, and parcels within the City of Newberg shall be 

served by the municipal water system as specified in Chapter 13.15 NMC. 

 

Finding: The preliminary plans show a connection to the existing water line in S River 

Street, and extension of a public water line through the development with a blow off located 

on the western end of the alignment.  

This criterion will be met if all water improvements necessary to service the development 

are completed, see conditions in Section 15.505.040(D).   

D. Wastewater. All developments, lots, and parcels within the City of Newberg shall 

be served by the municipal wastewater system as specified in Chapter 13.10 NMC. 

 
Finding: The preliminary plans show an extension of the wastewater line in S River Street 
approximately 210-feet north of the development before extending to the west along the 
proposed limited residential street (E River Court).  

This criterion will be met if all wastewater improvements necessary to service the 
development are completed, see conditions in Section 15.505.040(E).   

E. Stormwater. All developments, lots, and parcels within the City of Newberg shall 

manage stormwater runoff as specified in Chapters 13.20 and 13.25 NMC. 

 

Finding: The applicant’s narrative indicates the applicant will be creating a public 

stormwater tract to treat new impervious surface areas created by the development. The 

stormwater facility will then drain into the storm line in S River Street.  

 

This criterion will be met if all stormwater improvements necessary to service the 

development are completed, see conditions in Section 15.505.050.   

 

F. Utility Easements. Utility easements shall be provided as necessary and required 

by the review body to provide needed facilities for present or future development of 

the area. 

 
Finding: The applicant’s narrative indicates that all public utilities are to be constructed in 
the new street right-of-way or in Tract A. The applicant has also indicated that public utility 
easements are located along all proposed lots.  

This criterion will be met if all easements necessary to service the development are 
completed, see conditions in Section 15.505.040(F).  

G. City Approval of Public Improvements Required. No building permit may be 
issued until all required public facility improvements are in place and approved by 
the director, or are otherwise bonded for in a manner approved by the review 
authority, in conformance with the provisions of this code and the Newberg Public 41

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg13/Newberg1315.html#13.15
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg13/Newberg1310.html#13.10
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg13/Newberg1320.html#13.20
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg13/Newberg1325.html#13.25
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Works Design and Construction Standards.  

 
Finding: This criterion will be verified to have been met during the building permit review 
process. 

15.505.030 Street standards. 

A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to: 

1. Provide for safe, efficient, and convenient multi-modal transportation within the 

City of Newberg. 

2. Provide adequate access to all proposed and anticipated developments in the 

City of Newberg. For purposes of this section, “adequate access” means direct 

routes of travel between destinations; such destinations may include residential 

neighborhoods, parks, schools, shopping areas, and employment centers. 

3. Provide adequate area in all public rights-of-way for sidewalks, wastewater and 

water lines, stormwater facilities, natural gas lines, power lines, and other utilities 

commonly and appropriately placed in such rights-of-way. For purposes of this 

section, “adequate area” means space sufficient to provide all required public 

services to standards defined in this code and in the Newberg public works 

design and construction standards. 

 

B. Applicability. The provisions of this section apply to: 

1. The creation, dedication, and/or construction of all public streets, bike 

facilities, or pedestrian facilities in all subdivisions, partitions, or other 

developments in the City of Newberg. 

2. The extension or widening of existing public street rights-of-way, easements, 

or street improvements including those which may be proposed by an individual 

or the city, or which may be required by the city in association with other 

development approvals. 

3. The construction or modification of any utilities, pedestrian facilities, or bike 

facilities in public rights-of-way or easements. 

4. The designation of planter strips. Street trees are required subject to Chapter 

15.420 NMC. 

5. Developments outside the city that tie into or take access from city streets. 

C. Layout of Streets, Alleys, Bikeways, and Walkways. Streets, alleys, bikeways, and 

walkways shall be laid out and constructed as shown in the Newberg transportation 

system plan. In areas where the transportation system plan or future street plans do 

not show specific transportation improvements, roads and streets shall be laid out 

so as to conform to previously approved subdivisions, partitions, and other 

developments for adjoining properties, unless it is found in the public interest to 

modify these patterns. Transportation improvements shall conform to the standards 

within the Newberg Municipal Code, the Newberg public works design and 

42

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=256
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15420.html#15.420
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

construction standards, the Newberg transportation system plan, and other adopted 

city plans. 

D. Construction of New Streets. Where new streets are necessary to serve a new 

development, subdivision, or partition, right-of-way dedication and full street 

improvements shall be required. Three-quarter streets may be approved in lieu of full 

street improvements when the city finds it to be practical to require the completion 

of the other one-quarter street improvement when the adjoining property is 

developed; in such cases, three-quarter street improvements may be allowed by the 

city only where all of the following criteria are met: 

1. The land abutting the opposite side of the new street is undeveloped and not 

part of the new development; and 

2. The adjoining land abutting the opposite side of the street is within the city 

limits and the urban growth boundary. 

 
Finding: The applicant is proposing to construct a new limited residential street. The 
applicant has proposed the following cross-section which requires a minimum of 47-feet of 
right-of-way: 

• 1-foot from back of walk to right-of-way 
• 5-foot sidewalk 
• 4.5-foot planter strip 
• 0.5-foot curb 
• 13-foot travel lane 
• 13-foot travel lane 
• 0.5-foot curb 
• 4.5-foot planter strip 
• 5-foot sidewalk 
• 1-foot from back of walk to right-of-way  

 
The applicant’s proposed roadway cross-section and dedication of right-of-way meets the 
City’s Standard for a limited residential street. The applicant’s narrative indicates that 
they’re proposing on-street parking along one side of the limited residential street. 
However, Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue (TVF&R) has indicated their standard is to not 
allow on-street parking when the curb-to-curb pavement width is 26-feet or less. Because 
TVF&R is the City’s ire service provider and their preference is to not allow on-street 
parking on streets with a curb-to curb pavement width of 26-feet or less, the applicant will 
be required to disallow on-street parking on the limited residential street and to sign the 
street appropriately with “no parking” signage. On-street parking is allowed for in the cul-de-
sac.    
 
The criteria will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 
 

E. Improvements to Existing Streets. 

1. All projects subject to partition, subdivision, or Type II design review approval 

shall dedicate right-of-way sufficient to improve the street to the width specified 

in subsection (G) of this section. 43

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

2. All projects subject to partition, subdivision, or Type II design review approval 

must construct a minimum of a three-quarter street improvement to all existing 

streets adjacent to, within, or necessary to serve the development. The director 

may waive or modify this requirement where the applicant demonstrates that the 

condition of existing streets to serve the development meets city standards and 

is in satisfactory condition to handle the projected traffic loads from the 

development. Where a development has frontage on both sides of an existing 

street, full street improvements are required. 

 

Finding: The applicant is proposing to widen S River Street adjacent to their development 

and to construct improvements that meet the City’s standards for a major collector street. 

The applicant has proposed the following half-street improvement cross-section which 

requires a minimum of 30-feet of right of way: 

 

• 1-foot from back of walk to right-of-way 

• 5-foot sidewalk 

• 5.5-foot planter strip 

• 0.5-foot curb 

• 6-foot bike lane (southbound) 

• 12-foot travel lane (southbound) 

 

In addition to constructing the cross-section for the major collector street, the applicant is 

proposing a 4-foot grind and inlay to the east of the road centerline. The applicant’s 

proposed roadway cross-section meets the City’s Standard for a major collector street. This 

requirement is met. 

 

3. In lieu of the street improvement requirements outlined in NMC 15.505.040(B), 

the review authority may elect to accept from the applicant monies to be placed in 

a fund dedicated to the future reconstruction of the subject street(s). The amount 

of money deposited with the city shall be 100 percent of the estimated cost of the 

required street improvements (including any associated utility improvements), 

and 10 percent of the estimated cost for inflation. Cost estimates used for this 

purpose shall be based on preliminary design of the constructed street provided 

by the applicant’s engineer and shall be approved by the director. 

 

Finding: The applicant’s property is not located on a street scheduled for a near term 

reconstruction and therefore a fee in lieu for improvements is not applicable.  

 

This criterion does not apply. 

 

F. Improvements Relating to Impacts. Improvements required as a condition of 

development approval shall be roughly proportional to the impact of the 44

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15505.html#15.505.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

development on public facilities and services. The review body must make findings 

in the development approval that indicate how the required improvements are 

roughly proportional to the impact. Development may not occur until required 

transportation facilities are in place or guaranteed, in conformance with the 

provisions of this code. If required transportation facilities cannot be put in place or 

be guaranteed, then the review body shall deny the requested land use application. 

Finding: There are no improvements related to impacts identified as part of this proposed 

action, therefore, this criterion does not apply. 

 

G. Street Width and Design Standards. 

1. Design Standards. All streets shall conform with the standards contained in 

Table 15.505.030(G). Where a range of values is listed, the director shall 

determine the width based on a consideration of the total street section width 

needed, existing street widths, and existing development patterns. Preference 

shall be given to the higher value. Where values may be modified by the director, 

the overall width shall be determined using the standards under subsections 

(G)(2) through (10) of this section. 

Table 15.505.030(G) Street Design Standards 

Type of Street 
Right-of-

Way Width 

Curb-to-

Curb 

Pavement 

Width 

Motor 

Vehicle 

Travel 

Lanes 

Median 

Type 

Striped Bike 

Lane (Both 

Sides) 

On-Street 

Parking 

Arterial Streets 

Expressway** ODOT  ODOT  ODOT  ODOT  ODOT  ODOT  

Major arterial  95 – 100 feet 74 feet 4 lanes TWLTL or 

median* 

Yes No* 

Minor arterial  69 – 80 feet 48 feet 2 lanes TWLTL or 

median* 

Yes No* 

Collectors  

Major 57 – 80 feet 36 feet 2 lanes None* Yes No* 

Minor 61 – 65 feet 40 feet 2 lanes None* Yes* Yes* 

Local Streets 

Local residential 54 – 60 feet 32 feet 2 lanes None No Yes 

45

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=42
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=42
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=29
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=30
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=31
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=73
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Table 15.505.030(G) Street Design Standards 

Type of Street 
Right-of-

Way Width 

Curb-to-

Curb 

Pavement 

Width 

Motor 

Vehicle 

Travel 

Lanes 

Median 

Type 

Striped Bike 

Lane (Both 

Sides) 

On-Street 

Parking 

Limited residential, 

parking both sides 

44 – 50 feet 28 feet 2 lanes None No Yes 

Limited residential, 

parking one side 

40 – 46 feet 26 feet 2 lanes None No One side 

Local commercial/ 

industrial 

55 – 65 feet 34 feet 2 lanes None* No* Yes* 

*    May be modified with approval of the director. Modification will change overall curb-to-curb 

and right-of-way width. Where a center turn lane is not required, a landscaped median shall be 

provided instead, with turning pockets as necessary to preserve roadway functions. 

**    All standards shall be per ODOT expressway standards. 

 

2. Motor Vehicle Travel Lanes. Collector and arterial streets shall have a minimum 

width of 12 feet. 

 

Finding: The applicant is proposing a 12-foot southbound travel lane on S River Street 

which is a major collector roadway.  

 

This criterion is met. 

 

3. Bike Lanes. Striped bike lanes shall be a minimum of six feet wide. Bike lanes 

shall be provided where shown in the Newberg transportation system plan. 

 

Finding: The applicant is proposing a 6-foot southbound bike lane on S River Street which 

is a major collector roadway.  

 

This criterion is met. 

 

4. Parking Lanes. Where on-street parking is allowed on collector and arterial 

streets, the parking lane shall be a minimum of eight feet wide. 

 

Finding: The applicant will be making improvements to S River Street, a major collector 

street, adjacent to the development. No on-street parking on S River Street is proposed.  46

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=42
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=42
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=73
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=29
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=42
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=42
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=42
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=73
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=29


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

 

This criterion is met. 

 

5. Center Turn Lanes. Where a center turn lane is provided, it shall be a minimum 

of 12 feet wide. 

 

Finding: There are no center turn lanes proposed as part of this project. This criterion does 

not apply. 

6. Limited Residential Streets. Limited residential streets shall be allowed only at 

the discretion of the review authority, and only in consideration of the following 

factors: 

a. The requirements of the fire chief shall be followed. 

b. The estimated traffic volume on the street is low, and in no case more than 

600 average daily trips. 

c. Use for through streets or looped streets is preferred over cul-de-sac 

streets. 

d. Use for short blocks (under 400 feet) is preferred over longer blocks. 

e. The total number of residences or other uses accessing the street in that 

block is small, and in no case more than 30 residences. 

f. On-street parking usage is limited, such as by providing ample off-street 

parking, or by staggering driveways so there are few areas where parking is 

allowable on both sides. 

 

Finding: The applicant has indicated they will follow the requirements of the fire chief.  

The applicant has indicated that the estimated future traffic associated with the proposed 

development will generate approximately 172 average daily trips (ADT) based on ITE Trip 

Code 210. The projected number of trips (172 ADT) is less than the threshold of 600 ADT 

and therefore the traffic volume on the street is categorized a low. This criterion is met. 

The applicant has indicated that due to existing development patterns in the vicinity of the 

subject property, that continuation of the public street network through the property is 

infeasible. The property is boarded by and existing railroad to the south and the Newberg-

Dundee Bypass right-of-way to the west and northwest. The applicant is therefore 

proposing a cul-de-sac. This criterion is met. 

The applicant has indicated the dead-end right-of-way is approximately 350-feet in length. 

This criterion is met. 

The applicant’s proposal indicates that 18-lots are being created and will access the limited 

residential street. This criterion is met. 

47

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=86
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

The applicant’s proposal indicates that 18-lots are being created and each lot will have the 

required off-street parking in driveways and garages. Therefore, the need for on-street 

parking should be limited. Parking per TVF&R, will not be allowed in the 26-foot curb-to-

curb cross-section. This criterion is met. 

7. Sidewalks. Sidewalks shall be provided on both sides of all public streets. 

Minimum width is five feet. 

 

Finding: The applicant is proposing 5-foot sidewalks with a planter strip along E River 

Court and S River Street. The E River Court cul-de-sac will have a 6-foot sidewalk. 

 

This criterion is met. 

 

8. Planter Strips. Except where infeasible, a planter strip shall be provided 

between the sidewalk and the curb line, with a minimum width of five feet. This 

strip shall be landscaped in accordance with the standards in NMC 15.420.020. 

Curb-side sidewalks may be allowed on limited residential streets. Where curb-

side sidewalks are allowed, the following shall be provided: 

a. Additional reinforcement is done to the sidewalk section at corners. 

b. Sidewalk width is six feet. 

 

Finding: On S River Street the applicant is proposing a 6-foot planter strip inclusive of the 

curb, which meets City standards. On River Court the applicant is proposing a 5-foot 

planter strip inclusive of the curb. The applicant is proposing 6-foot curb tight sidewalks in 

the cul-de-sac bulb at the western terminus of E River Court and omitting the planter strip.  

 

This criterion is met. 

 

9. Slope Easements. Slope easements shall be provided adjacent to the street 

where required to maintain the stability of the street. 

 

Finding:  The applicant is not proposing a slope easement. This criterion does not apply. 

 

10. Intersections and Street Design. The street design standards in the Newberg 

public works design and construction standards shall apply to all public streets, 

alleys, bike facilities, and sidewalks in the city. 

 

Finding: The applicant is proposing to construct a new public limited residential street. 

Because the applicant has not completed an intersection sight distance evaluation of 

proposed intersection, the applicant will be required to conduct and submit an intersection 

sight distance evaluation per Section 5.23 in the Public Works Design & Construction 

Standards.   
48

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=256
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=256
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=256
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=87
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15420.html#15.420.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=256
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=256
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=256
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=256
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=256
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

 

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

 

11. The planning commission may approve modifications to street standards for 

the purpose of ingress or egress to a minimum of three and a maximum of six 

lots through a conditional use permit. 

 

Finding: The applicant is not proposing a conditional use permit. This criterion does not 

apply. 

 

H. Modification of Street Right-of-Way and Improvement Width. The director, 

pursuant to the Type II review procedures of Chapter 15.220 NMC, may allow 

modification to the public street standards of subsection (G) of this section, when 

the criteria in both subsections (H)(1) and (2) of this section are satisfied: 

1. The modification is necessary to provide design flexibility in instances where: 

a. Unusual topographic conditions require a reduced width or grade 

separation of improved surfaces; or 

b. Lot shape or configuration precludes accessing a proposed development 

with a street which meets the full standards of this section; or 

c. A modification is necessary to preserve trees or other natural features 

determined by the city to be significant to the aesthetic character of the area; 

or 

d. A planned unit development is proposed and the modification of street 

standards is necessary to provide greater privacy or aesthetic quality to the 

development. 

2. Modification of the standards of this section shall only be approved if the 

director finds that the specific design proposed provides adequate vehicular 

access based on anticipated traffic volumes. 

 

Finding: The applicant is proposing a limited residential street, and is not proposing further 

modifications to the street right-of-way or improvement width. This criterion does not apply. 

I. Temporary Turnarounds. Where a street will be extended as part of a future phase 

of a development, or as part of development of an abutting property, the street may 

be terminated with a temporary turnaround in lieu of a standard street connection or 

circular cul-de-sac bulb. The director and fire chief shall approve the temporary 

turnaround. It shall have an all-weather surface, and may include a hammerhead-type 

turnaround meeting fire apparatus access road standards, a paved or graveled 

circular turnaround, or a paved or graveled temporary access road. For streets 

extending less than 150 feet and/or with no significant access, the director may 

approve the street without a temporary turnaround. Easements or right-of-way may 

be required as necessary to preserve access to the turnaround. 
49

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=229
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=81
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15220.html#15.220
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=142
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=86
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Finding: The applicant is not proposing a temporary turnaround. This criterion does not 

apply. 

J. Topography. The layout of streets shall give suitable recognition to surrounding 

topographical conditions in accordance with the purpose of this code. 

Finding: The applicant has given suitable recognition to surrounding topographical 

conditions. This criterion is met. 

K. Future Extension of Streets. All new streets required for a subdivision, partition, 

or a project requiring site design review shall be constructed to be “to and through”: 

through the development and to the edges of the project site to serve adjacent 

properties for future development. 

Finding: The applicant’s plan and narrative show there are no possible future street 

extensions as part of this project. This criterion does not apply. 

L. Cul-de-Sacs. 

1. Cul-de-sacs shall only be permitted when one or more of the circumstances 

listed in this section exist. When cul-de-sacs are justified, public walkway 

connections shall be provided wherever practical to connect with another street, 

walkway, school, or similar destination. 

a. Physical or topographic conditions make a street connection impracticable. 

These conditions include but are not limited to controlled access streets, 

railroads, steep slopes, wetlands, or water bodies where a connection could 

not be reasonably made. 

b. Buildings or other existing development on adjacent lands physically 

preclude a connection now or in the future, considering the potential for 

redevelopment. 

c. Where streets or accessways would violate provisions of leases, 

easements, or similar restrictions. 

d. Where the streets or accessways abut the urban growth boundary and rural 

resource land in farm or forest use, except where the adjoining land is 

designated as an urban reserve area. 

2. Cul-de-sacs shall be no more than 400 feet long (measured from the centerline 

of the intersection to the radius point of the bulb). 

3. Cul-de-sacs shall not serve more than 18 single-family dwellings. 

Each cul-de-sac shall have a circular end with a minimum diameter of 96 feet, 

curb-to-curb, within a 109-foot minimum diameter right-of-way. For residential 

uses, a 35-foot radius may be allowed if the street has no parking, a mountable 

curb, curbside sidewalks, and sprinkler systems in every building along the 

street. 

 50

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=86
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=86
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=86
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=244
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=5
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=173
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=5
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=86
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=86
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=104
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=86
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=256
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Finding: The applicant has indicated that due to existing development patterns in the 

vicinity of the subject property, that continuation of the public street network through the 

property is infeasible. The property is boarded by and existing railroad to the south and the 

Newberg-Dundee Bypass right-of-way to the east. The applicant is therefore proposing a 

cul-de-sac. The cul-de-sac is approximately 350-feet in length and serves 18-single family 

dwellings. The cul-de-sac bulb has a curb-to-curb diameter of 96-feet, and a right-of-way 

diameter of 110-feet.  

 

This criterion is met. 

 

M. Street Names and Street Signs. Streets that are in alignment with existing named 

streets shall bear the names of such existing streets. Names for new streets not in 

alignment with existing streets are subject to approval by the director and the fire 

chief and shall not unnecessarily duplicate or resemble the name of any existing or 

platted street in the city. It shall be the responsibility of the land divider to provide 

street signs. 

Finding: The applicant has indicated on the plans they intend to call the new limited 

residential street E River Court. Because a street name sign has not yet been selected, the 

applicant will be required to select a street name, and install new street name signs at the 

intersection of their proposed limited residential street and S River Street. 

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

N. Platting Standards for Alleys. 

1. An alley may be required to be dedicated and constructed to provide adequate 

access for a development, as deemed necessary by the director. 

2. The right-of-way width and paving design for alleys shall be not less than 20 

feet wide. Slope easements shall be dedicated in accordance with specifications 

adopted by the city council under NMC 15.505.010 et seq. 

3. Where two alleys intersect, 10-foot corner cut-offs shall be provided. 

4. Unless otherwise approved by the city engineer where topographical 

conditions will not reasonably permit, grades shall not exceed 12 percent on 

alleys, and centerline radii on curves shall be not less than 100 feet. 

5. All provisions and requirements with respect to streets identified in this code 

shall apply to alleys the same in all respects as if the word “street” or “streets” 

therein appeared as the word “alley” or “alleys” respectively. 

 

Finding: The applicant is not proposing alleys. These criteria do not apply.  

 

O. Platting Standards for Blocks. 

51

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=68
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15505.html#15.505.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=142
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

1. Purpose. Streets and walkways can provide convenient travel within a 

neighborhood and can serve to connect people and land uses. Large, 

uninterrupted blocks can serve as a barrier to travel, especially walking and 

biking. Large blocks also can divide rather than unite neighborhoods. To promote 

connected neighborhoods and to shorten travel distances, the following 

minimum standards for block lengths are established. 

2. Maximum Block Length and Perimeter. The maximum length and perimeters of 

blocks in the zones listed below shall be according to the following table. The 

review body for a subdivision, partition, conditional use permit, or a Type II 

design review may require installation of streets or walkways as necessary to 

meet the standards below. 

Zone(s) 

Maximum 

Block 

Length 

Maximum 

Block 

Perimeter 

R-1 800 feet 2,000 feet 

R-2, R-3, RP, 

I 

1,200 feet 3,000 feet 

 

3. Exceptions. 

a. If a public walkway is installed mid-block, the maximum block length and 

perimeter may be increased by 25 percent. 

b. Where a proposed street divides a block, one of the resulting blocks may 

exceed the maximum block length and perimeter standards provided the 

average block length and perimeter of the two resulting blocks do not exceed 

these standards. 

c. Blocks in excess of the above standards are allowed where access 

controlled streets, street access spacing standards, railroads, steep slopes, 

wetlands, water bodies, preexisting development, ownership patterns or 

similar circumstances restrict street and walkway location and design. In 

these cases, block length and perimeter shall be as small as practical. Where a 

street cannot be provided because of these circumstances but a public 

walkway is still feasible, a public walkway shall be provided. 

d. Institutional campuses located in an R-1 zone may apply the standards for 

the institutional zone. 

e. Where a block is in more than one zone, the standards of the majority of 

land in the proposed block shall apply. 

f. Where a local street plan, concept master site development plan, or specific 

plan has been approved for an area, the block standards shall follow those 

52

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=47
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=47
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=47
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=47
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=47
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=47
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=47
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=80
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

approved in the plan. In approving such a plan, the review body shall follow 

the block standards listed above to the extent appropriate for the plan area. 

 

Finding: The applicant is not proposing blocks. These criteria do not apply. 

P. Private Streets. New private streets, as defined in NMC 15.05.030, shall not be 

created, except as allowed by NMC 15.240.020(L)(2). 

 

Finding: The applicant is not proposing private streets. This criterion does not apply. 

Q. Traffic Calming. 

1. The following roadway design features may be required in new street 

construction where traffic calming needs are anticipated: 

a. Serpentine alignment. 

b. Curb extensions. 

c. Traffic diverters/circles. 

d. Raised medians and landscaping. 

e. Other methods shown effective through engineering studies. 

2. Traffic-calming measures such as speed humps should be applied to mitigate 

traffic operations and/or safety problems on existing streets. They should not be 

applied with new street constructions. 

 

Finding: The applicant is not proposing traffic calming. These criteria do not apply. 

 

R. Vehicular Access Standards. 

1. Purpose. The purpose of these standards is to manage vehicle access to 

maintain traffic flow, safety, roadway capacity, and efficiency. They help to 

maintain an adequate level of service consistent with the functional classification 

of the street. Major roadways, including arterials and collectors, serve as the 

primary system for moving people and goods within and through the city. Access 

is limited and managed on these roads to promote efficient through movement. 

Local streets and alleys provide access to individual properties. Access is 

managed on these roads to maintain safe maneuvering of vehicles in and out of 

properties and to allow safe through movements. If vehicular access and 

circulation are not properly designed, these roadways will be unable to 

accommodate the needs of development and serve their transportation function. 

2. Access Spacing Standards. Public street intersection and driveway spacing 

shall follow the standards in Table 15.505.R below. The Oregon Department of 

Transportation (ODOT) has jurisdiction of some roadways within the Newberg city 

limits, and ODOT access standards will apply on those roadways. 

53

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=46
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=234
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg1505.html#15.05.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15240.html#15.240.020
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=135
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=29
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=73
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Table 15.505.R. Access Spacing Standards 

Roadway Functional 

Classification 
Area1 

Minimum Public Street 

Intersection Spacing (Feet)2 

Driveway Setback 

from Intersecting 

Street3 

Expressway  All Refer to ODOT Access Spacing 

Standards 

NA 

Major arterial  Urban 

CBD 

Refer to ODOT Access Spacing 

Standards 

  

Minor arterial  Urban 

CBD 

500 

200 

150 

100 

Major collector  All 400 150 

Minor collector  All 300 100 

 

1     “Urban” refers to intersections inside the city urban growth boundary outside the central 

business district (C-3 zone). 

    “CBD” refers to intersections within the central business district (C-3 zone). 

    “All” refers to all intersections within the Newberg urban growth boundary. 
2     Measured centerline to centerline. 
3    The setback is based on the higher classification of the intersecting streets. Measured from 

the curb line of the intersecting street to the beginning of the driveway, excluding flares. If 

the driveway setback listed above would preclude a lot from having at least one driveway, including 

shared driveways or on adjoining streets, one driveway is allowed as far from the intersection as 

possible. 

 

Finding: The applicant has indicated that the newly proposed limited residential street will 

create a new intersection with S River Street which is classified as a major collector. As 

such, major collector minimum public street intersection spacing is 400-feet. The closest 

improved intersection to the subject property is the intersection of S River Street at E 

Twelfth Street. The new public street proposed by this application will be located 

approximately 485-feet south of the existing intersection.  

This criterion is met. 

3.Properties with Multiple Frontages. Where a property has frontage on more than 

one street, access shall be limited to the street with the lesser classification. 

54

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=135
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=135
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=121
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=30
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=31
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=74
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=75
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=87
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

 

Finding: The applicant’s plans show that once subdivided, Lot 1 and Lot 18 will have 

frontage on E River Court (limited residential street) and S River Street (major collector). 

Because the applicant’s plan do not show proposed driveway access locations for Lot 1 

and Lot 18, the applicant will be required to take driveway access for Lot 1 and Lot 18 from 

the limited residential street (E River Court) which has the lesser functional classification. 

Driveways for Lot 1 and Lot 18 to be located as far from the intersection of E River Court/S 

River Street as possible. 

 

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

 

4. Driveways. More than one driveway is permitted on a lot accessed from either 

a minor collector or local street as long as there is at least 40 feet of lot frontage 

separating each driveway approach. More than one driveway is permitted on a lot 

accessed from a major collector as long as there is at least 100 feet of lot frontage 

separating each driveway approach. 

 

Finding: The applicant is not proposing more than one driveway per lot. This criterion does 

not apply. 

 

5. Alley Access. Where a property has frontage on an alley and the only other 

frontages are on collector or arterial streets, access shall be taken from the alley 

only. The review body may allow creation of an alley for access to lots that do not 

otherwise have frontage on a public street provided all of the following are met: 

a. The review body finds that creating a public street frontage is not feasible. 

b. The alley access is for no more than six dwellings and no more than six 

lots. 

c. The alley has through access to streets on both ends. 

d. One additional parking space over those otherwise required is provided for 

each dwelling. Where feasible, this shall be provided as a public use parking 

space adjacent to the alley. 

 

Finding: The applicant’s property does not have alley access. These criteria do not apply.  

 

6. Closure of Existing Accesses. Existing accesses that are not used as part of 

development or redevelopment of a property shall be closed and replaced with 

curbing, sidewalks, and landscaping, as appropriate. 

 

Finding: The applicant is not proposing to close an existing access. This criterion does not 

apply. 

 

7. Shared Driveways. 55

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=75
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=180
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=100
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=74
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=180
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=100
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=73
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=29
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=101
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=101
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=244
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=256
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

a. The number of driveways onto arterial streets shall be minimized by the use 

of shared driveways with adjoining lots where feasible. The city shall require 

shared driveways as a condition of land division or site design review, as 

applicable, for traffic safety and access management purposes. Where there is 

an abutting developable property, a shared driveway shall be provided as 

appropriate. When shared driveways are required, they shall be stubbed to 

adjacent developable parcels to indicate future extension. “Stub” means that a 

driveway temporarily ends at the property line, but may be accessed or 

extended in the future as the adjacent parcel develops. “Developable” means 

that a parcel is either vacant or it is likely to receive additional development 

(i.e., due to infill or redevelopment potential). 

b. Access easements (i.e., for the benefit of affected properties) and 

maintenance agreements shall be recorded for all shared driveways, including 

pathways, at the time of final plat approval or as a condition of site 

development approval. 

c. No more than four lots may access one shared driveway. 

d. Shared driveways shall be posted as no parking fire lanes where required 

by the fire marshal. 

e. Where three lots or three dwellings share one driveway, one additional 

parking space over those otherwise required shall be provided for each 

dwelling. Where feasible, this shall be provided as a common use parking 

space adjacent to the driveway. 

 

Finding: The applicant is not proposing shared driveways. These criteria do not apply. 

 

8. Frontage Streets and Alleys. The review body for a partition, subdivision, or 

design review may require construction of a frontage street to provide access to 

properties fronting an arterial or collector street. 

 

Finding: The applicant’s project is not proposing frontage streets or alleys. This criterion 

does not apply. 

 

9. ODOT or Yamhill County Right-of-Way. Where a property abuts an ODOT or 

Yamhill County right-of-way, the applicant for any development project shall 

obtain an access permit from ODOT or Yamhill County. 

 

Finding: The applicant’s proposed limited residential street connects to S River Street 

which is jurisdictionally owned by Yamhill County. The property also abuts a rail line which 

is jurisdictionally regulated through the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT), and 

the property abuts ODOT right-of-way to the west as part of the Newberg-Dundee Bypass 

alignment. Because the applicant has not indicated the need to obtain permitting from other 

56

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=231
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=101
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=222
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=101
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=99
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=209


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

agencies, the applicant will be required to acquire the necessary right-of-way access 

permitting from Yamhill County and ODOT for improvements related to the development. 

 

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.  

 

10. Exceptions. The director may allow exceptions to the access standards above 

in any of the following circumstances: 

a. Where existing and planned future development patterns or physical 

constraints, such as topography, parcel configuration, and similar conditions, 

prevent access in accordance with the above standards. 

b. Where the proposal is to relocate an existing access for existing 

development, where the relocated access is closer to conformance with the 

standards above and does not increase the type or volume of access. 

c. Where the proposed access results in safer access, less congestion, a 

better level of service, and more functional circulation, both on street and on 

site, than access otherwise allowed under these standards. 

11. Where an exception is approved, the access shall be as safe and functional as 

practical in the particular circumstance. The director may require that the 

applicant submit a traffic study by a registered engineer to show the proposed 

access meets these criteria. 

Finding: The applicant is not proposing any exceptions. These criteria do not apply.  

S. Public Walkways. 

1. Projects subject to Type II design review, partition, or subdivision approval 

may be required to provide public walkways where necessary for public safety 

and convenience, or where necessary to meet the standards of this code. Public 

walkways are meant to connect cul-de-sacs to adjacent areas, to pass through 

oddly shaped or unusually long blocks, to provide for networks of public paths 

according to adopted plans, or to provide access to schools, parks or other 

community destinations or public areas. Where practical, public walkway 

easements and locations may also be used to accommodate public utilities. 

2. Public walkways shall be located within a public access easement that is a 

minimum of 15 feet in width. 

3. A walk strip, not less than 10 feet in width, shall be paved in the center of all 

public walkway easements. Such paving shall conform to specifications in the 

Newberg public works design and construction standards. 

4. Public walkways shall be designed to meet the Americans with Disabilities Act 

requirements. 

5. Public walkways connecting one right-of-way to another shall be designed to 

provide as short and straight of a route as practical. 

57

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=26
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=2
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

6. The developer of the public walkway may be required to provide a 

homeowners’ association or similar entity to maintain the public walkway and 

associated improvements. 

7. Lighting may be required for public walkways in excess of 250 feet in length. 

8. The review body may modify these requirements where it finds that 

topographic, preexisting development, or similar constraints exist. 

 

Finding:  The applicant is not proposing public walkways and no opportunities to create a 

public walkway exist due to the railroad line to the south and the Newberg-Dundee Bypass 

to the west and northwest. These criteria do not apply. 

 

T. Street Trees. Street trees shall be provided for all projects subject to Type II 

design review, partition, or subdivision. Street trees shall be installed in accordance 

with the provisions of NMC 15.420.010(B)(4). 

Finding: The applicant’s landscape plan shows the installation of street trees along E River 

Court, and no street trees are shown along S River Street. Street trees are required along 

all improved public streets. No street trees are shown on the cul-de-sac. If no public utility 

easement is required by the utility companies around the cul-de-sac bulb street trees will be 

required. Because it’s unclear if the street tree criteria is being met, the applicant will be 

required to provide any necessary street trees that are compliant with 15.420.010(B) 

including street trees around the perimeter of the cul-de-sac bulb if a public utility easement 

is not required by utility providers, and meet the sight distance requirements as set forth by 

ODOT in association with the rail crossing order.  

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

U. Street Lights. All developments shall include underground electric service, light 

standards, wiring and lamps for street lights according to the specifications and 

standards of the Newberg public works design and construction standards. The 

developer shall install all such facilities and make the necessary arrangements with 

the serving electric utility as approved by the city. Upon the city’s acceptance of the 

public improvements associated with the development, the street lighting system, 

exclusive of utility-owned service lines, shall be and become property of the city 

unless otherwise designated by the city through agreement with a private utility. 

 

Finding: The applicant’s plans show street lighting along both S River Street and E River 

Court. Because it’s unclear if the applicant is meeting City street lighting standards, the 

applicant will be required to adequately light the following locations or show via a lighting 

analysis that the existing street lighting meets City standards. If street existing street 

lighting does not meet City standards the applicant shall provide additional street lighting 

58

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=296
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15420.html#15.420.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=271
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

along the property frontage that is compliant with the City’s Public Works Design and 

Construction Standards. 

 

Street lighting meeting City standards is required at the following locations: 

• Street lighting will be required along the proposed limited residential street 

• Street lighting will be required at the newly created intersection of the 

proposed limited residential street and S River Street 

• Street lighting will be required on the west side of S River Street along the 

property frontage. 

 

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

 

V. Transit Improvements. Development proposals for sites that include or are 

adjacent to existing or planned transit facilities, as shown in the Newberg 

transportation system plan or adopted local or regional transit plan, shall be required 

to provide any of the following, as applicable and required by the review authority: 

1. Reasonably direct pedestrian connections between the transit facility and 

building entrances of the site. For the purpose of this section, “reasonably direct” 

means a route that does not deviate unnecessarily from a straight line or a route 

that does not involve a significant amount of out-of-direction travel for users. 

2. A transit passenger landing pad accessible to disabled persons. 

3. An easement of dedication for a passenger shelter or bench if such facility is in 

an adopted plan. 

4. Lighting at the transit facility.  

 

Finding:  The applicant is not proposing transit improvements and the site is not adjacent 

to existing transit facilities. The Yamhill County Transit Development Plan does show a 

future transit line along S River Street which is identified as a long-term priority with no date 

for implementation identified. These criteria do not apply. 

15.505.040 Public utility standards. 

C. General Standards. 

1. The design and construction of all improvements within existing and proposed 

rights-of-way and easements, all improvements to be maintained by the city, and 

all improvements for which city approval is required shall conform to the 

Newberg public works design and construction standards and require a public 

improvements permit. 

2. The location, design, installation and maintenance of all utility lines and 

facilities shall be carried out with minimum feasible disturbances of soil and site. 

Installation of all proposed public and private utilities shall be coordinated by the 

developer and be approved by the city to ensure the orderly extension of such 

utilities within public right-of-way and easements. 
59

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=226
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=291
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=249
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Finding: The applicant has indicated that the proposed improvements are located within 

the 47-feet of right-of-way to be dedicated for the limited residential street or are within 

easements meeting the City’s Public Works Design and Construction Standards. 

Additionally, the public utilities were designed with the intent to minimize soil and site 

disturbance as feasible. All construction of utilities will be coordinated with the City.  

These criterion are met. 

D. Standards for Water Improvements. All development that has a need for water 

service shall install the facilities pursuant to the requirements of the city and all of 

the following standards. Installation of such facilities shall be coordinated with the 

extension or improvement of necessary wastewater and stormwater facilities, as 

applicable. 

1. All developments shall be required to be linked to existing water facilities 

adequately sized to serve their intended area by the construction of water 

distribution lines, reservoirs and pumping stations which connect to such water 

service facilities. All necessary easements required for the construction of these 

facilities shall be obtained by the developer and granted to the city pursuant to 

the requirements of the city. 

2. Specific location, size and capacity of such facilities will be subject to the 

approval of the director with reference to the applicable water master plan. All 

water facilities shall conform with city pressure zones and shall be looped where 

necessary to provide adequate pressure and fire flows during peak demand at 

every point within the system in the development to which the water facilities will 

be connected. Installation costs shall remain entirely the developer’s 

responsibility. 

 

Finding: The applicant’s plans and narrative indicate that there is an existing water line in 

S River Street. Water service is being shown to every lot. Because the applicant has not 

submitted fire flow calculations, the applicant will be required to submit fire flow calculations 

to show that the existing and proposed service is adequate prior to the issuance of the 

Public Improvement Permit. 

 

This criterion will be verified to have been met with the adherence to the condition of 

approval. 

 

3. The design of the water facilities shall take into account provisions for the 

future extension beyond the development to serve adjacent properties, which, in 

the judgment of the city, cannot be feasibly served otherwise. 

4. Design, construction and material standards shall be as specified by the 

director for the construction of such public water facilities in the city. 

 
60

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Finding: The applicant’s plans and narrative indicate that there is an existing water line in 

S River Street. Water service is being shown to every lot. Because the applicant has not 

submitted construction plans, the applicant will be required to submit construction plans and 

obtain a Public Improvement Permit to extend a public water line into E River Court and to 

install water service laterals to the requirements of the City’s Public Works Design and 

Construction Standards. 

 

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

 

E. Standards for Wastewater Improvements. All development that has a need for 

wastewater services shall install the facilities pursuant to the requirements of the 

city and all of the following standards. Installation of such facilities shall be 

coordinated with the extension or improvement of necessary water services and 

stormwater facilities, as applicable. 

1. All septic tank systems and on-site sewage systems are prohibited. Existing 

septic systems must be abandoned or removed in accordance with Yamhill 

County standards. 

 

Finding: The applicants’ narrative does not address if the existing home located on the 

property is served by a septic tank. Because it’s unclear if the existing home located on the 

property is served by a septic tank, the applicant will be required to provide documentation 

that a septic system does not exist for the existing house and abandon and remove the 

existing system in accordance with Yamhill County standards and provide documentation of 

such abandonment/removal.  

 

This criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to.  

 

2. All properties shall be provided with gravity service to the city wastewater 

system, except for lots that have unique topographic or other natural features 

that make gravity wastewater extension impractical as determined by the director. 

Where gravity service is impractical, the developer shall provide all necessary 

pumps/lift stations and other improvements, as determined by the director. 

3. All developments shall be required to be linked to existing wastewater 

collection facilities adequately sized to serve their intended area by the 

construction of wastewater lines which connect to existing adequately sized 

wastewater facilities. All necessary easements required for the construction of 

these facilities shall be obtained by the developer and granted to the city 

pursuant to the requirements of the city. 

4. Specific location, size and capacity of wastewater facilities will be subject to 

the approval of the director with reference to the applicable wastewater master 

plan. All wastewater facilities shall be sized to provide adequate capacity during 

61

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=178
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

peak flows from the entire area potentially served by such facilities. Installation 

costs shall remain entirely the developer’s responsibility. 

5. Temporary wastewater service facilities, including pumping stations, will be 

permitted only if the director approves the temporary facilities, and the developer 

provides for all facilities that are necessary for transition to permanent facilities. 

6. The design of the wastewater facilities shall take into account provisions for 

the future extension beyond the development to serve upstream properties, 

which, in the judgment of the city, cannot be feasibly served otherwise. 

7. Design, construction and material standards shall be as specified by the 

director for the construction of such wastewater facilities in the city. 

 

Finding: Preliminary plans indicate that the applicant will be able to meet requirements of 

the Public Works Design and Construction Standards. The preliminary plans show a 

connection to the existing southern terminus of the wastewater line approximately 210-feet 

north of the development. The applicant is also showing and extension of the public 

wastewater line to the west along E River Court. The applicant does not show the extension 

of the wastewater line in S River Street to the southern extent of their property frontage. 

Because the applicant has not submitted construction plans and does not show the full 

extension of the wastewater line to the southern end of their property frontage in S River 

Street, the applicant will be required to extend the wastewater line in S River Street to the 

southern end of the subject property, submit construction plans, and obtain and Public 

Improvement Permit to install the wastewater service main and laterals pursuant to the 

requirements of the City’s Public Works Design and Construction Standards. 

 

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

 

F. Easements. Easements for public and private utilities shall be provided as deemed 

necessary by the city, special districts, and utility companies. Easements for special 

purpose uses shall be of a width deemed appropriate by the responsible agency. 

Such easements shall be recorded on easement forms approved by the city and 

designated on the final plat of all subdivisions and partitions. Minimum required 

easement width and locations are as provided in the Newberg public works design 

and construction standards. [Ord. 2810 § 2 (Exhs. B, C), 12-19-16.] 

Finding: The applicant has submitted a preliminary PUD development that indicates some 

utility easements. Because the applicant has not recorded all utility easements, the 

applicant will be required to submit a final plat that includes necessary utility easements 

meeting the specifications and standards of the City’s Public Works Design and 

Construction Standards, but not necessarily limited to: 

1) A 10-foot public utility easement along Lots 1 through Lot 18. Stormwater 

facilities are not allowed to be co-located in public utility easements. 
62

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=95
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2810.pdf


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

2) A maximum 10-foot public utility easement adjacent to the cul-de-sac bulb as 

coordinated and approved by the required franchise utilities. Stormwater 

facilities are not allowed to be co-located in public utility easements. 

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

15.505.050 Stormwater system standards. 

C. General Requirement. All stormwater runoff shall be conveyed to a public storm 

wastewater or natural drainage channel having adequate capacity to carry the flow 

without overflowing or otherwise causing damage to public and/or private property. 

The developer shall pay all costs associated with designing and constructing the 

facilities necessary to meet this requirement. 

Finding: The applicant’s plans and narrative show a water quality and detention pond 

proposed along the western edge of the development. The proposed water quality and 

detention pond in Tract A will then be conveyed into the public stormwater line in S River 

Street. Because the applicant has not provided construction plans or a final stormwater 

report, the applicant will be required to provide detailed construction plans and a final 

stormwater report that address requirements outlined in the Public Works Design and 

Construction Standards in accordance with NMC 13.25 Stormwater Management.   

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

D. Plan for Stormwater and Erosion Control. No construction of any facilities in a 

development included in subsection (B) of this section shall be permitted until an 

engineer registered in the State of Oregon prepares a stormwater report and erosion 

control plan for the project. This plan shall contain at a minimum: 

1. The methods to be used to minimize the amount of runoff, sedimentation, and 

pollution created from the development both during and after construction. 

2. Plans for the construction of stormwater facilities and any other facilities that 

depict line sizes, profiles, construction specifications, and other such information 

as is necessary for the city to review the adequacy of the stormwater plans. 

3. Design calculations shall be submitted for all drainage facilities. These 

drainage calculations shall be included in the stormwater report and shall be 

stamped by a licensed professional engineer in the State of Oregon. Peak design 

discharges shall be computed based upon the design criteria outlined in the 

public works design and construction standards for the city. 

 

Finding: The applicant’s narrative indicates developing a 18-unit single-family residential 

PUD. New impervious surface areas will be created and the applicant indicated they would 

install one large stormwater facility in Tract A to treat stormwater. Because the applicant did 

not discuss the need for an erosion and sedimentation control permit to construct the 
63

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=66


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

proposed development, the applicant will be required to obtain 1200-C permit prior to 

issuance of the Public Improvement Permit.  

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

E. Development Standards. Development subject to this section shall be planned, 

designed, constructed, and maintained in compliance with the Newberg public works 

design and construction standards. 

Finding: The applicant’s plans and narrative show a water quality and detention pond 

proposed along the western edge of the development. The proposed water quality and 

detention pond in Tract A will then be conveyed into the public stormwater line in S River 

Street.  Because the applicant has not submitted construction plans or a final stormwater 

report, the applicant will need to submit a stormwater report and construction plans meeting 

the City’s Public Works Design and Construction Standards and NMC 13.25 Stormwater 

Management requirements and obtain a Public Improvement Permit prior to installing the 

stormwater system improvements. Utility designs and alignments will be reviewed as part of 

the Public Improvement Permit.  

The criterion will be met if the aforementioned condition of approval is adhered to. 

Conclusion:  Based on the above findings, the application meets the required criteria 
within the Newberg Development Code, subject to completion of the attached conditions 
found in Exhibit “B”. 
 
 

64



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Order 2020-01 
Conditions – File PUD19-0002 

Riverlands PUD 

A. The applicant must complete the following prior to final plat approval.  

1. Substantially Complete the Construction Improvements:  In accordance with 

NDC 15.240.040, submit the final plan application. Prior to final plan approval for a 

given phase, the applicant must substantially complete the construction 

improvements and secure for them in accordance with city policy.  Complete 

construction and call for a walk-through inspection with the Engineering Division 

(503-537-1273). 

 

2. Conditions of Approval:  Either write or otherwise permanently affix the conditions 

of approval contained within this report onto the first page of the plans submitted for 

building permit review. 

3. Lot Area and Coverage 

a. The applicant shall modify the proposed lot area (size) for Lots 9 and 10 so 
that the lots are to the cul-de-sac bulb pinch point with the sites perimeter 
boundary. 

b. The applicant shall provide lot coverage calculation for buildings, parking and 
combined building and parking at the tie of submittal of building plans and 
shall meet the requirements of 15.405.030(B)(1)(b), 15.405.030(B)(2), and 
15.405.030(b)(3). 

4. Public Utility Easements: 

a. The applicant is required to coordinate with franchise utilities and provide a 
public utility easement width meeting the requirements of the franchise utilities 
with a maximum public utility easement of 10-feet along all property frontages 
as coordinated with franchise utility providers. The City of Newberg must be 
provided with documentation of the ultimate public utility easement locations 
as coordinated with and approved by the necessary franchise utilities prior to 
the approval of the final plat. 

5. Parking 
 

a. The applicant shall provide drawings at the time of building permit submittal to 
show compliance with parking requirements of 15.440.010. 

 
b. The applicant shall provide drawings at the time of building permit submittal to 

show compliance with parking requirements of 15.440.030. 
 

 65



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

7. Required Permits: 

a. Public utility infrastructure improvements not limited to street improvements, 
water, wastewater, and stormwater will require completed permits from 
partner agencies to authorize different work tasks. Issuance of required 
permits for roadway work and work associated with the ODOT rail crossing 
adjacent to the development, etc. not limited to the agencies of Yamhill 
County, the State of Oregon, and the Federal Government will be required 
prior to the City of Newberg issuing a Public Improvement Permit. 

b. The applicant will be required to obtain 1200-C permit prior to issuance of the 
Public Improvement Permit. 

8. Roads and Sidewalks: 

a. The applicant will be required to develop a concept plan of the future rail 

crossing improvements as discussed in the rail diagnostic meeting on January 

14, 2019, to determine the potential future site impacts to Lot 18 to avoid 

constructing a permanent structure that would inhibit the future separation of 

rail traffic from other modes of transportation i.e. motor vehicle traffic, 

pedestrians, and people on bikes. 

b. Public utility infrastructure improvements not limited to street improvements, 
water, wastewater, and stormwater will require completed permits from 
partner agencies to authorize different work tasks. Issuance of required 
permits for roadway work and work associated with the ODOT rail crossing 
adjacent to the development, etc. not limited to the agencies of Yamhill 
County, the State of Oregon, and the Federal Government will be required 
prior to the City of Newberg issuing a Public Improvement Permit. 

c. The applicant will be required to disallow on-street parking on the limited 
residential street and to sign the street appropriately with “no parking” 
signage. On-street parking is allowed for in the cul-de-sac.  
 

d. The applicant will be required to conduct and submit an intersection sight 
distance evaluation per Section 5.23 in the Public Works Design & 
Construction Standards 

e. The applicant will be required to select a street name, and install new street 
name signs at the intersection of their proposed limited residential street and 
S River Street. 

f. The applicant will be required to take driveway access for Lot 1 and Lot 18 

from the limited residential street (E River Court) which has the lesser 

functional classification. Driveways for Lot 1 and Lot 18 to be located as far 

from the intersection of River Court/S River Street as possible. 

g. The applicant will be required to acquire the necessary right-of-way access 
66



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

permitting from Yamhill County and ODOT for improvements related to the 
development. 

9. Street Trees: 

a. The applicant will be required to provide any necessary street trees that are 

compliant with 15.420.010(B) including street trees around the perimeter of 

the cul-de-sac bulb if a public utility easement is not required by utility 

providers, and meet the sight distance requirements as set forth by ODOT in 

association with the rail crossing order. 

10. Street Lighting: 

a. The applicant will be required to adequately light the following locations or 

show via a lighting analysis that the existing street lighting meets City 

standards. If street existing street lighting does not meet City standards the 

applicant shall provide additional street lighting along the property frontage 

that is compliant with the City’s Public Works Design and Construction 

Standards. Street lighting meeting City standards is required at the following 

locations: 

• Street lighting will be required along the proposed limited residential 

street 

• Street lighting will be required at the newly created intersection of the 

proposed limited residential street and S River Street 
• Street lighting will be required on the west side of S River Street along 

the property frontage 

11. Water: 

a. The applicant will be required to submit fire flow calculations to show that the 
existing and proposed service is adequate prior to the issuance of the Public 
Improvement Permit. 

b. The applicant will be required to submit construction plans and obtain a Public 
Improvement Permit to extend a public water line into E River Court and to 
install water service laterals to the requirements of the City’s Public Works 
Design and Construction Standards. 

12. Wastewater: 

a. The applicant will be required to provide documentation that a septic system 

does not exist for the existing house and abandon and remove the existing 

system in accordance with Yamhill County standards and provide 

documentation of such abandonment/removal prior to issuance of a City 

Public Improvement Permit. 

b. The applicant will be required to extend the wastewater line in S River Street 67



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

to the southern end of the subject property, submit construction plans, and 
obtain and Public Improvement Permit to install the wastewater service main 
and laterals pursuant to the requirements of the City’s Public Works Design 
and Construction Standards 

13. Easements: 

a. The applicant will be required to submit a final plat that includes necessary 
utility easements meeting the specifications and standards of the City’s Public 
Works Design and Construction Standards, but not necessarily limited to: 

1) A 10-foot public utility easement along Lots 1 through Lot 18. 
Stormwater facilities are not allowed to be co-located in public utility 
easements. 

2) A maximum 10-foot public utility easement adjacent to the cul-de-sac 
bulb as coordinated and approved by the required franchise utilities. 
Stormwater facilities are not allowed to be co-located in public utility 
easements. 

14.  Stormwater: 

a. The applicant will be required to provide detailed construction plans 
and a final stormwater report that address requirements outlined in the 
Public Works Design and Construction Standards in accordance with 
NMC 13.25 Stormwater Management.   

b. The applicant will need to submit a stormwater report and construction 
plans meeting the City’s Public Works Design and Construction 
Standards and NMC 13.25 Stormwater Management requirements and 
obtain a Public Improvement Permit prior to installing the stormwater 
system improvements. Utility designs and alignments will be reviewed 
as part of the Public Improvement Permit. 

15. Lapse of Approval. If the applicant fails to submit material required for 

consideration at the next step in accordance with the schedule approved at the 

previous step or, in the absence of a specified schedule, within one year of such 

approval, the application as approved at the previous step expires. If the applicant 

fails to obtain a building permit for construction in accordance with the schedule as 

previously approved, or in the absence of a specified schedule, within three years of 

a preliminary plan approval, preliminary and final plan approvals expire. Prior to 

expiration of plan approval at any step, the hearing authority responsible for approval 

may, if requested, extend or modify the schedule, providing it is not detrimental to 

the public interest or contrary to the findings and provisions specified herein for 

planned unit developments. Unless the preliminary plan hearing authority provides to 

the contrary, expiration of final plan approval of any phase automatically renders all 

68



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

phases void that are not yet finally approved or upon which construction has not 

begun. 

 

16. Application Materials: 

 
a. Type I application form (found either at City Hall or on the website – 

www.newbergoregon.gov  in the Planning Forms section) with the appropriate 

fees. 

 
b. A current title report (within 6 months old) for the property.  Include copies of 

all existing easements and CC&Rs that pertain to the property. 

 
c. A written response to these Conditions of Approval that specifies how each 

condition has been met. 

 
d. Two blue-line copies of the final plat for preliminary review by the City 

Engineering Division.  Engineering will make red-line comments on these 

sheets for your surveyor/engineer to correct prior to printing final Mylar 

copies. 

 
e. Any other documents required for review. 

 
17. Final Mylar Copies of the Plat:  Submit final mylar copies of the corrected final plat 

(after red-line corrections have been made). 
 

a. Three sets (one original and two copies), 18 inches by 24 inches in size, of 

the final PUD plans drawn in black India ink in clear and legible form.  Original 

plats shall be in substantial conformity to the approved tentative plan and 

shall conform to the Yamhill County Surveyor’s specifications and 

requirements.   

 

18. Required Signatures: According to NDC 15.235.180, approval of a final plat must 

be acknowledged and signed by the following: 

 
i. Community Development Director 

ii. The County Assessor 
iii. The County Surveyor 
iv. The City Recorder 

 
19. Recording: Deliver the approved plat to the office of the County Clerk for recording.  

The County Clerk’s office is located at 414 NE Evans St, McMinnville, OR 97128. 

 

20. Copy returned to the City: Return an exact mylar copy of the recorded plat to the 

Director to complete the plat process. The land division will not be considered final 

69

http://www.newbergoregon.gov/


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

until the copy is returned to the Director. No permits will be issued for any 

development on the property after the plat is signed until the copy is returned.  

 

21. Development Notes: 

a. Postal Service: The applicant shall submit plans to the Newberg Postmaster 
for approval of proposed mailbox delivery locations.  Contact the Newberg 
Post Office for assistance at 503-554-8014. 

b. PGE: PGE can provide electrical service to this project under terms of the 
current tariff which will involve developer expense and easements.  Contact 
the Service & Design Supervisor, PGE, at 503-463-4348. 

c. Frontier: The developer must coordinate trench/conduit requirements with 
Frontier. Contact the Engineering Division, Frontier, at 541-269-3375. 

d. Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue: The developer shall coordinate with TVF&R 
on requirements noted in Attachment 4. 

e. Addresses:  The Planning Division will assign addresses for the new lots.  
Planning Division staff will send out notice of the new addresses after they 
receive a mylar copy of the recorded final plat.   

70



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Attachment 1:  Application Material 
  

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



10
0



10
1



10
2



10
3



10
4



10
5



10
6



10
7



10
8



10
9



11
0



11
1



11
2



11
3



11
4



11
5



11
6



11
7



11
8



11
9



12
0



12
1



12
2



12
3



12
4



12
5



12
6



12
7



12
8



12
9



13
0



13
1



13
2



13
3



13
4



13
5



13
6



13
7



13
8



13
9



14
0



14
1



14
2



14
3



14
4



14
5



14
6



14
7



14
8



14
9



15
0



15
1



15
2



15
3



15
4



15
5



15
6



15
7



15
8



15
9



16
0



16
1



16
2



16
3



16
4



16
5



16
6



16
7



16
8



16
9



17
0



17
1



17
2



17
3



17
4



17
5



17
6



17
7



17
8



17
9



18
0



18
1



18
2



18
3



18
4



18
5



18
6



18
7



18
8



18
9



19
0



19
1



19
2



19
3



19
4



19
5



19
6



19
7



19
8



19
9



20
0



20
1



20
2



20
3



20
4



20
5



20
6



20
7



20
8



20
9



21
0



21
1



21
2



21
3



21
4



21
5



21
6



21
7



21
8



21
9



22
0



22
1



22
2



22
3



22
4



22
5



22
6



22
7



22
8



22
9



23
0



23
1



23
2



23
3



23
4



23
5



23
6



23
7



23
8



23
9



24
0



24
1



24
2



24
3



24
4



24
5



24
6



24
7



24
8



24
9



25
0



25
1



25
2



25
3



25
4



25
5



25
6



25
7



25
8



25
9



26
0



26
1



26
2



26
3



26
4



26
5



26
6



26
7



26
8



26
9



27
0



27
1



27
2



27
3



27
4



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Attachment 2: Supplemental Application Material 
 

 

  

275



27
6



27
7



27
8



27
9



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Attachment 3:  Preliminary Plat 
 
 

 

  

280



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

 
Attachment 4:  Agency Comments 

 

 

 

  

281



 

 

 

www.tvfr.com 

Training Center 

12400 SW Tonquin Road 

Sherwood, Oregon 

97140-9734 

503-259-1600 

South Operating Center 

8445 SW Elligsen Road 

Wilsonville, Oregon 

97070-9641 

503-259-1500  

  

Command and Business Operations Center and  
North Operating Center 
11945 SW 70th Avenue 

Tigard, Oregon 97223-9196 

503-649-8577 

  

 

 

 

 
January 9, 2020 

 
Doug Rux  
City of Newberg  
414 E. First Street 
Newberg, OR 97132 
 
Re:  1303 S River St., Newberg – 18 lot Riverlands – PUD19-0002 
Tax Lot I.D: R3229 02500 

Dear Doug, 

Thank you for the opportunity to review the proposed site plan surrounding the above-named development 
project. There may be more or less requirements needed based upon the final project design, however, 
Tualatin Valley Fire & Rescue will endorse this proposal predicated on the following criteria and conditions of 
approval. 

FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS: 
1. FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD DISTANCE FROM BUILDINGS AND FACILITIES:  Access roads shall be within 

150 feet of all portions of the exterior wall of the first story of the building as measured by an approved route around the 
exterior of the building or facility.  An approved turnaround is required if the remaining distance to an approved 
intersecting roadway, as measured along the fire apparatus access road, is greater than 150 feet. (OFC 503.1.1)   

 
2. FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD WIDTH AND VERTICAL CLEARANCE:  Fire apparatus access roads shall have 

an unobstructed driving surface width of not less than 20 feet (26 feet adjacent to fire hydrants (OFC D103.1)) and an 
unobstructed vertical clearance of not less than 13 feet 6 inches. (OFC 503.2.1) 

 
3. FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS FOR INDIVIDUAL ONE AND TWO FAMILY DWELLINGS AND 

ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:  The fire district will approve access roads of 12 feet for up to three dwelling units 
(Group R-3) and accessory (Group U) buildings.  (OFC 503.1.1) 

 
4. NO PARKING SIGNS:  Where fire apparatus roadways are not of sufficient width to accommodate parked vehicles and 

20 feet of unobstructed driving surface, “No Parking” signs shall be installed on one or both sides of the roadway and 
in turnarounds as needed. Signs shall read “NO PARKING - FIRE LANE” and shall be installed with a clear space above 
grade level of 7 feet.  Signs shall be 12 inches wide by 18 inches high and shall have red letters on a white reflective 
background. (OFC D103.6) 

 
5. NO PARKING:  Parking on emergency access roads shall be as follows (OFC D103.6.1-2): 

1. 20-26 feet road width – no parking on either side of roadway 
2. 26-32 feet road width – parking is allowed on one side 
3. Greater than 32 feet road width – parking is not restricted 

 
6. FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS WITH FIRE HYDRANTS:  Where a fire hydrant is located on a fire apparatus 

access road, the minimum road width shall be 26 feet and shall extend 20 feet before and after the point of the hydrant. 
(OFC D103.1) 

 
 

282



 
 

Residential One- and Two-Family Development 3.4R – Page 2 

 

7. TURNING RADIUS:  The inside turning radius and outside turning radius shall not be less than 28 feet and 48 feet 
respectively, measured from the same center point. (OFC 503.2.4 & D103.3) 

 
8. ACCESS ROAD GRADE:  Fire apparatus access roadway grades shall not exceed 15%.  

 
9. ANGLE OF APPROACH/GRADE FOR TURNAROUNDS: Turnarounds shall be as flat as possible and have a 

maximum of 5% grade with the exception of crowning for water run-off.  (OFC 503.2.7 & D103.2) 
 

10. ANGLE OF APPROACH/GRADE FOR INTERSECTIONS: Intersections shall be level (maximum 5%) with the 
exception of crowning for water run-off. (OFC 503.2.7 & D103.2) 

 
11. AERIAL APPARATUS OPERATING GRADES:  Portions of aerial apparatus roads that will be used for aerial 

operations shall be as flat as possible. Front to rear and side to side maximum slope shall not exceed 10%. 

 
12. GATES:  Gates securing fire apparatus roads shall comply with all the following (OFC D103.5, and 503.6): 

1. Minimum unobstructed width shall be not less than 20 feet (or the required roadway surface width). 
2. Gates serving three or less single-family dwellings shall be a minimum of 12 feet in width. 
3. Gates shall be set back at minimum of 30 feet from the intersecting roadway or as approved.  
4. Electric gates shall be equipped with a means for operation by fire department personnel 
5. Electric automatic gates shall comply with ASTM F 2200 and UL 325. 

 
13. ACCESS DURING CONSTRUCTION:  Approved fire apparatus access roadways shall be installed and operational 

prior to any combustible construction or storage of combustible materials on the site. Temporary address signage shall 
also be provided during construction. (OFC 3309 and 3310.1)  

 
14. TRAFFIC CALMING DEVICES:  Shall be prohibited on fire access routes unless approved by the Fire Marshal. (OFC 

503.4.1).  

 

FIREFIGHTING WATER SUPPLIES: 
15. FIREFIGHTING WATER SUPPLY FOR INDIVIDUAL ONE- AND TWO-FAMILY DWELLINGS:  The minimum available 

fire flow for one and two-family dwellings served by a municipal water supply shall be 1,000 gallons per minute.  If the 
structure(s) is (are) 3,600 square feet or larger, the required fire flow shall be determined according to OFC Appendix 
B. (OFC B105.2) 

 
16. FIRE FLOW WATER AVAILABILITY:  Applicants shall provide documentation of a fire hydrant flow test or flow test 

modeling of water availability from the local water purveyor if the project includes a new structure or increase in the floor 
area of an existing structure. Tests shall be conducted from a fire hydrant within 400 feet for commercial projects, or 
600 feet for residential development.  Flow tests will be accepted if they were performed within 5 years as long as no 
adverse modifications have been made to the supply system. Water availability information may not be required to be 
submitted for every project. (OFC Appendix B) 

 
17. WATER SUPPLY DURING CONSTRUCTION IN MUNICIPAL AREAS:  In areas with fixed and reliable water supply, 

approved firefighting water supplies shall be installed and operational prior to any combustible construction or storage 
of combustible materials on the site. (OFC 3312.1) 

 

FIRE HYDRANTS: 
18. FIRE HYDRANTS – ONE- AND TWO-FAMILY DWELLINGS & ACCESSORY STRUCTURES:  Where the most remote 

portion of a structure is more than 600 feet from a hydrant on a fire apparatus access road, as measured in an approved 
route around the exterior of the structure(s), on-site fire hydrants and mains shall be provided. (OFC 507.5.1) 
 

19. FIRE HYDRANT NUMBER AND DISTRIBUTION:  The minimum number and distribution of fire hydrants available to a 
building shall not be less than that listed in Table C 105.1.  (OFC Appendix C) 

 

283



 
 

Residential One- and Two-Family Development 3.4R – Page 3 

 

20. FIRE HYDRANT(S) PLACEMENT:  (OFC C104) 

• Existing hydrants in the area may be used to meet the required number of hydrants as approved.  Hydrants that 
are up to 600 feet away from the nearest point of a subject building that is protected with fire sprinklers may 
contribute to the required number of hydrants. (OFC 507.5.1) 

• Hydrants that are separated from the subject building by railroad tracks shall not contribute to the required number 
of hydrants unless approved by the Fire Marshal. 

• Hydrants that are separated from the subject building by divided highways or freeways shall not contribute to the 
required number of hydrants.  Heavily traveled collector streets may be considered when approved by the Fire 
Marshal. 

• Hydrants that are accessible only by a bridge shall be acceptable to contribute to the required number of hydrants 
only if approved by the Fire Marshal. 

 
21. REFLECTIVE HYDRANT MARKERS:  Fire hydrant locations shall be identified by the installation of blue reflective 

markers.  They shall be located adjacent and to the side of the center line of the access roadway that the fire hydrant 
is located on.  In the case that there is no center line, then assume a center line and place the reflectors accordingly. 
(OFC 507) 

 
22. CLEAR SPACE AROUND FIRE HYDRANTS:  A 3-foot clear space shall be provided around the circumference of 

fire hydrants.  (OFC 507.5.5) 

 

BUILDING ACCESS AND FIRE SERVICE FEATURES 
23. PREMISES IDENTIFICATION:  New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers; building numbers 

or approved building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible and visible from the street or road fronting 
the property, including monument signs. These numbers shall contrast with their background. Numbers shall be a 
minimum of 4 inches high with a minimum stroke width of 1/2 inch. (OFC 505.1)  

Provide a physical address on the new home, as well as, near the intersection of the private drive and public road 

visible from both approaches of [enter road intersections here]   

 

 
If you have questions or need further clarification, please feel free to contact me at (503)849-7516. 

 
Sincerely, 

 

Ty Darby  
 
Ty Darby  
Deputy Fire Marshal II 
 
 
Cc: file 

 
 

 

 

  

284



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.PUD (Planned Unit Dev Type3)\2019\PUD19-0002 Riverlands\Staff Report\Staff Report - PUD19-0002 Riverlands.docx 

Attachment 5:  Public Comments 

285



Agenda Item No:VIA.

Planning Commission Agenda Item Report
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020
Submitted by: Bobbie Morgan
Submitting Department: Community Development  
Item Type: LEGISLATIVE PUBLIC HEARING
Agenda Section: 

Subject:

MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENT
ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT PARKING REQUIREMENTS

Suggested Action:
Planning Commission approval of Resolution 2020-353 ADU Parking Requirements

Attachments:
DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC w ATT 02-13-20.pdf

286

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/523490/DCA19-0009_Staff_Report_to_PC_w_ATT_02-13-20.pdf


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

  Community Development Department 
    P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 

        503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENT  

ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT PARKING REQUIREMENTS  

 

HEARING DATE: February 13, 2020 

FILE NO:  DCA19-0009 

APPLICANT: Initiated by City Council Resolution No. 2019-3629 
 City of Newberg 

REQUEST: A Resolution recommending that the City Council amend the Newberg 
Municipal Code regarding Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) parking 
requirements  

ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution 2020-353 with:  
 Exhibit “A”:  Proposed Municipal Code Text Amendment 
 Exhibit “B”:  Findings 

1. Newberg City Council Resolution No. 2019-3629 initiating text amendment 
 
 

 

A. SUMMARY:  The proposed amendment does the following: 

Removes the off-street parking requirement for an accessory dwelling unit to be in 
compliance with HB 2001 (2019). 

B. BACKGROUND:  

The Oregon Legislature passed HB 2001 in 2019. HB 2001 Section 7 amends Oregon Revised 
Statue (ORS) 197.312(5)(b)  adding a new subsection (B) “Reasonable local regulations relating 
to siting and design” does not include owner occupancy requirements of either the primary or 
accessory structure or requirements to construct additional off-street parking.  

The City Council adopted Ordinance No. 2018-2832 on July 2, 2018 modifying accessory 
dwelling unit standards to comply with SB 1051 adopted by the Oregon Legislature in 2017. 
As part of the ordinance adoption the city included requirements for off-street parking and 

287



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

a standard that owner occupancy requirements of either the primary or accessory structure 
was not required.   
 
The City Council adopted Resolution No. 2019-3629 on December 9, 2019, which initiated 
the municipal code amendment process to change the off-street parking requirement.  
 

C. PROCESS:   

A development code amendment is a Type IV application and follows the procedures in 
Newberg Municipal Code 15.100.060.  The Planning Commission will hold a legislative 
hearing on the application.  The Commission will make a recommendation to the Newberg 
City Council.  Following the Planning Commission’s recommendation, the Newberg City 
Council will hold a legislative public hearing to consider the matter.   Important dates related 
to this application are as follows: 

1. 12/9/19:  The Newberg City Council adopted Resolution 2019-3629, 

initiating the Municipal Code Amendment. 

 

2. 1/23/20: Planning staff placed notice on Newberg’s website, and posted 
notice in four public buildings. The Newberg Graphic published 
notice of the hearing.  

3. 2/13/20: The Planning Commission held a public hearing, took public 
testimony, and deliberated on the proposal. 

D. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

As of the writing of this report, the city has not received any written public comments.   

E. AGENCY COMMENTS:  

As of the writing of this report the following comments have been received: 

Building Official – Reviewed, no conflicts 
Finance – Reviewed, no conflicts 
Frontier – Reviewed, no conflicts 
Public Works – Reviewed, no conflicts 

  

F. ANALYSIS:   

HB 2001 changes the requirements regarding parking for ADUs. In July 2018 the City Council 
adopted Ordinance No. 2018-2832 that included a requirement for one off-street parking 
space for an ADU. The requirement for the one off-street parking space was based on a 
Planning Commission recommendation. The Affordable Housing Commission had 
recommended that no off-street parking space be required for an ADU.  

288



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

HB 2001 states that off-street parking is not required for ADUs effective January 1, 2020. 
The Newberg Municipal Code, 15.445.260 Development standards needs to be amended to 
be compliant with HB 2001. Specifically, 15.445.260B.4. needs to be modified. Currently the 
standard reads “4. In addition to the number of parking spaces required for the primary 
residence, as established in NMC 15.440.030, one on-site parking space shall be provided for 
the accessory dwelling unit. This parking space shall be paved and/or covered.” 

The provision for not requiring owner occupancy requirements of either the primary or 
accessory structure is already in 15.445.260B. 15.445.260B.5. states “Owner occupancy of 
the primary unit or accessory dwelling unit is not required.” No modification to this standard 
is required to comply with HB 2001.  

For the full text of the municipal code amendment, see Exhibit “A” in the resolution.  

 

PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation is made in the 
absence of public hearing testimony, and may be modified subsequent to the close of the public 
hearing.  At this writing, staff recommends the following motion: 

 Move to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 2020-353, which recommends that the City 
Council adopt the requested amendment. 

289



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2020-353 

 

 A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL AMEND THE NEWBERG MUNICIPAL 

CODE REGARDING ACCESSORY DWELLING UNIT PARKING REQUIREMENTS 

RECITALS 

1. SB 1051 was enacted by the Oregon Legislature in 2017 that included requirements for 
Accessory Dwelling Units (ADUs) for communities large than 2,500. 

2. HB 2001 modifies ADU requirements under ORS 197.312(5)(b) regarding not requiring 
owner occupancy for either the primary or accessory structure and not requiring 
construction of additional off-street parking. Communities are required to comply with the 
new provisions by January 1, 2020. 

3. The Newberg City Council adopted Resolution 2019-3629 on December 9, 2019 initiating an 
amendment to the Newberg Municipal Code on the new HB 2001 ADU regulation regarding 
parking. The Newberg Municipal Code is already compliant with the provision for not 

requiring owner occupancy for either the primary or accessory structure. 

4. Until adoption of an ordinance amending the Newberg Municipal Code to remove the off-
street parking requirements for Accessory Dwelling Units the City of Newberg will follow the 
requirements of HB 2001 regarding Accessory Dwelling Unit parking. 

5. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission opened the hearing on February 13, 
2020, considered public testimony and deliberated. They found that the proposed municipal 
code amendments were in the best interests of the city. 

The Newberg Planning Commission resolves as follows: 

1. The Commission recommends that the City Council adopt the amendments to the Newberg 
Municipal Code as shown in Exhibit “A”.  Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted and by this reference 
incorporated. 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “B” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "B" is by this reference 
incorporated. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 13th day of February, 2020. 

        ATTEST: 

 
Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

290



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

List of Exhibits: 
 Exhibit “A”: Comprehensive Plan and Municipal Code Amendments  
 Exhibit “B”:  Findings 

  

291



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Resolution 2020-353 
Municipal Code Amendment –File DCA19-0009 

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Off-Street Parking  
 

Note:   Existing text is shown in regular font. 
 Added text is shown in underline 
 Deleted text is shown in strikethrough. 
 
The Newberg Municipal Code shall be amended as follows: 
 

Article V. Accessory Dwelling Units 
 
15.445.260 Development standards. 
A. Location. Accessory dwelling units are outright permitted uses in the R-1, R-2, R-3, RP, I and AR 
zones. Accessory dwelling units are a conditional use in the C-2 and C-3 zones. 
 
B. Limitations. An accessory dwelling unit is permitted, providing there is compliance with all of the 
following standards: 
 
1. An accessory dwelling unit may be created within the interior or as an addition to an attached or 
detached residential structure or as a freestanding accessory building. 
 
2. An accessory dwelling unit may not exceed 50 percent of the size of the primary unit, up to a 
maximum of 1,000 square feet. 
 
3. The number of residents permitted to inhabit the accessory dwelling unit is regulated by the 
current edition of the Oregon Residential Specialty Code. 
 
4. In addition to the number of parking spaces required for the primary residence, as established in 
NMC 15.440.030, one on-site parking space shall be provided for the accessory dwelling unit. This 
parking space shall be paved and/or covered. The primary residence shall provide parking per NMC 
15.440.030. The accessory dwelling unit does not require on-site parking. 
 
5. Owner occupancy of the primary unit or accessory dwelling unit is not required. 
 
6. An accessory dwelling unit cannot be partitioned or subdivided from the parcel of the primary 
unit if there are shared water and wastewater lines. 
 
7. There shall be compliance with all of the development standards established in the base zone. 
[Ord. 2832 § 1 (Exh. A), 7-2-18; Ord. 2730 § 1 (Exh. A (15)), 10-18-10; Ord. 2505, 2-1-99. Code 2001 
§ 151.678.2.] 

292

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2832.pdf
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2730.pdf
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2505.pdf


 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Resolution 2020-353 
Findings Municipal Code Amendment –File DCA19-0009 

Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Off-Street Parking 
 

APPROVAL CRITERIA 

A. Statewide Planning Goals (the “Goals”) 

GOAL 1: CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT 
To develop a citizen involvement program that insures the opportunity for citizens to be 
involved in all phases of the planning process. 

 
Finding: This application is subject to the Type IV Legislative process, which requires public 
notification and public hearings before the Planning Commission and the City Council. This process 
has been established by the City and determined to be consistent with this Goal. The public 
hearing notice of the action and decision, and the hearings on this case before the Planning 
Commission and the City Council are all recognized as opportunities for citizen participation. 

 
GOAL 2: LAND USE PLANNING 
To establish a land use planning process and policy framework as a basis for all decisions 
and actions related to use of land and to assure an adequate factual base for such decisions 
and actions. 
 

Finding: This Goal requires that land use decisions 1) have an adequate factual base, 2) that 
alternatives have been considered, and 3) that implementation measures are consistent with and 
adequate to carry out comprehensive plan policies and designations. 
 
The proposed land use action has an adequate factual base and has been thoroughly described in 
this application. 
 
The alternatives to amending the municipal code text would be to: 1) deny the application and 
retain the current accessory dwelling unit off-street parking requirement which are not in 
compliance with HB 2001 (ORS 197.312(5)(b). 
 
Implementation measures proposed are consistent with and adequate to carry out comprehensive 
plan policies and designations as noted in these findings.  
 

GOAL 3: AGRICULTURAL LANDS 
 To preserve and maintain agricultural lands. 
 
Finding: Not applicable because the proposal does not propose any land use regulation changes to 
agricultural lands outside of the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary. 

293



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

 
GOAL 4:  FOREST LANDS 
To conserve forest lands by maintaining the forest land base and to protect the state's 
forest economy by making possible economically efficient forest practices that assure the 
continuous growing and harvesting of forest tree species as the leading use on forest land 
consistent with sound management of soil, air, water, and fish and wildlife resources and to 
provide for recreational opportunities and agriculture. 

 
Finding: Not applicable because the proposal does not propose any land use regulation changes to 
forest lands outside of the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary. 
 

GOAL 5:  NATURAL RESOURCES, SCENIC AND HISTORIC AREAS, AND OPEN SPACES 
 To protect natural resources and conserve scenic and historic areas and open spaces. 
 
Finding: The proposed amendments would not negatively impact inventoried Goal 5 resources 
because the amendments do not change protections that already exist in the Newberg Municipal 
Code to protect these resources, areas, and open spaces. Newberg has an acknowledged Stream 
Corridor designation, inventoried historic resources and identified open spaces in compliance with 
Goal 5. 
 

GOAL 6: AIR, WATER AND LAND RESOURCES QUALITY 
 To maintain and improve the quality of the air, water and land resources of the state. 
 
Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged comprehensive plan that complies with this goal. 
Protections are already in place for air, water and land resource quality. This proposal works within 
those parameters by providing efficiency of residential land uses within the Urban Growth 
Boundary and complies with Goal 6. 
 

GOAL 7: AREAS SUBJECT TO NATURAL HAZARDS 
 To protect people and property from natural hazards. 
 
Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged comprehensive plan that complies with this goal. This 
proposal does not modify the City’s natural hazards requirements such as flood plain areas. 
 

GOAL 8: RECREATIONAL NEEDS 
To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the state and visitors and, where 
appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary recreational facilities including 
destination resorts. 

 
Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged comprehensive plan that complies with this goal. The 
Chehalem Park and Recreation District (CPRD) is the lead on developing recreation areas within the 
Newberg Urban Growth Boundary. This proposal does not impede CPRD’s ability to plan and 
implement recreation areas. This proposal does not propose any destination resorts. Goal 8 

294



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

compliance is met. 
 

GOAL 9: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
To provide adequate opportunities throughout the state for a variety of economic activities 
vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon's citizens. 
 

Finding: A NewBERG, Newberg’s community visioning program, identifies housing as a need for the 
community. The proposal would provide for additional housing opportunities while creating the 
opportunity for new homes for the growing Newberg population base and growing economy at 
price points that are potentially in alignment with income levels. 
 

GOAL 10: HOUSING 
To provide for the housing needs of citizens of the state. 
 

Finding: Efficient development of residentially zoned land located within the City can provide the 
opportunity for additional housing to meet the needs of the citizens of Newberg. 
 
A NewBERG, Newberg’s community visioning program, identifies several housing weaknesses 
within the City, including lack of affordable housing for lower income families, lack of multifamily 
housing, and a lack of vacant rental residential housing. The proposed Municipal Code amendment 
creates the opportunity for Accessory Dwelling Units without off-street parking to be constructed 
in a variety of zones that allow single family residential development such as R-1, R-2, R-3, RP, C-2, 
C-3, I and AR. This provides flexibility to accommodate a variety of housing types including those 
that can be utilized for affordable housing and rental housing and complies with the goal. 
 
The proposal would assist in meeting density targets of 4.4 units per gross acre in Low Density (R-
1), 9 units per gross acre in Medium Density (R-2), and 16.5 units per gross acre in High Density (R-
3). 
 

GOAL 11:  PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES 
To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities and 
services to serve as a framework for urban and rural development.    

 
Finding: Newberg has acknowledged public facilities plans covering water, wastewater, 
transportation and stormwater. This proposal does not negatively affect any of these plans 
because the infrastructure is designed to meet the target densities of 4.4 units in R-1, 9 units in R-
2, and 16.5 units per gross acre in High Density (R-3), which will not be changed by the proposal 
and complies with Goal 11. 
 

GOAL 12: TRANSPORTATION 
To provide and encourage a safe, convenient and economic transportation system. 
 

Finding: The proposed text amendment does not modify the acknowledged transportation plan 

295



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

and no modifications to target densities of 4.4 units in R-1, 9 units in R-2, and 16.5 units in R-3 that 
would change a functional classification of roadways within the city. Goal 12 compliance is met. 
 

GOAL 13:  ENERGY CONSERVATION 
To conserve energy. 

 

Finding: No applicable as the proposed amendment does not affect energy conservation. 
 

GOAL 14: URBANIZATION 
To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land use, to 

accommodate urban population and urban employment inside urban growth boundaries, to 

ensure efficient use of land, and to provide for livable communities.  

 

Finding: The proposed amendment does not include an expansion of the Urban Growth Boundary 
but ensures the efficient use of the land within the Urban Growth Boundary for the projected 
population and employment opportunities within the City and meets the goal. 
 

GOAL 15: WILLAMETTE RIVER GREENWAY 
To protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the natural, scenic, historical, agricultural, 

economic and recreational qualities of lands along the Willamette River as the Willamette 

River Greenway. 

 

Finding: Not applicable because the proposed amendment does not impact the Willamette River 

Greenway and the protections already established by the Newberg Comprehensive Plan and 

development regulations. 

 

B. Newberg Municipal Code 
 
Chapter 15.100 LAND USE PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES 
 
15.100.060 Type IV procedure – Legislative. 
A. Type IV Actions Are Legislative. The planning commission shall hold a public hearing and 
make a recommendation to the city council. The city council shall hold another public 
hearing and make a final decision. 
B. Legislative actions include, but are not limited to: 
1. Amendments to the Newberg comprehensive plan text; 
2. Amendments to the Newberg development code; 
3. The creation of any land use regulation. 
C. The public hearing before the planning commission shall be held in accordance with the 
requirements of this code. Notice of a hearing on a legislative decision need not include a 
mailing to property owners or posting of property (refer to NMC 15.100.200 et seq.). 
D. Interested persons may present evidence and testimony relevant to the proposal. If 
criteria are involved, the planning commission shall make findings for each of the applicable 

296



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

criteria. 
E. The city council shall conduct a new hearing pursuant to this code. At the public hearing, 
the staff shall present the report of the planning commission and may provide other 
pertinent information. Interested persons shall be given the opportunity to present new 
testimony and information relevant to the proposal that was not heard before the planning 
commission. 
F. To the extent that a finding of fact is required, the city council shall make a finding for 
each of the applicable criteria and in doing so may sustain or reverse a finding of the 
planning commission. In granting an approval, the city council may delete, add, or modify 
any of the provisions in the proposal or attach certain conditions beyond those warranted 
for the compliance with standards if the city council determines that the conditions are 
necessary to fulfill the approval criteria. 
G. The city council’s decision shall become final upon the effective date of the ordinance or 
resolution. 

 

Finding: Public hearings with the Planning Commission and the City Council will be required to 
finalize a decision regarding the application for the amendment to the Newberg Municipal Code. 
This requirement can be met. 
 

297



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

C. Newberg Comprehensive Plan 
 

II. GOALS AND POLICIES 
 
A. CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT 
GOAL: To maintain a Citizen Involvement Program that offers citizens the opportunity for 
involvement in all phases of the planning process. 

 
Finding: This application is subject to the Type IV Legislative process, which requires public 
notification and public hearings before the Planning Commission and the City Council. This process 
has been established by the City and determined to be consistent with Goal I of the Oregon 
Statewide Planning Goals. The public hearing notice of the action and decision, and the hearings on 
this case before the Planning Commission and the City Council are all recognized as opportunities 
for citizen participation. The proposal complies with the goal. 
 

B. LAND USE PLANNING 
GOAL: To maintain an on-going land use planning program to implement statewide and 
local goals. The program shall be consistent with natural and cultural resources and needs. 
 

Finding: The proposed Municipal Code text amendment complies with HB 2001 and is consistent 
with the land use planning process for the City of Newberg and complies with the goal. 

C. AGRICULTURAL LANDS  
GOAL: To provide for the orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land uses. 
 

Finding: Not applicable because the proposal does not propose any land use regulation changes to 
agricultural lands outside of the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary. 

 

D. WOODED AREAS  
GOAL: To retain and protect wooded areas. 
POLICIES:  
2. Development in drainageways shall be limited in order to prevent erosion and protect 
water quality. Trees provide needed protection from erosion and should be maintained.  
  

Finding: Not applicable because the proposal does not propose any land use regulation changes to 
the Stream Corridor that protects wooded areas within the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary. 

 

E. AIR, WATER, AND LAND RESOURCE QUALITY  
GOAL: To maintain and, where feasible, enhance the air, water and land resource qualities 
within the community. 
POLICIES: 
1. Development shall not exceed the carrying capacity of the air, water or land resource 
base. 

298



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

 
Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged comprehensive plan that complies with this goal and 
policy. Protections are in place for air, water and land resource quality. This proposal works within 
those parameters by providing efficiency of residential land uses within the Urban Growth 
Boundary and complies with the goal and policy. 

 

F. AREAS SUBJECT TO NATURAL HAZARDS  
GOAL: To protect life and property from flooding and other natural hazards. 
 

Finding: Not applicable because the proposal does not modify policies or regulations related to 
natural hazard areas such as floodplains or landslide areas. 

 

G. OPEN SPACE, SCENIC, NATURAL, HISTORIC AND RECREATIONAL RESOURCES  
GOALS:  
1. To ensure that adequate land shall be retained in permanent open space use and that 
natural, scenic and historic resources are protected.  
2. To provide adequate recreational resources and opportunities for the citizens of the 
community and visitors.  
3. To protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the Willamette River Greenway. 
 

Finding: Not applicable because the proposal does not modify policies or regulations related to 
open space, scenic, historic and recreational resources. 
 

H. THE ECONOMY  
GOAL: To develop a diverse and stable economic base. 
POLICIES:  
1. General Policies  
a. In order to increase the percentage of persons who live in Newberg and work in 
Newberg, the City shall encourage a diverse and stable economic base. Potential methods 
may include, but are not limited to, land use controls and capital improvement programs. 
(Ordinance 2006-2634, January 3, 2006) 
 

Finding: The proposal will enhance the ability to meet the target densities in the R-1, R-2 and R-3 
zones, which in turn provides the opportunity for housing at price or rental points that encourage 
people to live and work in Newberg. The proposal complies with the goal and policy. 
 

I. HOUSING  
GOAL: To provide for diversity in the type, density and location of housing within the City to 
ensure there is an adequate supply of affordable housing units to meet the needs of City 
residents of various income levels. (Ordinance 2006-2634) 
POLICIES: 
1. Density Policies  
a. Density rather than housing type shall be the most important development criteria and 

299



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

shall be used to classify different types of residential areas on the plan. 
b. Target densities shall be as follows:  

Classification    Units Per Gross Acre*  

Urban Low Density      4.4  

Urban Medium Density    9  

Urban High Density      16.5 

*Includes a 25 percent allowance for streets, walkways and other right-of-ways, utilities, 

small open spaces, preservation of resources, and similar features. 

3. Mix Policies 
j. The City shall encourage innovation in housing types and design as a means of offering a 
greater variety of housing and reducing housing costs. 
m. Within the urban area, land use policies will attempt to provide a broad range of 
residential uses and encourage innovative development techniques. 
r. The City shall support the retention of affordable housing through public education, 
planning, zoning and community development programs. 
ac. Accessory dwelling units are encouraged where existing single family dwellings are 
constructed on a lot or parcel as an interior, attached or detached residential structure that 
is used in connection with or that is accessory to a single-family dwelling. 
 

Finding: Density is the driver rather than housing type as a policy. The proposal would assist in 
meeting density targets of 4.4 units per gross acre in Low Density (R-1), 9 units per gross acre in 
Medium Density (R-2), and 16.5 units per gross acre in High Density (R-3) stated in the Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan. The Newberg Comprehensive Plan indicates that actual development has 
been occurring at 3.6 units, below the planned density for 4.4 units per gross acre for Low Density. 
In Medium Density trends are identified at 5.8 units, below the 9 units per gross acre. For R-3 the 
numbers indicate 15.4 below the 16.5 per gross acre target. The proposal would assist in achieving 
the stated target densities by modifying regulations for Accessory Dwelling Units and the 
requirement for parking to make it easier to develop this housing product type. The proposal 
would also assist in encouraging a variety of home styles intermixed with traditional home styles 
and housing at a reduced costs to renters.  
 
Overall the proposal complies with the goal and policies. 

 

J. URBAN DESIGN  
GOAL 1: To maintain and improve the natural beauty and visual character of the City. 
4. Residential Areas Policies 
b. The City will evaluate and encourage various innovative and alternative approaches to 

zoning, including but not limited to the following: zero lot lines, cluster and density zoning, 

planned unit developments, performance standards, condominiums, and accessory dwelling 

units. 
 

Finding: The proposal will encourage accessory dwelling units by removing the requirement for off-
street parking for the accessory dwelling unit making it easier to develop this type of housing 

300



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

product and is in compliance with the Goal and Policy. 
 

K. TRANSPORTATION  
GOAL 8: Maintain and enhance the City's image, character and quality of life.  
POLICIES:  
d. The City will encourage development that protects the integrity of existing 
neighborhoods, commercial, and industrial areas using the following design techniques.  
1) New development and new transportation facilities shall be designed to meet the street 
classification, design, and access standards identified in the Transportation System Plan.  
 

Finding: The R-1, R-2 and R-3 zoned lands within Newberg are predominantly served by local 
residential streets that feed into collector and arterial roadways. The proposal does not change the 
street classifications identified within the Transportation System Plan by modifying the regulations 
for accessory dwelling unit parking. It maintains the integrity of neighborhoods for residential 
development and the target densities for R-1, R-2 and R-3. The proposal complies with the goal 
and policy. 
 

L. PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES  
GOAL: To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities 
and services to serve as a framework for urban development. 
POLICIES:  
1. All Facilities & Services Policies 
c. New public facilities and services shall be designed at levels consistent with planned 
densities and designated land uses for the area. 
2. Sewers and Water Policies 
c. Developments with urban densities should be encouraged to locate within the area 
which can be serviced by Newberg's present sanitary sewer system. 
 

Finding: Newberg has approved water, wastewater and storm water master plans that have been 
developed based on the target densities of 4.4 units per gross acre for R-1, 9 units per gross actress 
for R-2 lands, and 16.5 units per gross acre in R-3. As previously noted past trends are that 
densities have not been developing at the targeted densities. Modifications to removing parking 
requirements for accessory dwelling units assists in meeting the target densities and will be in 
alignment with the adopted public facilities plans. 
 
Overall the proposal complies with the goal and policies. 
 

M. ENERGY  
GOAL: To conserve energy through efficient land use patterns and energy- related policies 
and ordinances. 
POLICIES:  

1. Planning Policies  

a. The City will encourage energy-efficient development patterns.  Such patterns shall include 

301



 

 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0009 ADU Parking Requirements\Planning Commission\DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC 02-13-20.doc 

the mixture of compatible land uses and a compactness of urban development.  

 

Finding: The proposal will continue to assist the City’s efforts to have a compact urban form for 
residential development and as a result assists in conserving energy through an efficient land use 
pattern. The proposal complies with the goal and policy. 
 

N. URBANIZATION  
GOALS:  
1. To provide for the orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land uses.  
2. To maintain Newberg's identity as a community which is separate from the Portland 
Metropolitan area.  
3. To create a quality living environment through a balanced growth of urban and cultural 
activities.  
 

Finding: The proposal is not requesting an Urban Growth Boundary expansion, maintains 
Newberg’s separation from the Portland Metropolitan area and works to meeting the density 
targets listed in the Comprehensive Plan while balancing growth. The proposal complies with the 
goal and policies. 
 

 

Conclusion:  The proposed Municipal Code amendment meets the applicable requirements 
of the Statewide Planning Goals, and the Newberg Comprehensive Plan, and should be 
approved. 
 

302



ATTACHMENT 1

303



Agenda Item No:VIB.

Planning Commission Agenda Item Report
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020
Submitted by: Keith Leonard
Submitting Department: Community Development  
Item Type: Planning Commission Hearings
Agenda Section: 

Subject:
Development Code Amendment of Residential Use Restrictions on the First Floor of Buildings on E/W Second
Street 

Suggested Action:
Move to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 2020-354, which recommends that the City Council adopt the
requested amendments to Section 15.305.020 Zoning Table footnotes 5 and 8.

Attachments:
DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - Staff Report - 20200213 - PC
Final.pdf

304

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/523804/DCA19-0003_Residential_Use_Limitations-Commercial_Use_Requirement_on_Second_St_-_Staff_Report_-_20200213_-_PC_Final.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/523804/DCA19-0003_Residential_Use_Limitations-Commercial_Use_Requirement_on_Second_St_-_Staff_Report_-_20200213_-_PC_Final.pdf


 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

  Community Development Department 
    P.O.Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 
        503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
FIRST FLOOR RESIDENTIAL USE RESTRICTION AND COMMERCIAL USE 

REQUIREMENT ALONG E/W SECOND STREET IN THE C-3 ZONE 
  

HEARING DATE: February 13, 2020 

FILE NO:  DCA19-0003 

APPLICANT: City of Newberg, initiated by City Council Resolution No. 2019-3531 
 
REQUEST: Amend the Newberg Municipal Code to remove residential use 

restrictions along E/W Second Street in the C-3 zone 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Planning Commission Resolution 2019-0354 with:  
 Exhibit “A”:  Proposed Municipal Code Text Amendments 
 Exhibit “B”:  Findings 
 Attachments: 

1.  City Council Resolution 2019-3531 initiating text amendments 
2.  Newberg Downtown Improvement Plan (NDIP) pages 2, 3, 13, 20, 29, 49 and 54 

 

 

A. SUMMARY:  The proposed amendments would do the following: 

City Staff recommend amendments to Section 15.305.020 footnote 5 and 8 of the 
Newberg Municipal Code (NMC). Based on the Newberg Downtown Improvement 
Plan (NDIP), staff is proposing to remove the aforementioned restriction of residential 
use and commercial use requirement for E/W Second Street in the C-3 zone. The 
residential use restriction and commercial use requirement would still apply to E/W 
Hancock Street. The NDIP places an emphasis on additional residential use along 
E/W Second Street between S Grant and S River Streets (Figure 1). 

The first proposed amendment is to Section 15.305.020 Zoning Table footnote 5, 
which restricts residential uses along both Hancock and Second Streets to no more 
than 30 percent of a single street frontage block. Additionally, the current code 
requires that the remaining 70 percent of street frontage be commercial use. 
Providing more residential use along E/W Second Street may increase the foot traffic 
and number of customers supporting the businesses within Downtown Newberg. 

 

305



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

 

Figure 1 NDIP Proposed Amendments area along E & W Second Street 

 The second proposed amendment is to NMC Section 15.305.020 Zoning Table 
footnote 8, prohibits two-family dwellings (duplex), multifamily dwellings and mixed 
use dwellings from occupying the first floor storefront area within the C-3 Zoning on 
E/W Second Street. Amendment of this footnote may also increase the foot traffic 
and number of customers supporting the businesses within Downtown Newberg. 

B. BACKGROUND:  

On February 4, 2019, the City of Newberg adopted Resolution 2019-3531, 
Attachment 1, initiating code amendments to the Newberg Municipal Code (NMC), 
Title 15 Development Code, which would remove first floor residential use restriction 
and commercial use requirement of buildings along E/W Second Street in the C-3 
zone. There is one block in the C-3 zone along W Second Street between S Grant 
and S Main Streets that that wasn’t listed in Resolution 2019-3531, however staff 
believes this is an appropriate additional area to add to the proposed NMC 
amendments because this area is within the Newberg Downtown Improvement Plan 
(NDIP) area (Figure 1). 

On July 24, 2019, City Staff meet with the Mike Ragsdale of the Downtown Coalition 
to discuss the potential for several comprehensive plan and development code 
amendments, including the proposed amendment to footnote 5 of Section 
15.305.020 Zoning Table. After further review of the NMC, it has been determined 
that footnote 8 must also be amended in order to support residential dwellings on the 
first floor of buildings along E/W Second Street in the C-3 zone. On February 3, 

E & W Second 

St. between S 

Grant and S 

River Streets 

306



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

2020, City staff met with the Molly Olson, Director of the Newberg Downtown 
Coalition, to provide an update on the development code amendments to footnotes 5 
and 8. City staff explained that the proposed amendments are in line with the 
recommendations of the NDIP and would still keep the focus on E/W Hancock Street 
for commercial and office use while allowing more flexibility on E/W Second Street 
for developers to construct buildings for purely residential use. These amendments 
would not restrict a developer from developing commercial uses on E/W Second 
Street, they provide more flexibility if a developer would like to build residential units 
on the first floor of a building. 

On December 12, 2019, the City of Newberg Planning Commission held a workshop 
to discuss the potential amendments to the NMC involving first floor residential use 
restriction and commercial use requirement on the first floor of buildings along E/W 
Second Street in the C-3 zone.  

C. PROCESS:  A development code amendment is a Type IV application and follows 
the procedures in Newberg Municipal Code 15.100.060.  The Planning Commission 
will hold a legislative hearing on the application. The Commission will make a 
recommendation to the Newberg City Council.  Following the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation, the Newberg City Council will hold a legislative public hearing to 
consider the matter. Important dates related to this application are as follows: 

1. 02/04/19: The Newberg City Council adopted Resolution 2019-
3531, initiating the NMC amendments. 

2. 12/12/19: The Planning Commission held a workshop to discuss the 
potential amendments to the NMC Title 15 Development 
Code and provide direction to City Staff. 

3. 01/22/20: City Staff posted notices in four public buildings and the 

Newberg Graphic published notice of the hearing.   

4. 01/26/20: Planning staff placed notice on Newberg’s website. 

5. 02/13/20: The Planning Commission held a public hearing, took 
public testimony, and deliberated on the proposal. 

D. AGENCY COMMENTS: As of the writing of this report, the city received a total of 6 
responses with five no conflict responses and one comment. The one comment 
regarding water availability for fire sprinklers was submitted by the Building Division. 
Water availability for fire hydrants is verified during the public improvements permit 
review process. Water availability for fire sprinklers is reviewed by the City Building 
Division during the building permit review process. The following agencies submitted 
comments: 
 

- Frontier Communications – no conflict 

- Newberg Engineering – no conflict 

- Newberg Public Works and Maintenance – no conflict 

- Newberg Community Development Director – no conflict 

307



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

- Newberg Finance – no conflict 

- Newberg Building – Verify water is available for fire sprinklers that will be 
required for residential occupancies attached to commercial buildings or any 
multi-family buildings. 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS: No public comments either for or against the code 
amendments have been received as of the date this report was drafted.  

F. ANALYSIS: The 2017-2018 City Council goals, the NDIP and the Newberg Economic 
Development Strategy (NEDS) all provide support for amending NMC Section 
15.305.020 Zoning Table footnotes 5 and 8 to allow residential dwelling units on E/W 
Second Street in the C-3 zone. 

2017-2018 City Council Goals 

The 2017-2018 City Council Goals provide support for removal of the residential use 

restriction and commercial use requirement along E/W Second Street including: 

City Council Goal 8: Encourage Affordable Housing 

By modifying the commercial use requirement for first floors along E/W Second 

Street there is greater potential for developers to construct additional residential units 

within the downtown and the potential for additional affordable housing units. 

However, there is no guarantee that affordable housing will be constructed along 

E/W Second Street in the C-3 zone due to developers determining if affordable 

housing is something they want. By providing additional housing along E/W Second 

Street in the C-3 zone existing businesses within the downtown may see additional 

customers. 

Goal 11: Implement Newberg Economic Development Strategy 

Newberg Economic Development Strategy (NEDS) 

On April 18, 2016 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2016-3274 approving the 

first NEDS. On August 19, 2019 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2019-3585 

approving A NewBERG, Newberg’s Community Visioning program, which included a 

Community Profile, Community Vision and Action Plan. On November 18, 2019 the 

NEDS update was adopted by City Council Resolution 2019-3619. The NEDS 

Committee, consisting of the Chehalem Valley Chamber of Commerce, Newberg 

Downtown Coalition, Strategic Economic Development Corporation, Visit Newberg, 

real estate brokerage community and the City of Newberg worked on the 2019 

update. The 2019 NEDS incorporates goals, strategies and actions from the 

community visioning economic development document identified by the community. 

The 2019 NEDS update retools strategies and actions from the original 2016 NEDS 

document that are foundational activities in conducting an economic development 

program, along with capturing some actions that were not brought forward during the 

community visioning program development. 

308



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

One of the goals in the 2019 NEDS pertains to Downtown Newberg, “complete 

funding, administrative, and organizational actions for Newberg Downtown 

Improvement Plan”. The applicable item from the NEDS is Strategy 4.4 Complete 

regulatory improvements pertains to needed NMC amendments.  The applicable 

action item is number 3, which states “Update Zoning and Development Code”. 

Newberg Downtown Improvement Plan (NDIP) 

Amending the NMC is one of the incremental implementation items listed in the 

NDIP. The following statements are taken directly from the pages of the NDIP and 

support the proposed amendments to the NMC. 

Page 2 states a desired outcome that “Downtown will have increased density, a 

diverse mix of businesses and a broad range of places in which to live”.  

Page 3 of the NDIP states a vision and desired outcomes intended to guide future 

action from the “big picture” level. One of the ten “Big Ideas” states “Second Street 

Mixed-Use District: A place to live with access to all downtown has to offer”. 

Page 13 lists desired outcomes including “Downtown will have increased density, a 

diverse mix of businesses and a broad range of places in which to live”. 

Page 20 restates the “Big Idea” that Second Street should be a Mixed-Use District 

providing people a place to live with access to all the downtown has to offer. The 

NDIP states that  “housing is a key component of successful downtowns – it provides 

for a large and growing market of consumers wanting to live in close proximity to 

goods, services, restaurants, and other activities and resources offered in a 

downtown environment. While additional housing is encouraged throughout 

downtown, the area along Second Street offers a unique opportunity for 

appropriately scaled multi-family apartments, condominiums, townhomes, or 

rowhomes at a variety of affordability levels, integrated with ground floor retail or 

other commercial uses in a mixed-use environment immediately adjacent to the First 

Street commercial core. This will help fill a demonstrated housing need, provide 

additional business opportunities, create an active downtown neighborhood, and 

increase the number of rooftops supporting downtown merchants”. 

Page 29 of the NDIP states “revise the C-3 zone to achieve the vision for these three 

streets (Hancock, First and Second Streets) as a mix of commercial, service and 

residential uses, with a heavier emphasis on residential along Second Street…” 

Page 49 is located within the Implementation section of the NDIP and focusses on 

items related to Second Street. The applicable implementation item is constructing 

“Infill housing demonstration project”. There is a new privately developed mixed-use 

building under construction on the corner of S Edwards Street and E Second Street 

that will have commercial use on the first floor and 19 apartments on the second and 

third floors and 1 live-work unit on the first floor. This the first mixed-use building 

along E Second Street to be constructed in the Downtown since the adoption of the 

NDIP. 

309



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

Page 54 the NDIP refers to needed regulatory Improvements. “Downtowns 

continually evolve. For this reason, it is crucial for regulations and policies to remain 

flexible and, on an ongoing basis, to look to codify and synchronize policies with 

current projects and actions. Amendments to the City’s Comprehensive Plan and 

Zoning Redevelopment Code and the creation of design guidelines for a new M-5 

zone are proposed as actions to be taken in the short term”. 

PRELIMINARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  The preliminary staff recommendation is 
made in the absence of public hearing testimony and may be modified subsequent to the 
close of the public hearing.  At this writing, staff recommends the following motion: 

Move to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 2020-354, which recommends that the City 
Council adopt the requested amendments. 

310



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 2019-354 

 

 A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING THAT THE CITY COUNCIL AMEND THE 

NEWBERG MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 15 DEVELOPMENT CODE TO REMOVE 

THE REQUIREMENT FOR FIRST FLOOR COMMERCIAL USE AND THE 

RESTRICTION OF RESIDENTIAL USE ALONG E/W SECOND STREET WITHIN 

THE C-3 ZONE 

1. The City Council adopted Resolution 2016-3345 on December 5, 2016, which adopted the 

Newberg Downtown Improvement Plan (NDIP) as a guiding document for future planning 

efforts and investments in the downtown. The final version of the NDIP was completed on 

January 26, 2017. 

2. Page 29 of the NDIP states “revise the C-3 zone to achieve the vision for these three streets 

(Hancock, First and Second Streets) as a mix of commercial, service and residential uses, with 

a heavier emphasis on residential along Second Street and commercial and service uses along 

First Street, and a desired form of two- to four-story buildings.” 

3. On February 4, 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution 2019-3531 initiating amendments 

to the Newberg Municipal Code, Title 15 Development Code to implement the NDIP and 

NEDS. 

4. On December 12, 2019, the Newberg Planning Commission conducted a public workshop to 

gather input, discuss the potential amendments to the NMC and provide direction to City staff. 

5. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission opened the hearing on February 13, 2020, 

considered public testimony and deliberated. They found that the proposed code amendments 

were in the best interests of the city. 

The Newberg Planning Commission resolves as follows: 

1. The Planning Commission recommends that the City Council adopt the amendments to the 

Newberg Municipal Code as shown in Exhibit “A.”  Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted and by this 

reference incorporated. 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “B” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "B" is by this reference 

incorporated. 

Adopted by the Newberg Planning Commission this 13th day of February, 2020.  

      

ATTEST: 

 

Planning Commission Chair     Planning Commission Secretary 

311



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

List of Exhibits: 

 Exhibit “A”: Municipal Code Amendments  

 Exhibit “B”:  Findings 

  

312



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

Exhibit “A” to Planning Commission Resolution 2019-354 

Municipal Code Amendments – File DCA19-0003 

First Floor Residential Use Restriction and Commercial Use Requirement 

along E/W Second Street within the C-3 Zone 
 

Existing text is shown in regular font. Proposed deleted text is shown in strikethrough text, 

proposed new text is in bold double underline 
  

The Newberg Municipal Code shall be amended as follows: 
 

15.305.020 Zoning use table – Use districts. 

1. Amend Newberg Municipal Code Section 15.305.020 Zoning Table footnote 5, 
which restricts residential uses along both Hancock and Second Streets to no more 
than 30 percent of a single street frontage.  

Proposed text deletion is shown in strikethrough text. Footnote 5 would modify the following 
code text.  

Section 15.305.020 (5) The dwelling units must front onto Hancock or Second Street. No 

more than 30 percent of a single street frontage of a block may be occupied by residential 

uses. Contiguous residential street frontage must be less than 60 lineal feet. Density and 

parking standards for allowable dwelling units must be met.  

 

2. Amend Newberg Municipal Code Section 15.305.020 Zoning Table footnote 8, 

which prohibits two-family dwellings (duplex), multifamily dwellings and Dwelling, 

mixed use mixed use dwellings from occupying the first floor storefront area within 

the C-3 zone on E/W Second Street. 

Proposed new text is in bold and double underlined. Footnote 8 would modify the 

following code text. 

Section 15.305.020 (8) The units must be located on the same lots as another use 
permitted or conditionally permitted in the C-3 zone and may not occupy the first floor 

storefront area (the portion of the building closest to the primary street), except on E/W 

Second Street where dwelling units are permitted to occupy the first floor of a 

building. There shall be no density limitation. Private parking areas or garages are not 
required for dwelling units located within buildings in existence prior to and including June 
30, 1999. Parking shall be provided for all new dwelling units within any building 
constructed after June 30, 1999, in private parking areas or garages on the basis of one 
parking space for each dwelling unit.

313

https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/defs.pl?def=105
https://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/defs.pl?def=102


 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

Exhibit “B” to Planning Commission Resolution 2019-354 

Municipal Code Amendments – File DCA19-0002 

First Floor Residential Use Restriction and Commercial Use Requirement 

along E/W Second Street within the C-3 Zone 

APPROVAL CRITERIA 

A. Statewide Planning Goals (the “Goals”) 

GOAL 1: CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT 
To develop a citizen involvement program that insures the opportunity for citizens to 
be involved in all phases of the planning process. 

 

Finding: This application is subject to the Type IV Legislative process, which requires 
public notification and public hearings before the Planning Commission and the City 
Council. This process has been established by the City and determined to be consistent 
with this Goal. The public hearing notice of the action and decision and the hearings on this 
case before the Planning Commission and the City Council are all recognized as 
opportunities for citizen participation. 

 

GOAL 2: LAND USE PLANNING 
To establish a land use planning process and policy framework as a basis for all 
decisions and actions related to use of land and to assure an adequate factual base 
for such decisions and actions. 
 

Finding: This Goal requires that land use decisions 1) have an adequate factual base, 2) 
that alternatives have been considered, and 3) that implementation measures are 
consistent with and adequate to carry out comprehensive plan policies and designations. 
 
The proposed land use action has an adequate factual base and has been thoroughly 
described in this application. 
 
The alternative to amending the municipal code text for footnote 5 would be to deny the 
application and continue to restrict residential use to no more than 30 percent and no more 
than 60 contiguous lineal feet along E/W Second Street.  
 
The alternative to amending the municipal code text for footnote 8 would be to continue to 
not allow residential dwelling units to occupy the first floor of buildings along E/W Second 
Street. Prohibiting residential use and requiring commercial use on the first floor of 
buildings on E/W Second Street would be contrary to the recommendations in the Newberg 
Downtown Improvement Plan (NDIP). The NDIP clearly states that the focus on E/W 
Second Street should be to establish more residential use. 
 
Implementation measures proposed are consistent with and adequate to carry out 
comprehensive plan policies and designations as noted in these findings. The changes to 
the implementation measures of the code as a part of this land use action are proposed to 

314



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

affect Section 15.305.020 Zoning Table footnote 5 and 8. 
 
The Applicants’ proposed amendments to the NMC are consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

 

GOAL 3: AGRICULTURAL LANDS 
 To preserve and maintain agricultural lands. 
 

Finding: Not applicable because the proposal does not propose any land use regulation 
changes to agricultural lands outside of the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary. 
 

GOAL 4:  FOREST LANDS 
To conserve forest lands by maintaining the forest land base and to protect the 
state's forest economy by making possible economically efficient forest practices 
that assure the continuous growing and harvesting of forest tree species as the 
leading use on forest land consistent with sound management of soil, air, water, and 
fish and wildlife resources and to provide for recreational opportunities and 
agriculture. 

 

Finding: Not applicable because the proposal does not propose any land use regulation 
changes to forest lands outside of the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary. 
 

GOAL 5:  NATURAL RESOURCES, SCENIC AND HISTORIC AREAS, AND OPEN 

SPACES 
To protect natural resources and conserve scenic and historic areas and open 
spaces. 

 

Finding: The proposed amendments would not negatively impact inventoried Goal 5 
resources because the amendments do not change protections that already exist in the 
Newberg Municipal Code to protect these resources, areas, and open spaces. Newberg 
has an acknowledged Stream Corridor designation, inventoried historic resources, and 
identified open spaces in compliance with Goal 5. 
 
Goal 5 is not applicable to the proposed NMC amendments because the amendments do 
not affect natural resources, scenic and historic areas or open spaces. 
 

GOAL 6: AIR, WATER AND LAND RESOURCES QUALITY 
 To maintain and improve the quality of the air, water and land resources of the state. 
 

Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged comprehensive plan that complies with this goal. 
Protections are already in place for air, water and land resource quality. This proposal 
works within those parameters by providing efficiency of residential land uses and possibly 
reducing air pollution by placing more residential use along E/W Second Street in the C-3 
zone where residents could walk to commercial uses instead of driving a vehicle. By 
increasing residential density within the downtown area land is being more efficiently 
utilized. The proposed amendments comply with Goal 6. 
 

315



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

GOAL 7: AREAS SUBJECT TO NATURAL HAZARDS 
 To protect people and property from natural hazards. 
 

Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged comprehensive plan that complies with this goal. 
This proposal is not applicable because the proposal does not  modify the City’s natural 
hazards requirements, such as flood plain areas. 
 

GOAL 8: RECREATIONAL NEEDS 
To satisfy the recreational needs of the citizens of the state and visitors and, where 
appropriate, to provide for the siting of necessary recreational facilities including 
destination resorts. 

 

Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged comprehensive plan that complies with this goal. 
The Chehalem Park and Recreation District (CPRD) is the lead on developing recreation 
areas within the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary. This proposal does not impede CPRD’s 
ability to plan and implement recreation areas. This proposal does not propose any 
destination resorts. Goal 8 compliance is met. 
 

GOAL 9: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
To provide adequate opportunities throughout the state for a variety of economic 
activities vital to the health, welfare, and prosperity of Oregon's citizens. 
 

Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged comprehensive plan that complies with this goal. 
This application is in-line with the 2017-2018 City Council Goals 8 and 11. The 2019 
Newberg Economic Development Strategy (NEDS) identifies housing as a need for the 
community. One of the impediments to encouraging residential land uses within the 
downtown along E/W Second Street in the C-3 zone is Section 15.305.020 Zoning Table 
footnote 5, which restricts residential uses along both Hancock and Second Streets to no 
more than 30 percent of a single street frontage and residential use is not permitted to 
extend for more than 60 contiguous lineal feet. The second impediment to encouraging 
additional housing on E/W Second Street is footnote 8, which does not allow residential 
use on the first floor of buildings. The proposed amendments would maintain the 
aforementioned emphasis for commercial use along Hancock Street, which is a major 
commercial use corridor through Downtown Newberg. The following City Council Goals and 
2019 NEDS supports the proposed amendments to the NMC. 

City Council Goal 8: Encourage Affordable Housing 
 
By modifying the commercial use requirement for first floors along E/W Second Street in 
the C-3 zone there is greater potential for developers to construct additional residential 
units within the downtown and the potential for additional affordable housing units. 
However, there is no guarantee that affordable housing will be constructed along E/W 
Second Street in the C-3 zone due developers determining if affordable housing is 
something they want to construct. Additional residential units may increase support for the 
existing businesses within the downtown. 
 
Goal 11: Implement Newberg Economic Development Strategy 

316



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

 
One of the goals in the 2019 NEDS pertains to Downtown Newberg. The goal states 
“complete funding, administrative, and organizational actions for Newberg Downtown 
Improvement Plan”. The applicable item from the NEDS includes Strategy 4.4 Complete 
regulatory improvements pertains to needed NMC amendments. The applicable action item 
is number 3 which states “Update Zoning and Development Code”. 
 
This goal is satisfied because the proposed NMC amendments do not negatively affect 
adequate opportunities for a variety of economic activities vital to the health, welfare, and 
prosperity of Newberg’s or Oregon's citizens. 
 

GOAL 10: HOUSING 
To provide for the housing needs of citizens of the state. 
 

Finding: The proposed amendments would provide additional incentives to property 
owners and developers that encourage additional housing within the downtown along E/W 
Second Street in the C-3 zone. The proposed amendments are supported by City Council 
Goal 8 “Encourage Affordable Housing” and the NEDS stating a need to “update zoning 
and development code”. The proposed amendments may encourage additional housing 
along E/W Second Street in the C-3 zone. 
 
This goal is met because the proposal will provide an additional incentive to developers for 
constructing additional residential units along E/W Second Street. 
 

GOAL 11:  PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES 
To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities 
and services to serve as a framework for urban and rural development.    

 

Finding: Newberg has acknowledged public facilities plans covering water, wastewater, 
transportation and stormwater. 
 
This proposal would not negatively affect any of these plans.  
 

GOAL 12: TRANSPORTATION 
To provide and encourage a safe, convenient and economic transportation system. 
 

Finding: The proposed text amendments do not modify the acknowledged transportation 
plan. Approval of the proposed amendments would not negatively affect the City’s 
transportation system.  
 
This goal is met because the proposed amendments do not negatively affect the safety, 
convenience or the economics of Newberg’s transportation system. 
 

GOAL 13:  ENERGY CONSERVATION 
To conserve energy. 

 

Finding: The proposed amendments may reduce the need for vehicle transportation 

317



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

because by encouraging additional residential uses within the downtown along E and 
Second Street in the C-3 zone there is the potential that energy will be conserved by 
residents being able to walk to the downtown for shopping or eating instead of driving a 
vehicle. 
 
The proposed amendments comply with this goal because it does not affect energy 
conservation or concerns about renewable energy. In fact, energy may be conserved by 
the proposed amendments. 
 

GOAL 14: URBANIZATION 
To provide for an orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land use, to 
accommodate urban population and urban employment inside urban growth 
boundaries, to ensure efficient use of land, and to provide for livable communities.  

 

Finding: Not applicable because the proposed amendments do not affect the existing 
Urban Growth Boundary, buildable lands, employment, industry, open space, recreation 
areas, or the acknowledged transportation plan and does not create a conflict in the 
transition from rural to urban lands. 
 

GOAL 15: WILLAMETTE RIVER GREENWAY 
To protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the natural, scenic, historical, 
agricultural, economic and recreational qualities of lands along the Willamette River 
as the Willamette River Greenway. 

 

Finding: Not applicable because the proposed amendments do not impact the Willamette 
River Greenway and the protections already established by the Newberg Comprehensive 
Plan and development regulations. 
 

B. Newberg Municipal Code 

 

Chapter 15.100 LAND USE PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES 

 

15.100.060 Type IV procedure – Legislative. 
A. Type IV Actions Are Legislative. The planning commission shall hold a public 
hearing and make a recommendation to the city council. The city council shall hold 
another public hearing and make a final decision. 
B. Legislative actions include, but are not limited to: 

1. Amendments to the Newberg comprehensive plan text; 
2. Amendments to the Newberg development code; 
3. The creation of any land use regulation. 

C. The public hearing before the planning commission shall be held in accordance 
with the requirements of this code. Notice of a hearing on a legislative decision need 
not include a mailing to property owners or posting of property (refer to NMC 
15.100.200 et seq.). 
D. Interested persons may present evidence and testimony relevant to the proposal. 
If criteria are involved, the planning commission shall make findings for each of the 
applicable criteria. 

318



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

E. The city council shall conduct a new hearing pursuant to this code. At the public 
hearing, the staff shall present the report of the planning commission and may 
provide other pertinent information. Interested persons shall be given the opportunity 
to present new testimony and information relevant to the proposal that was not 
heard before the planning commission. 
F. To the extent that a finding of fact is required, the city council shall make a finding 
for each of the applicable criteria and in doing so may sustain or reverse a finding of 
the planning commission. In granting an approval, the city council may delete, add, 
or modify any of the provisions in the proposal or attach certain conditions beyond 
those warranted for the compliance with standards if the city council determines that 
the conditions are necessary to fulfill the approval criteria. 
G. The city council’s decision shall become final upon the effective date of the 
ordinance or resolution. 

 

Finding: Public hearings with the Planning Commission and the City Council will be 
required to finalize a decision regarding the application for the proposed amendments to 
the NMC.  
 
The proposed amendments meet the requirements of Section15.100 of the NMC. 
 

319



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

C. Newberg Comprehensive Plan 

 

II. GOALS AND POLICIES 

 

A. CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT 
GOAL: To maintain a Citizen Involvement Program that offers citizens the 
opportunity for involvement in all phases of the planning process. 

 

Finding: This application is subject to the Type IV Legislative process, which requires 
public notification and public hearings before the Planning Commission and the City 
Council. This process has been established by the City and determined to be consistent 
with Goal 1 of the Oregon Statewide Planning Goals. The public hearing notice of the 
action and decision, and the hearings on this case before the Planning Commission and 
the City Council are all recognized as opportunities for citizen participation.  
 
The proposed amendments comply with this goal from the Newberg Comprehensive Plan 
(NCP) because citizens have had the opportunity for involvement in the planning process. 
 

B. LAND USE PLANNING 
GOAL: To maintain an on-going land use planning program to implement statewide 
and local goals. The program shall be consistent with natural and cultural resources 
and needs. 
 

Finding: The proposed text amendments to the NMC to remove the residential use 
restriction and commercial use requirement along E/W Second Street in the C-3 zone is 
consistent with the land use planning process for the City of Newberg and complies with 
this goal from the NCP. 

C. AGRICULTURAL LANDS  
GOAL: To provide for the orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land 
uses. 
 

Finding: This goal from the NCP is not applicable because the proposal does not propose 
any land use regulation changes to agricultural lands outside of the Newberg Urban Growth 
Boundary. 

 

D. WOODED AREAS  
GOAL: To retain and protect wooded areas. 
POLICIES:  
2. Development in drainageways shall be limited in order to prevent erosion and 
protect water quality. Trees provide needed protection from erosion and should be 
maintained.  
  

Finding: This goal from the NCP is not applicable because the proposal does not propose 
any land use regulation changes to the Stream Corridor that protects wooded areas within 
the Newberg Urban Growth Boundary. 

 

320



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

E. AIR, WATER, AND LAND RESOURCE QUALITY  
GOAL: To maintain and, where feasible, enhance the air, water and land resource 
qualities within the community. 
POLICIES: 
1) Development shall not exceed the carrying capacity of the air, water or land 
resource base. 
 

Finding: Newberg has an acknowledged comprehensive plan that complies with this goal 
and policy. Protections are in place for air, water and land resource quality.  
 
This proposal works within those parameters by providing efficiency with the use of land 
and an incentive to develop residential land uses within the Urban Growth Boundary near 
the downtown where residents could walk to services and businesses instead of driving a 
vehicle. The proposed NMC amendments comply with this goal and policy from the NCP. 
 

F. AREAS SUBJECT TO NATURAL HAZARDS  
GOAL: To protect life and property from flooding and other natural hazards. 
 

Finding: This goal from the NCP is not applicable because the proposal does not modify 
policies or regulations related to natural hazard areas such as floodplains or landslide 
areas within the City of Newberg. 

 

G. OPEN SPACE, SCENIC, NATURAL, HISTORIC AND RECREATIONAL 

RESOURCES  
GOALS:  
1) To ensure that adequate land shall be retained in permanent open space use and 
that natural, scenic and historic resources are protected.  
2) To provide adequate recreational resources and opportunities for the citizens of 
the community and visitors.  
3) To protect, conserve, enhance and maintain the Willamette River Greenway. 
 

Finding: This goal from the NCP is not applicable because the proposal does not modify 
policies or regulations related to open space, scenic, historic and recreational resources. 
 

H. THE ECONOMY  
GOAL: To develop a diverse and stable economic base. 
POLICIES:  
1) General Policies  
a. In order to increase the percentage of persons who live in Newberg and work in 
Newberg, the City shall encourage a diverse and stable economic base. Potential 
methods may include, but are not limited to, land use controls and capital 
improvement programs. (Ordinance 2006-2634, January 3, 2006) 
 

Finding: The proposal will enhance the ability for Newberg to attract additional residential 
land use development within the downtown along E/W Second Street in the C-3 zone. 
Additional residents living within the downtown is important to sustaining and growing the 
local economy, which in turn will provide additional support to businesses within the 

321



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

downtown by these residents shopping, buying food and drink and using services providers 
offered within the downtown.  
 
The proposal complies with this goal and policy from the NCP. 
 

I. HOUSING  
GOAL: To provide for diversity in the type, density and location of housing within the 
City to ensure there is an adequate supply of affordable housing units to meet the 
needs of City residents of various income levels. (Ordinance 2006-2634) 
POLICIES: 
 
2) Location Policies 
a. Medium and high density areas should be located for immediate access to 
collector streets or minor arterials and should not cause traffic to move through low 
density areas. High density areas should be easily accessible to arterial streets. 
They should also be located near commercial services and public open spaces. 
 

Finding: This proposal should increase the likelihood that residential housing units may be 
developed within the downtown along E/W Second Street within the C-3 zone, which is 
near commercial services. E/W Second Street is classified as a Major collector. 
 
Overall the proposed Municipal Code amendments comply with the goal and policy from 
the NCP. 

 

J. URBAN DESIGN  
GOAL 1: To maintain and improve the natural beauty and visual character of the 
City. 
 
5) Downtown Policies  

c. The City should encourage a variety of commercial and service activities to 
locate in the central business district, including mixed-use commercial/residential 
buildings and mixed-use commercial/craft industrial to create a vital downtown 
core with a strong retail sector. (Ordinance 2016-2810, December 19, 2016) 
e. The City should encourage a higher utilization of downtown space, 
encouraging intensive use of all building levels. (Ordinance 2016-2810, 
December 19, 2016) 

 

Finding: The proposal will encourage innovative design of mixed use buildings by 
providing an economic incentive for developers to build additional residential units within 
the downtown. As with any downtown, it is important to increase population densities 
because the additional residents tend to purchase goods and utilize services from 
downtown businesses. 
 
Overall the proposal complies with this goal and policies of the NCP.  
 

K. TRANSPORTATION  
GOAL 3: Promote reliance on multiple modes of transportation and reduce reliance 

322



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

on the automobile. 
 
b. Modifications should be made to the City's land use plan and development 
ordinances that will decrease trip length and encourage non-auto oriented 
development. 

1) The City should encourage neighborhood medium density and mixed use 
commercial development nodes. (Ordinance 2016-2810, December 19, 2016) 
2) The City should encourage higher density development in residential areas 
near transit corridors, commercial areas and employment centers, including the 
downtown. (Ordinance 2016-2810, December 19, 2016) 

 
GOAL 8: Maintain and enhance the City's image, character and quality of life. 

  
d. The City will encourage development that protects the integrity of existing 
neighborhoods, commercial, and industrial areas using the following design 
techniques. 

3) Make use of on-street parking and buildings that abut the street frontage in the 
central business district and designated neighborhood commercial areas to 
create pedestrian friendly retail and commercial service environments. 
(Ordinance 2005-2619, May 16, 2005) 

 

Finding: By providing additional residential uses near the downtown business district 
residents will be able to walk to the downtown businesses instead of driving a vehicle, 
which will decrease trip length and encourage non-auto oriented development. These 
proposed amendments should encourage mixed-use buildings that include residential land 
use with an emphasis on residential use along E/W Second Street in the C-3 zone. Higher 
density residential use development within the downtown would be located near transit 
stops and corridors (E/W Second Street), downtown commercial uses and employment. 
  
On July 24, 2019, City staff meet with the Mike Ragsdale, past Director of the Downtown 
Coalition, to discuss the potential for several comprehensive plan and development code 
amendments, including the proposed development code amendment to footnote 5 of 
Section 15.305.020 Zoning Table. On February 3, 2020, City staff met with the current 
Director of the Downtown Coalition, Molly Olson, to go over the proposed amendments to 
both footnotes 5 and 8. City staff explained that the requirements for commercial use on 
the first floor of buildings on E/W Hancock Street would not be affected and that only E/W 
Second Street would allow residential use on the first floor of buildings as an option. City 
staff further explained that if a developer wanted to construct a new building or rehabilitate 
an existing building on E/W Second Street to provide commercial use on the first floor then 
they could do so. No concerns were raised during the meeting with Ms. Olson and the 
Downtown Coalition By getting input from the NDC the City will be working cooperatively 
with the business community to ensure there is support from the business community to 
increase residential use near the downtown and the potential for downtown businesses to 
have additional customers.  
 
The proposed amendments comply with several of the goals and policies of the NCP. 
 

323



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

L. PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES  
GOAL: To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public 
facilities and services to serve as a framework for urban development. 

 

Finding: The application was routed to 22 internal and external review agencies, no 
conflicts or issues were identified. However, the Building Division provided a comment to 
ensure that there is an adequate supply of water for fire sprinklers. Adequate water supply 
will be reviewed and required through the City’s building permit rand public improvements 
review processes. 
 
The proposed amendments comply with several of the goals and policies of the NCP. 
 

M. ENERGY  
GOAL: To conserve energy through efficient land use patterns and energy- related 
policies and ordinances. 
POLICIES:  
1. Planning Policies  

a. The City will encourage energy-efficient development patterns.  Such patterns 
shall include the mixture of compatible land uses and a compactness of urban 
development.  

 

Finding: The proposal will continue to assist the City’s efforts to have a compact urban 
form for residential development and as a result assists in conserving energy through an 
efficient land use pattern. 
 
This proposal complies with the goal and policy from the NCP. 
 

N. URBANIZATION  
GOALS:  
1. To provide for the orderly and efficient transition from rural to urban land uses.  
2. To maintain Newberg's identity as a community which is separate from the 
Portland Metropolitan area.  
3. To create a quality living environment through a balanced growth of urban and 
cultural activities.  
 
1. Urban Growth Boundary and Urban Reserve Area Policies 

c. The City shall encourage urban development within the City limits. 
 

Finding: The proposal is not requesting an Urban Growth Boundary expansion, has no 
effect on Newberg’s separation from the Portland Metropolitan area and adds to the 
cultural activities available in Newberg. However, these proposed NMC amendments may 
encourage urban development within the downtown within mixed use buildings or addition 
residential opportunities.  
 
The proposal complies with the goal and policies of the NCP. 

 

Conclusion: The proposed municipal code amendments meet the applicable 

324



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

requirements of the Statewide Planning Goals, the Newberg Comprehensive Plan, 
and should be approved. 

325



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

Attachment 1: City Council Resolution 2019-3531 initiating text amendments 

326



327



 

“Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service" 
Z:\PLANNING\MISC\WP5FILES\FILES.DCA (Dev Code TXT Amendment)\2019\DCA19-0003 Commercial Space Requirements for Residential Downtown\DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - 

Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.doc 

Attachment 2:  Newberg Downtown Improvement Plan Pages 2, 3, 13, 20, 29, 49 
and 54 

 

328



2

D
o
w

n
to

w
n
 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

Ex
ec

u
ti

ve
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

PROJECT OBJECTIVES
The primary objectives of Newberg’s 
Downtown Improvement Plan (NDIP or Plan) 
are threefold. First and foremost, the NDIP 
is a downtown improvement plan, one that 
builds upon the good “bones” of the current 
downtown area and that builds upon the 
sound foundation of community-based 
planning for the area. Secondly, the NDIP is 
intended to serve as the “master conceptual 
plan” for the downtown neighborhood, as 
envisioned within Newberg’s comprehensive 

plan. Finally, the overarching objective of 
the Plan is implementation, ensuring that 
Newberg will carry out the community’s 
stated vision for downtown as a unique 
destination – a place to live, work, shop 
and play.

The NDIP is a vision-driven and outcomes-
oriented blueprint for the reinvention of 
Downtown Newberg into a vital, active, more 
urban, mixed-use and pedestrian-friendly 

environment over the next 20 to 30 years.  
This document depicts and summarizes the 
rationale for the master conceptual design 
plan and identifies development types, 
redevelopment opportunities, and “catalyst 
projects” having the ability to jumpstart 
investment and development downtown. 
Finally, the NDIP provides an incremental 
implementation strategy – a program for 
carrying out the plan and achieving the 
community’s vision for Downtown over time.

A VISION FOR DOWNTOWN NEWBERG
Through a sustained and interactive public 
process, the community identified a vision 
and set of desired outcomes for the future of 
downtown Newberg:

Downtown Newberg will be a thriving, 
active and attractive destination at 
the gateway to Oregon’s wine country.  
Building upon an authentic main 
street environment and maximizing 
redevelopment opportunity, downtown will 
have a successful, complementary mix 
of retail, civic, entertainment, cultural, 
office and residential uses, showcasing 
its pedestrian-friendly streetscapes, 
public art, and strong connections to 
adjacent neighborhoods and activity 
centers. Downtown Newberg – a unique 
destination, and a place to live, work, 
shop and play.

Downtown Newberg will have the following 
characteristics, or desired outcomes:

 � Downtown will be a vibrant, inviting, and 
fun destination for those coming from 
near and far

 � Downtown streets will be pedestrian-
friendly and safe for all modes of 
transportation

 � Downtown will be the center for public 
life – a place to shop, work, visit, gather 
and play 

 � Downtown will have increased density, 
a diverse mix of businesses and a broad 
range of places in which to live

 � Downtown will be easy to navigate 
through attractive, effective signage and 
physical connections between activity 
centers and districts

 � Downtown will have a variety of easy-to-
find parking options

 � New development and redevelopment will 
complement older and historic buildings

 � Downtown will be “people-oriented” with 
attractive, comfortable, and functional 
amenities or public uses on the sidewalk 
or in other right-of-way

 � Downtown will build upon Newberg’s 
strong community spirit, and incorporate 
public art reflecting the local character

 � Downtown will have the appropriate type 
and level of infrastructure to support the 
envisioned future type, mix and intensity 
of uses

329



3

D
o
w

n
to

w
n
 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

Ex
ec

u
ti

ve
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

BIG IDEAS – THE FOUNDATION FOR ACTION 
This vision and desired outcomes are 
intended to guide future action from the 
“big picture” level. To help focus efforts 
to achieve the envisioned downtown, a 
framework of key concepts, or “big ideas” 
was established. These Big Ideas are 
intended to focus recommended actions 
and projects for creating a climate for 
investment, and for stimulating development 
to achieve the envisioned future for 
downtown Newberg. The ten Big Ideas that 
comprise the framework for the NDIP are:

 � Gateways: Heralding arrival at a special 
destination

 � First Street Improvements: Making what’s 
good even better!

 � Hancock Street Reinvention: Changing its 
character over time

 � East End/Gateway District: A signature 
“welcome” to downtown’s main point of 
entry

 � West End/Mill District: A place where 
things are made and experienced

 � Second Street Mixed-Use District: A place 
to live with access to all downtown has to 
offer

 � Civic/Cultural Corridor: Linking cultural, 
recreational and civic institutions and 
opportunities

 � Core Catalyst Development: Jumpstarting 
private investment

 � North/South Connections: Linking 
downtown to the greater community

 � Celebrate Art! Good art is good business

These Big Ideas, and the actions and projects 
recommended for carrying them out, are 
detailed in the NDIP.

A STRATEGY FOR ACTION
Finally, for the Downtown Improvement 
Plan to truly be the “chart for change” it is 
intended to be, it must be accompanied 
by an action plan for carrying it out 
in manageable steps. As not every 
recommendation can be carried out 
and completed at once, an incremental 
implementation strategy has been 
provided, laying out the short-term, 
medium range, and long-term actions for 
achieving them. Critical to the success of 
the NDIP is ensuring that this incremental 
implementation strategy is regularly 
monitored, and that it is updated to reflect 
progress, changing circumstances and 
opportunities. In addition, it is important 

that progress in carrying out the strategy 
in support of the vision for downtown 
is regularly reported to City Council and 
the public.

This regular monitoring, reporting and 
updating helps to keep the NDIP flexible 
and current, keeps all City departments and 
project partners focused on carrying out this 
important public policy objective, and keeps 
the implementation of the NDIP on the “front 
burner”, and in the public eye.

Newberg Downtown Improvement Plan public 
workshop

330



13

D
o
w

n
to

w
n
 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

T
h
e 

D
ow

n
to

w
n
 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n

THE DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENT PLAN

The types, arrangement, mix and intensity of land uses, transportation facilities, streetscape and other amenities, parking facilities and 
programs, and other public and private sector projects and activities greatly affect the character of a downtown. Great downtowns do not 
come about by accident – rather they are created, nurtured and improved by the dreams and intentional actions of many. A substantial 
number of ideas were generated by the Advisory Committee, the public and the Project Management Team during the initial, visioning 
phase of Plan development. These have been synthesized into a vision statement and a set of 10 desired outcomes that would further 
describe an envisioned future for downtown. In addition, 10 draft “big ideas” have been formulated which would then be used to help focus 
the generation of recommended projects and actions that would create a climate for investment and stimulate development to achieve the 
envisioned future for downtown Newberg. The vision, desired outcomes and conceptual big ideas are provided below.

VISION AND DESIRED OUTCOMES FOR DOWNTOWN NEWBERG
Downtown Newberg will be a thriving, active 
and attractive destination at the gateway 
to Oregon’s wine country. Building upon 
an authentic main street environment 
and maximizing redevelopment 
opportunity, downtown will have a 
successful, complementary mix of retail, 
civic, entertainment, cultural, office and 
residential uses, showcasing its pedestrian-
friendly streetscapes, public art, and strong 
connections to adjacent neighborhoods 
and activity centers. Downtown Newberg – 
a unique destination, and a place to live, 
work, shop and play.

Downtown Newberg will have the following characteristics, or desired outcomes:

1.  Downtown will be a vibrant, inviting, and 
fun destination for those coming from 
near and far

2.  Downtown streets will be pedestrian-
friendly and safe for all modes of 
transportation

3.  Downtown will be the center for public 
life – a place to shop, work, visit, gather 
and play 

4.  Downtown will have increased density, 
a diverse mix of businesses and a broad 
range of places in which to live

5.  Downtown will be easy to navigate 
through attractive, effective signage and 
physical connections between activity 
centers and districts

6.  Downtown will have a variety of 
easy-to-find parking options

7.  New development and redevelopment 
will complement older and historic 
buildings

8.  Downtown will be “people-oriented” with 
attractive, comfortable, and functional 
amenities or public uses on the sidewalk 
or in other right-of-way

9.  Downtown will build upon Newberg’s 
strong community spirit and incorporate 
public art reflecting the local character

10. Downtown will have the appropriate 
type and level of infrastructure to 
support the envisioned future type, mix 
and intensity of uses 331



20

D
o
w

n
to

w
n
 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

Big 

ideas
T
h
e 

D
ow

n
to

w
n
 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
SECOND STREET MIXED-USE DISTRICT  |  A place to live with access to all downtown has to offer

Housing is a key component of successful 
downtowns – it provides for a large and 
growing market of consumers wanting 
to live in close proximity to goods, 
services, restaurants, and other activities 
and resources offered in a downtown 
environment. Demographic trends show a 
demand for the type of smaller, mixed-use 
or free-standing urban housing products 
that would be suitable in downtown 
Newberg. Downtown residents provide 

additional buying power to support local 
merchants. Similarly, downtown residents 
generate additional vitality and safety – 
providing “eyes on the street” seven days a 
week – and housing grows the tax base for 
the community. While additional housing 
is encouraged throughout downtown, the 
area along Second Street offers a unique 
opportunity for appropriately scaled 
multi-family apartments, condominiums, 
townhomes, or rowhomes at a variety of 

affordability levels, integrated with ground-
floor retail or other commercial uses in 
a mixed-use environment immediately 
adjacent to the First Street commercial 
core. This will help fill a demonstrated 
housing need, provide additional business 
opportunities, create an active downtown 
neighborhood, and increase the number of 
rooftops supporting downtown merchants.

Figure 11: Second Street Mixed-Use District

Hess Creek

Chehalem
Cultural
Center

Public
Library

Post
Office

City
Hall

Fire
Dept

Police
Dept

George Fox University

FRANKLIN ST

SHERIDAN ST

T
S

N
L

O
C

NI
L

T
S

NI
A

M

SHERMAN ST SHERMAN ST

T
S

N
O

T
R

O
M

T
S

N
O

SI
R

R
A

H

T
S

T
N

A
R

G

3RD ST

4TH ST

2ND ST

1ST ST

3RD ST

4TH ST

2ND ST

HANCOCK ST

T
S

E
NI

A
L

B

T
S

D
R

A
W

O
H

T
S

E
G

E
L

L
O

C

D
AYTO

N
AVE

T
S

N
O

T
G

NI
H

S
A

W

T
S

D
R

A
W

D
E

T
S

N
AI

DI
R

E
M

T
S

R
E

VI
R

T
S

R
E

T
N

E
C

5TH ST

SHERIDAN ST

T
S

L
O

O
H

C
S

99W

99W- 219

T
S

D
L

EI
F

R
A

G

UV99W

UV240

UV99W

PORTLAND RD

SECOND STREET MIXED USE DISTRICT

‘BIG IDEAS’

PROJECT BOUNDARY

Memorial
Park

Rotary Centennial Park

He berr t
Hoover Park

Francis
Square

[0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

Portland and 
Western
Railroad

332



29

D
o
w

n
to

w
n
 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

T
h
e 

D
ow

n
to

w
n
 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

P
la

n
LAND USE
To reinvent downtown Newberg as a 
vital, active, more urban, mixed-use 
and pedestrian-friendly environment, 
the City will need to consider amending 
the Newberg Comprehensive Plan and 
Development Code. Amendments have been 
identified to help the City focus on creating 
the desired uses, scale and character 
envisioned within the Plan.

The NDIP should be adopted as a 
refinement plan of the Newberg 
Comprehensive Plan. In addition, it is 
suggested that several sub-policies in the 
Comprehensive Plan see some additions 
and revisions. These revisions will clarify 
policies intended to encourage downtown 
revitalization. These clarifications and 
additions include:

 � Language to encourage the retention 
of the post office retail function in 
downtown.

 � Encouraging a list of uses in downtown 
including, “mixed-use commercial/
residential buildings and mixed-use 
commercial/craft industrial buildings 
to create a vital downtown core with a 
strong retail sector.”

 � Modifications to sub-policies 
encouraging the City to consider:
◊	 adequate off-street parking.
◊	 adoption of a downtown 

improvement plan which should 
include design standards for all new 
public and private improvements.

◊	 various options to make the 
downtown area more pedestrian 
friendly, particularly as volumes 
change with the opening of Phase 1 
of the Newberg Dundee Bypass.

It is also suggested the City update 
sections on the economy and commercial 
area policies to encourage tourism-related 
businesses, a hotel, and craft industrial 
uses in downtown. 

In addition to updating the comprehensive 
plan, the following amendments to 
the zoning and development code are 
suggested to implement the NDIP:

 � HANCOCK, FIRST AND SECOND 
STREETS. Revise the C-3 zone to achieve 
the vision for these three streets as 
a mix of commercial, service and 
residential uses, with a heavier emphasis 
on residential along Second Street and 
commercial and service uses along First 
Street, and a desired form of two- to 
four-story buildings. 

 � CIVIC/CULTURAL CORRIDOR. No 
changes to the current Civic Corridor 
Overlay District are recommended.

 � WEST END/MILL DISTRICT. Create a 
new Craft Industrial Zoning District (M-5)
to regulate the mix of uses allowed 
and prohibited, dimensional and 
design standards, and to provide better 
continuity for the area than can be 
achieved through existing split C-3 and 

M-2 zoning. Allow for the potential siting 
of a hotel to take advantage of the West 
End’s unique craft industrial character 
and to provide a needed resource for 
downtown. The focus is on developing 
craft industrial uses and maintaining the 
area’s gritty feel more in keeping with 
the industrial heritage than the main 
street, historic feel along parts of First 
Street. The recommended M-5 zone is 
discussed in Appendix H of this Plan, as 
it is the recommended creation of design 
guidelines to achieve the envisioned feel 
and character of this area.

 � EAST END/GATEWAY DISTRICT. 
Accommodate desired uses, such as a 
hotel/conference center and parking lot 
in the base zone, reviewing the footnotes 
in the use table and tailoring them to 
encourage this development. Specifically, 
revise the limitation on hotel uses in 
C-3 district that requires a conditional 
use permit for hotel uses greater than 
40,000 square feet.

 � PARKING REGULATIONS. It is 
recommended that parking requirements 
for residential uses be removed, and 
the City introduce a fee-in-lieu program. 
These in-lieu fees can be accrued and 
used in the future to purchase land for 
future parking facilities or for making 
other parking improvements. Address 
additional parking needs of residents, 
visitors, and employees through a variety 
of strategies outlined in the parking 

333



49

D
o
w

n
to

w
n
 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

Im
p
le

m
en

ta
ti

on
 –

 T
a
k
in

g
 t

h
e 

P
la

n
 F

or
w

a
rd

SECOND STREET MIXED-USE DISTRICT  |  A place to live with access to all downtown has to offer

The Second Street Mixed-Use District 
offers a prime location for near-term infill 
housing projects. The area is proximate to 
the commercial core of downtown, but also 
shielded from traffic noise by the buildings 
along the south side of First Street. In order 
to encourage infill housing and mixed-use 
development in the district the following 
actions are recommended:

 �  Property/developer engagement. 
Engagement with property owners and 
local developers is a key strategy for 
encouraging any form of development. 

These stakeholders are the key private 
sector players that have the capability to 
carry forward public sector development 
goals. Developing effective working 
relationships with this group by the City 
and the Downtown Coalition is crucial at 
every stage of downtown revitalization.

 � Infill housing demonstration project. 
Demonstration projects illustrate to 
the private real estate development 
community appropriate and viable 
projects for the local area. They also 
train public sector staff in how to 

approach and permit projects that 
they might not have encountered 
with less complicated greenfield 
development projects.

 � Second Street Improvement Design. 
Second street is the spine of the 
mixed-use district. An improved 
right-of-way design would foster a 
better climate for redevelopment and 
investment. Improvements could include 
marked on-street parking, bikeway 
signage and wayfinding, and improved 
streetscape zones.

Implementation Timing for Second Street Mixed-Use District Projects and Actions

Projects and Actions

Timeline

Cost
Project 
Lead Coordination

Short-Term
Near-
Term

Long-
Term

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
Years 
4–6 Years 7+

Second Street Mixed-Use District

Property/developer engagement      Staffing City
NDC, Property 

Owners

Infill housing demonstration project   TBD City
NDC, Property 

Owners

Second Street improvement design/
construction  $565,000 City

334



54

D
o
w

n
to

w
n
 I
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

Pl
an

Im
p
le

m
en

ta
ti

on
 –

 T
a
k
in

g
 t

h
e 

P
la

n
 F

or
w

a
rd

Funding, Administrative, and Organizational Actions

The actions below enable all of the big ideas to be realized, transcending any one individual concept. These actions provide the funding 
mechanisms and organizational structure for carrying out all of the other projects and actions in the Plan. These actions include:

 � Creation of an Urban Renewal Program. 
Urban Renewal programs are powerful, 
robust City-controlled redevelopment 
tools that enable the planning, funding, 
and implementation of significant 
public infrastructure improvements, and 
provide support for private development. 
By leveraging local tax increment, urban 
renewal programs increase the public 
sector’s borrowing capacity and increase 
capital project investment. 

 � Economic or Business Improvement 
District. EIDs and BIDs provide ongoing 
funding for downtown activities, 
modest capital projects, public art, and 
operations and maintenance. These 
organizations also provide a forum for 
downtown business and property owners 
to discuss downtown related topics and 
issues. 

 �  Regulatory Improvements. Downtowns 
continually evolve. For this reason, 
it is crucial for regulations and 
policies to remain flexible and, on 
an ongoing basis, to look to codify 
and synchronize policies with current 
projects and actions. Amendments to the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan and Zoning 
Redevelopment Code and the creation of 

design guidelines for a new M-5 zone are 
proposed as actions to be taken in the 
short term.

 � Parking Management. Parking 
management plans provide a 
comprehensive strategy for facilitating 
parking in the downtown area and 
planning for future parking needs. 
Parking is effectively managed through 
a number of simultaneous policies, 
programs, and actions. For a full 
description of parking management 
tasks, please refer to the Downtown 
Strategic Parking Management Plan in 
Appendix E.

 � Downtown Development Ombudsman. 
This position would provide a 
single point of contact for property 
owners and developers for any issue 
pertaining to real estate development. 
The ombudsman would also act as 
a mediator for resolving downtown 
development conflicts, and champion 
local development initiatives. It is 
recommended that an initial investment 
of a half-time employee position be 
provided to serve in this role.

 � Downtown Partnership. This partnership 
brings together notable community 
leaders to champion and raise funds for 
significant community projects. Although 
projects can be citywide, the primary 
focus of this committee should be on 
activity generating projects that draw 
users to the downtown area.

 � Other funding tools. The State of Oregon 
enables the use of a variety of tools to 
help facilitate development as envisioned 
within this Plan and they should be 
considered for application within 
downtown Newberg.

◊	 Vertical Housing Program. The 
Vertical Housing Program is a state 
tax abatement program that allows 
for a tax exemption of up to 80 
percent of the improvement over a 
10-year term for mixed-use projects 
in Vertical Housing Development 
Zones (VHDZ) designated by local 
jurisdictions. The ground floor 
of the project is required to be a 
non-residential use. An additional 
tax exemption of up to 80 percent 
may be given on the land for 
qualifying projects providing low-
income housing (set at 80 percent 

335



Agenda Item No:VIIA.

Planning Commission Agenda Item Report
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020
Submitted by: Bobbie Morgan
Submitting Department: Community Development  
Item Type: OTHER REPORTS, LETTERS OR CORRESPONDENCE
Agenda Section: 

Subject:
OGEC Letter to City Manager, City Council, Municipal Judge, Planning Commission and Historic Planning
Commission

Suggested Action:

Attachments:
OGEC letter to Council 2020-0203 SEI first reminder.pdf

336

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/attachment/524861/OGEC_letter_to_Council_2020-0203_SEI_first_reminder.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

February 3, 2020 
 

To: City Manager, City Council, Municipal Judge, Planning Commission  
and Historic Planning Commission 

 
 Re: ORS 244.050 and OAR 199-020-0005 
 

Here is a reminder to mark your calendars for your annual SEI filing later this year. This is for the annual 
Statement of Economic Interest filings through the Oregon Government Ethics Commission. As the 
jurisdictional contact for the SEI filings, it is my job to verify and provide contact information for all City of 
Newberg officials that are required to file the SEI. These include the City Manager, Mayor, City Council, 
Planning Commission, Historic Planning Commission and Municipal Judge whom are actively serving on 
April 15 of 2020.  
 
OGEC went to an Electronic Filing System in 2016. If you need help logging in (your password and 
username), there are directions available on the commission’s website. If you need access to a computer to 
manage your account or file your form the City can make one available for you. This will need to be done by 
appointment with the City Recorder. Staff can assist you with technical questions and equipment but 
cannot fill out your forms for you. That is your responsibility as a public official. 
 
In mid-March, OGEC will send you a notice that you can go in and file your SEI. You will have between 
March 15, 2020 and the deadline of April 15, 2020 to file. You can only file during this one-month window. 
You cannot file your form early but you can log in to test your username or password ahead of time to 
make sure those work.  
 
Again, if you have any questions you can contact me directly at sue.ryan@newbergoregon.gov or (503) 
537-1283 or OGEC at (503) 378-5105, email at ogecmail@oregon.gov or check out their website at 
www.oregon.gov/OGEC.  
 
The Commission also offers online tutorials through iLearn, the state’s online delivery system for training. 
You do not have to be a state employee to register. They also offer live trainings through Adobe Connect 
where you can ask questions directly of a trainer. I’ve attached instructions on how to sign up for iLearn 
with this letter. 

 
 Sincerely, 
 
 
 Sue Ryan 
 Newberg City Recorder 

 
 C: DawnKaren Bevill 
 Encl: iLearn instructions 
 
G/CityRecorder/OGECfilings/OGEC letter to Council 2020-0203 first reminder 

337

mailto:sue.ryan@newbergoregon.gov
http://www.oregon.gov/OGEC


Agenda Item No:VIIA.

Planning Commission Agenda Item Report
Meeting Date: February 13, 2020
Submitted by: Bobbie Morgan
Submitting Department: Community Development  
Item Type: OTHER REPORTS, LETTERS OR CORRESPONDENCE
Agenda Section: 

Subject:
Anticipated Schedule of Planning Commission Activities

Suggested Action:
Anticipated Schedule of Planning Commission Activities updates given by Doug Rux

Attachments:
Memo Planning Commission Activities 2020.doc

338

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/523494/Memo_Planning_Commission_Activities_2020.pdf


"Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"

   Community Development Department
      P.O. Box 970 ▪ 414 E First Street ▪ Newberg, Oregon 97132 
      503-537-1240 ▪ Fax 503-537-1272 ▪ www.newbergoregon.gov

MEMORANDUM

TO: Newberg Planning Commission
FROM: Doug Rux, Community Development Director
SUBJECT: Anticipated Schedule of Planning Commission Activities
DATE: February 13, 2020

To assist the Planning Commission in gauging activities for FY 2019/2020 and FY 20/21, below is a preliminary 
schedule of actions.

February 13, 2020
 PUD 1303 S River Street – Quasi Judicial Hearing 
 E Second Street Commercial Space Requirements – Quasi Judicial Hearing
 ADU Parking Regulations – Legislative

March 12, 2020
 Transit Plan Comprehensive Plan and Development Code Amendment – Legislative Hearing
 Vertical Housing Tax Abatement Program Recommendation – Administrative Hearing
 Mill District Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment, Comprehensive Map Amendment/Zoning, 

Development Regulations - Workshop

April 9, 2020
 Urban Renewal Feasibility Study Update

May 14, 2020
 Urban Renewal Feasibility Study Update
 TBD

June 11, 2020
 Economic Opportunities Analysis Update
 TBD

July 9, 2020
 Urban Renewal Feasibility Study Update
 TBD

August 13, 2020
 Economic Opportunities Analysis Update
 TBD

339



"Working Together For A Better Community-Serious About Service"

September 10, 2020
 TBD

October 8, 2020
 Economic Opportunities Analysis Update
 TBD

November 12, 2020
 Mill District Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment, Comprehensive Map Amendment/Zoning, 

Development Regulations – Quasi Judicial Hearing

December 10, 2020
 Economic Opportunities Analysis Update
 Housing Needs Analysis Buildable Lands Inventory/Population Update
 Public/Semi-public Land Analysis
 TBD

There are additional activities the Community Development Department may bring forward to the Planning 
Commission for consideration. Staff is looking at various updates and cleanup actions to the Development Code 
such as:

1. Tentative – Military Banner Sign Regulations – Legislative
2. Institutional Zone Development Code Changes
3. Riverfront Master Plan Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment - Legislative
4. Riverfront Master Plan Comprehensive Map Amendment/Zoning – Quasi Judicial
5. Riverfront Master Plan Comprehensive Development Code Amendment - Legislative
6. Residential Parking Standards
7. Annexation criteria
8. Stream Corridor Adjustment process
9. Urban Forestry program
10. Fences in Industrial zones 
11. Parking for subdivisions/partitions/design review 
12. C-3 zone – reduce front yard landscaping from 10 feet to 5 feet
13. Industrial outdoor storage 
14. Downtown sign point system 
15. Vacation home rentals 
16. Roof top mechanical unit screening
17. Historic review process 
18. Zoning Use Table 
19. Undergrounding utilities 
20. Driveway width 
21. Home occupations 
22. 15.405.030B – “The creation” development of lots under 15,000 sf……
23. 15.302.010 – add R-4 to the list
24. Replace parking diagrams in 15.440.070 for readability
25. Replace airport overlay diagrams in back of Dev. Code for readability
26. Temporary Merchant standards
27. Food Carts

340


	Planning Commission Agenda
	2016-942 - Cover Page
	2016-942 - PC Meeting Monutes 2020-0109 Draft.docx
	2016-950 - Cover Page
	2016-950 - PUD19-0002 Riverlands Staff Report with Attachments.pdf
	2016-943 - Cover Page
	2016-943 - DCA19-0009 Staff Report to PC w ATT 02-13-20.pdf
	2016-946 - Cover Page
	2016-946 - DCA19-0003 Residential Use Limitations-Commercial Use Requirement on Second St - Staff Report - 20200213 - PC Final.pdf
	2016-949 - Cover Page
	2016-949 - OGEC letter to Council 2020-0203 SEI first reminder.pdf
	2016-944 - Cover Page
	2016-944 - Memo Planning Commission Activities 2020.doc

